
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Western Riverside Council of Governments 

Technical Advisory Committee  

AGENDA 
Thursday, March 15, 2018 

9:30 a.m. 
 

Western Riverside Council of Governments  
Citrus Tower 

3390 University Avenue, Suite 450 
Riverside, CA 92501 

 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and Government Code Section 54954.2, if special assistance is 
needed to participate in the Technical Advisory Committee meeting, please contact WRCOG at (951) 405-6703. 
Notification of at least 48 hours prior to meeting time will assist staff in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made 
to provide accessibility at the meeting. In compliance with Government Code Section 54957.5, agenda materials distributed 
within 72 hours prior to the meeting which are public records relating to an open session agenda item will be available for 
inspection by members of the public prior to the meeting at 3390 University Avenue, Suite 450, Riverside, CA, 92501. 
 
The Technical Advisory Committee may take any action on any item listed on the agenda, regardless of the Requested 
Action. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER (Alex Diaz, Chairman) 
 
2. SELF INTRODUCTIONS 
 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

At this time members of the public can address the Technical Advisory Committee regarding any items with the 
subject matter jurisdiction of the Committee that are not separately listed on this agenda. Members of the public 
will have an opportunity to speak on agendized items at the time the item is called for discussion. No action may 
be taken on items not listed on the agenda unless authorized by law. Whenever possible, lengthy testimony 
should be presented to the Committee in writing and only pertinent points presented orally. 



P. 1

5. MINUTES

A. Summary Minutes from the January 18, 2018, Technical Advisory Committee 
Meeting are Available for Consideration. 

Requested Action: 1. Approve the Summary Minutes from the January 18, 2018, 
Technical Advisory Committee meeting. 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR

All items listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and may be enacted by one motion.
Prior to the motion to consider any action by the Committee, any public comments on any of the Consent Items
will be heard. There will be no separate action unless members of the Committee request specific items be
removed from the Consent Calendar.

A. Finance Department Activities Update Ernie Reyna P. 9

Requested Action: 1. Receive and file. 

B. WRCOG Committees and Agency Activities Update Rick Bishop P. 15

Requested Action: 1. Receive and file. 

C. Western Community Energy Activities Update Barbara Spoonhour P. 31

Requested Action: 1. Receive and file. 

D. International City / County Management AJ Wilson, California P. 125
Association Activities Update Senior Advisor  

Requested Action: 1. Receive and file. 

E. Experience Regional Innovation Center Feasibility Andrea Howard P. 135
Analysis Update

Requested Action: 1. Receive and file. 

F. PACE Programs Activities Update Casey Dailey P. 201

Requested Action: 1. Receive and file. 

G. Potential Full Consolidation of RCHCA Staff and Rick Bishop P. 205
Operations with WRCOG

Requested Action: 1. Receive and file. 



H. Continued Membership of the Riverside County Rick Bishop P. 221 
Superintendent of Schools on WRCOG 
 

  Requested Action: 1. Approve a one-year extension to the MOU between WRCOG and 
the Riverside County Superintendent of Schools for the 
Superintendent to serve as an ex-officio member of the Executive 
Committee. 

 
 

7. REPORTS / DISCUSSION 
 

A. Alternative Compliance Program Activities Update Christopher Tzeng, WRCOG P. 227 
 

  Requested Action: 1. Receive and file. 
 
 

B. Santa Ana Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Edwin Quinonez, Riverside P. 231 
System (MS4) Permit Compliance Program County Flood Control 
Update 

 
  Requested Action: 1. Receive and file. 

 
 

C. Regional Streetlight Program Activities Update Tyler Masters, WRCOG P. 241 
 

  Requested Action: 1. Receive and file. 
 

 
D. Public Service Fellowship Activities Update Cynthia Mejia, WRCOG P. 245  

 
  Requested Action: 1. Receive and file. 
 
 

E. BEYOND Program Update and Project Spotlight –  Andrea Howard, WRCOG P. 259 
Cancer Treatment Task Force 
 
Requested Action: 1. Receive and file. 

 
 
8. REPORT FROM THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR Rick Bishop 

 
9. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS Members 
 
10. GENERAL ANNOUNCEMENTS Members 
 

Members are invited to announce items/activities which may be of general interest to the Technical 
Advisory Committee. 

 
11. NEXT MEETING: The next Technical Advisory Committee meeting is scheduled for Thursday, 

April 19, 2018, at 9:30 a.m., at WRCOG’s office located at 3390 University 
Avenue, Suite 450, Riverside. 
 

12. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 



 

 

 



Technical Advisory Committee Item 5.A 
January 18, 2018 
Summary Minutes 

1. CALL TO ORDER

The meeting of the Technical Advisory Committee was called to order at 9:35 a.m. by Chair George 
Johnson at WRCOG’s office, Citrus Conference Room. 

2. ROLL CALL

Members present: 

Aaron Palmer, City of Canyon Lake 
Michele Nissen, City of Eastvale 
Gary Thompson, City of Jurupa Valley 
Grant Yates, City of Lake Elsinore 
Armando Villa, City of Menifee (9:44 a.m. arrival) 
Kim Summers, City of Murrieta 
Andy Okoro, City of Norco 
John Russo, City of Riverside 
Aaron Adams, City of Temecula (9:54 a.m. arrival) 
Gary Nordquist, City of Wildomar 
George Johnson, County of Riverside (Chair) 
Danielle Coats, Eastern Municipal Water District 
Craig Miller, Western Municipal Water District 
Floyd Velasquez, Morongo Band of Mission Indians 

Staff present: 

Steve DeBaun, Legal Counsel 
Rick Bishop, Executive Director  
Ernie Reyna, Chief Financial Officer 
Barbara Spoonhour, Director of Community Choice Aggregation 
Chris Gray, Director of Transportation 
Casey Dailey, Director of Energy and Environmental Programs 
Tyler Masters, Program Manager 
Crystal Adams, Program Manager 
Christopher Tzeng, Program Manager 
Daniel Ramirez-Cornejo, Senior Analyst 
Cherish Latchman, Staff Analyst 
Lupe Lotman, Staff Analyst 
Dolores Sanchez Badillo, Staff Analyst 
Jairo Sandoval, Staff Analyst 
Anthony Segura, Staff Analyst 
Amber Bolden, Intern 
Suzy Nelson, Administrative Assistant 
Janis Leonard, Administrative Services Manager 

Guests present: 

Moises Lopez, City of Riverside 
Betsy Lowrey, City of Temecula 
Araceli Ruiz, County of Riverside, District 1 
Bryan Martinez, Eastern Municipal Water District 
Daniel Wong, South Coasts Air Quality Management District 

1



3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Gary Thompson, City of Jurupa Valley, led the members and guests in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There were no public comments. 
 
5. MINUTES  
 
A. Summary Minutes from the October 19, 2017, Technical Advisory Committee Meeting are 

Available for Consideration. 
 
 Action: 1. Approved Summary Minutes from the October 19, 2017, Technical 

Advisory Committee meeting. 
 
(Jurupa Valley / Riverside) 12 yes; 0 no; 0 abstention.  Item 5.A was approved by a unanimous vote of 
those members present.  The Cities of Banning, Beaumont, Calimesa, Corona, Hemet, Menifee, 
Moreno Valley, Perris, San Jacinto, and Temecula, and the March JPA were not present. 
 
B. Summary Minutes from the August 17, 2017, Technical Advisory Committee Meeting are 

Available for Consideration. 
 
 Action: 1. Approved Summary Minutes from the August 17, 2017, Technical 

Advisory Committee meeting. 
 
(Eastvale / Riverside) 12 yes; 0 no; 0 abstention.  Item 5.B was approved by a unanimous vote of 
those members present.  The Cities of Banning, Beaumont, Calimesa, Corona, Hemet, Menifee, 
Moreno Valley, Perris, San Jacinto, and Temecula, and the March JPA were not present. 
 
6. CONSENT CALENDAR   (Riverside / Jurupa Valley) 12 yes; 0 no; 0 abstention.  Items 6.A through 
6.L were approved by a unanimous vote of those members present.  The Cities of Banning, Beaumont, 
Calimesa, Corona, Hemet, Moreno Valley, Perris, San Jacinto, and Temecula, and the March JPA 
were not present. 
 
A. Finance Department Activities Update 
 
 Action: 1. Received and filed. 
 
B. Single Signature Authority Report 
 
 Action: 1. Received and filed. 
 
C. Western Riverside Energy Partnership Activities Update  
 
 Action: 1. Received and filed. 
 
D. WRCOG Committees and Agency Activities Update  
 
 Action: 1. Received and filed. 
 
E. Grant Writing Assistance Program 
 
 Action: 1. Received and filed. 
 
 
 

2



F. Fiscal Year 2016/2017 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Action: 1. Received and filed.

G. Christian Lomeli – Videography / Graphic Design Contract

 Action: 1. Recommended that the Executive Committee approve the Professional
Services Agreement, substantially as to form, between the Western 
Riverside Council of Governments and Christian Lomeli, for graphic 
design and videography services for the Agency in an amount not to 
exceed $16,000 for Fiscal Year 2017/2018. 

H. PFM Asset Management Contract

 Action: 1. Recommended that the Executive Committee approve the Professional
Services Agreement between the Western Riverside Council of 
Governments and PFM Asset Management, LLC, for the management of 
WRCOG’s investment portfolio and financial advisory services for the 
Agency inn an amount not to exceed $100,000 for Fiscal Year 
2017/2018.  

I. Cajalco Road  I-15 Interchange Memorandum of Understanding

 Action: 1. Recommended that the Executive Committee approve a Memorandum of
Understanding with the City of Corona and the Riverside County 
Transportation Commission regarding a TUMF Improvement and Credit / 
Reimbursement Agreement for the Cajalco Road / I-15 Interchange. 

J. Environmental Department Activities Update

Action: 1. Received and filed.

K. International City / County Management Association Activities Update

Action: 1. Received and filed.

L. Technical Advisory Committee 2018 Meeting Schedule

 Action: 1. Approved the Schedule of Technical Advisory Committee meetings for
2018. 

7. REPORTS / DISCUSSION

A. Western Riverside County Active Transportation Plan Activities Update

Christopher Gray reported that any Active Transportation Plan (ATP) is required to review
collisions; bicycle and pedestrian collisions were reviewed.  There is a lag between when the
information is gathered and when it becomes publicly available.  Within the subregion, there are
approximately 300 pedestrian collisions and 300 bicycle involved collisions annually.  The
majority of individuals involved in a collision are between the ages of 10 and 19.  Nearly half of
all collisions are under the age of 18.

There are a high number pedestrian collisions on the Highway 74 corridor in the City of Hemet;
clusters were also observed in downtown Corona, near the Galleria Mall in the City of
Riverside, near the University of California, Riverside, and in the City of Moreno Valley.

3



Some of the same clusters were identified on Railroad Canyon Road in the City of Lake 
Elsinore, and the Cities of Hemet, Moreno Valley, and Riverside.   

The Public Works Committee identified four high-priority regional facilities which connect 
jurisdictions and is not necessarily bike paths or sidewalks.  Four rounds of comments and 
responses occurred.  Staff have prepared perceptual plans; when a jurisdiction submits for a 
grant, this data can be attached to the grant application. 

Two concurrent activities are a bicycle education workshop and three sessions of complete 
streets training. 

Committee member Andy Norco asked where in the study data can be found on collisions with 
horses.   

Mr. Gray responded that he will have to look into that. 

Committee member Michele Nissen asked how we can obtain more recent data. 

Mr. Gray responded that the state takes approximately two years to summarize the data. 

Committee member Nissen recommended tying this in with the school programs since most 
collisions are with kids. 

Mr. Gray responded that Riverside County Public Health has funding and an ongoing program 
which reviews specifically collisions at schools through the Safe Routes to School Program.   

Committee member John Russo indicated that it seems there are more pedestrian fatalities 
than bicycle fatalities, yet it appears most funding is being steered to bicycles, bicycle lanes, 
and complete streets.  Most accidents are in particular areas, so why spend a bunch of money 
on these long corridors instead of focusing on a pedestrian education program? 

Mr. Gray responded that most accidents are near interchanges and local city streets, and 
jurisdictions have local control over that.  The plan is to address regional facilities. 

Committee member Grant Yates indicated that complete streets training on the front end would 
be very valuable.  Long-range connectivity is very important. 

Chair Johnson indicated that while this plan focuses on regional facilities, is local data 
available. 

Mr. Gray responded that staff prepared city-wide summaries and shared this information with 
the Public Works Committee. 

Chair Johnson added that schools do not work with the local jurisdiction when siting schools.  
The state architects are notorious for building schools that do not provide safe pedestrian 
access to and from those schools.   

Mr. Gray indicated that staff can follow up on the pedestrian-focused study by San Bernardino 
County, and a Safe Routes to School Prioritization Study by the same. 

Action: 1. Received and filed.

B. TUMF Program Ad Hoc Committee Activities Update

Christopher Gray reported that a comprehensive review of the TUMF Program has concluded.
The Ad Hoc Committee met four times and determined administration of the Program should

4



stay housed with WRCOG that the types of TUMF-funded projects should be expanded, a 
prioritization process for Zones should be created, and the criteria used on how projects are 
added should be updated. 

TUMF is not assessed on the first 3,000 square feet of a facility for retail use. 

Staff hopes to create a more flexible set of criteria in which projects can be funded with TUMF.  
Any proposals would be vetted through the Public Works Committee.   

Committee member Andy Okoro asked if there is an educational pamphlet jurisdictions can 
share with member of the public. 

Mr. Gray responded that staff is in the final development process of a pamphlet.  A consultant 
is reviewing all TUMF communiqué. 

Actions: 1. Recommended that the Executive Committee approve the TUMF
Program Ad Hoc Committee’s recommendation to maintain the current
administration and management structure of the TUMF Program.

2. Recommended that the Executive Committee approve the TUMF
Program Ad Hoc Committee’s recommendation to maintain the current
structure of the TUMF Zone process.

3. Recommended that the Executive Committee approve the TUMF
Program Ad Hoc Committee’s recommendation to have the Public Works
Committee review the TUMF Network criteria and project type for future
Nexus Study updates to address the following areas:
a. Expanding the types of projects that can be funded by TUMF,

including active transportation projects.
b. Formalizing a process for each TUMF Zone to prioritize projects

within the Zone.
c. Updating the criteria that is used to determine how projects are

added to the Program through the Nexus Study update.

(Norco / Riverside) 11 yes; 0 no; 0 abstention.  Item 7.B was approved by a unanimous vote of 
those members present.  The Cities of Banning, Beaumont, Calimesa, Corona, Hemet, Moreno 
Valley, Perris, and San Jacinto, and the March JPA were not present.  The Water Districts and 
the Morongo Band of Mission Indians do not vote on TUMF matters. 

C. PACE Programs Activities Update

Crystal Adams reported that in 2017 over 30,000 projects have been completed and over $773
million in funding has been provided.

Providers under WRCOG PACE Program include CaliforniaFirst, Spruce Finance, PACE
Funding, Ygrene, and Greenworks Lending.

Baker Tilly recently completed an Operational Analysis of Renovate America.  New providers
will participate in the audit after one year of operation in WRCOG’s PACE Program.

WRCOG’s Consumer Protections Policy has been updated to reflect recently passed
legislation.

Committee member Aaron Adams asked if other jurisdictions are still being aggressively
approached by providers not under WRCOG’s umbrella.  The City of Temecula is hesitant in
allowing providers not under the umbrella given the security of WRCOG’s Consumer
Protections Policy.

5



Several Committee members indicated that they have and feel the same way as Temecula. 
 
Rick Bishop added that much of the new legislation is born out of WRCOG’s Consumer 
Protections Policy. 
 
Committee member Grant Yates asked if there is a new rule indicating that a homeowner must 
pay off their PACE lien before they can refinance or sell their home. 
 
Mr. Bishop responded that approximately one year ago, the Federal Housing Administration 
issued a policy direction that it would provide loans to properties that had PACE liens attached 
to it.  With the new Administration, it issued a statement reversing that decision.   
 
Committee member Gary Thompson asked what will it take to reverse that decision so that the 
liens are secondary. 
 
Mrs. Adams responded that it is a state statute, so it would require new legislation.    
 
Action: 1. Received and filed. 
 
 

D. Regional Streetlight Program Activities Update 
 
Tyler Masters reported that a pilot demonstration area was implemented in the City of Hemet 
which included over 12 LED manufacturers and over 150 LED fixtures.  Banc of America was 
selected as the loan provider for those jurisdictions interested in moving forward in buying their 
streetlights back from Southern California Edison.  Siemens is the company selected to provide 
operations, maintenance, and retrofit of the poles. 
 
Next steps include identifying fixtures to be retrofitted.  A Request for Quotes was released in 
September 2017, and 11 proposals have been received.  A Working Group is in the process of 
reviewing those proposals. 
 
Committee member Michelle Nissen asked if there is a way to pay a lock-in fee on the interest 
rate. 
 
Mr. Masters responded that staff continues to have conversations on that matter with Banc of 
America. 
 
Actions: 1. Received and filed. 
 
 

E. Western Riverside Energy Partnership Activities Update 
 
Anthony Segura reported that the Western Riverside Energy Partnership (WREP) is a 
partnership comprised of WRCOG, Southern California Edison (SCE), Southern California Gas 
Company, and 14 WRCOG member jurisdictions. 
 
There are four different tiers representing various thresholds of energy savings; Value, Silver, 
Gold, and Platinum.  The subregion has saved just over 10 million kilo watt hours of energy. 
 
WREP was recognized by the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) as ranking 6th out 
of 160 programs in California. 
 
SCE’s Direct Install Program provides no-cost energy consultations and installation of identified 
energy measures.  In 2017, SCE allocated over $2 million in funding for interior LED lighting. 
 

6



The 2017 Holiday Light Exchange and Energy Efficiency Kit Giveaway provided LED holiday 
lights and low flow water efficiency kits to residents.  Staff distributed more than 900 LED 
holiday lights, and over 80 efficiency kits. 

For 2018, in partnership with the Regional Streetlights Program, WREP anticipates capturing 
and saving member jurisdictions between $2 million and $3 million in incentives for LED 
rebates. 

Rick Bishop added that WREP came about as a result of direction by the Executive Committee.  
Several years ago through Edison and the CPUC, boundaries used for setting base-line rates 
changed.  Before the change, cities in Western Riverside County were being charged the same 
energy rates as the coastal communities.  This saved Western Riverside County residents $15 
million to $20 million per year.  WREP was created to make local municipalities leaders of 
energy efficiency, and is fully funded through SCE and SoCal Gas. 

Action: 1. Received and filed.

F. Western Community Energy Activities Update

Barbara Spoonhour reported that Western Community Energy (WCE) is a hybrid between an
Investor-Owned Utility (IOU) and a municipal utility.  WCE would purchase energy and provide
it to the residents through Southern California Edison’s (SCE) transmission lines.  Customers
have the choice to either switch to WCE, or remain with SCE.

If WCE launches in mid-2018, in addition to 2019 numbers, it would experience a cumulative
surplus of $18.1 million.  The WCE’s Board would then decide if it wanted to put that back into
additional rate savings for customers, or develop programs for its local residents.

For customers who leave SCE, the loss to SCE cannot be pushed to its remaining customers.

The California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) recently released its Draft Resolution E-
4907.  Anyone who submitted an implementation agreement by December 8, 2017, the same
day the Draft Resolution was released, was authorized to continue moving forward.  Formal
comments were due January 11, 2018.  WRCOG submitted a comment letter.  A reply to
comments is due tomorrow.  WRCOG will be responding to comments provided by the IOUs.
This Draft Resolution delays WCE from servicing load until the year 2020.

The IOUs and Community Choice Aggregation Programs must participate in a Resource
Adequacy Program to ensure they have one years’ resources in advance.  The CPUC is also
requiring a timeline.  If an Implementation Plan is submitted by February 1, 2018, the CCA can
begin servicing customers in January 2019.  If an Implementation Plan is submitted after
February 1, 2018, the CCA cannot begin servicing customers until January 2020.

Staff has had positive discussions with SCE and the CPUC.  WCE could potentially purchase
what SCE has already purchased for the year.

An Ad Hoc Committee was formed to begin negotiations with SCE.  WRCOG has been meeting
with SCE for the past year and a half to keep them informed of where the WCE is in the
process.  Staff have been providing City Council presentations to its member jurisdictions.

Rick Bishop added that the near-term goal is to hope the CPUC does not follow through with its
Draft Resolution.  If WCE is authorized to launch, WRCOG will be seeking a core group of
member jurisdictions to join and move forward.

Action: 1. Received and filed.

7



8. REPORT FROM THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
 
Rick Bishop reported that WRCOG is thrilled to be in its new office.  John Russo, City of Riverside, 
was recognized by the Inland Empire Economic Partnership as an Outstanding Public Servant.  
 
9. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS 
 
There were no items for future agendas. 
 
10. GENERAL ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
Aaron Adams introduced Betsy Lowrey from his office; additionally, conversations about a section of 
the I-15 that is not included in the Regional Transportation Plan continue to be held. 
 
11. NEXT MEETING The next regular Technical Advisory Committee meeting is scheduled 

for Thursday, February 15, 2018, at 9:30 a.m., at WRCOG’s office 
located at 3390 University Avenue, Suite 450, Riverside.  

 
12. ADJOURNMENT The meeting of the Technical Advisory Committee adjourned at 

11:00 a.m. 
 
 
 

8



Item 6.A 

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Technical Advisory Committee 

Staff Report

Subject: Finance Department Activities Update  

Contact: Ernie Reyna, Chief Financial Officer, ereyna@wrcog.us, (951) 405-6740 

Date: March 15, 2018 

The purpose of this item is to provide an update on the Fiscal Year (FY) 2018/2019 Agency budget 
development process, the 3rd Quarter budget amendment schedule for FY 2017/2018, and the Agency 
financial report summary through January 2018. 

Requested Action: 

1. Receive and File.

FY 2018/2019 Agency Budget Development Process 

Staff has begun the process of creating the FY 2018/2019 Agency Budget; below is the schedule of 
presentations to the various Committees, including the General Assembly: 

April 11, 2018:  Administration & Finance Committee (first review) 
April 19, 2018:  Technical Advisory Committee (first review) 
April 26, 2018:  Finance Directors Committee 
May 7, 2018:  Executive Committee (first review) 
May 9, 2018:  Administration & Finance Committee (second review) 
May 17, 2018:  Technical Advisory Committee (second review) 
June 4, 2018:  Executive Committee (second review)  
June 21, 2018: General Assembly (action) 

3rd Quarter Budget Amendment 

March 31, 2018, will mark the end of the third quarter of FY 2017/2018. The Administration & Finance 
Committee will receive an amendment report on April 11, 2018.  It is anticipated the Technical Advisory 
Committee will consider the amendment report on April 19, 2018, and the Executive Committee will consider 
the report on May 7, 2018. 

Financial Report Summary through January 2018 

The Agency Financial Report summary through January 2018, a monthly overview of WRCOG’s financial 
statements in the form of combined Agency revenues and costs, is provided as Attachment 1. 

Prior Action: 

March 5, 2018: The Executive Committee received and filed. 

9

mailto:ereyna@wrcog.us


Fiscal Impact: 

This item is for informational purposes only; therefore there is no fiscal impact. 

Attachment: 

1. Financial Report summary – January 2018.

10



Item 6.A 
Finance Department Activities 

Update 

Attachment 1 
Financial Report summary – 

January 2018

11



 

 

 

12



Approved Thru Remaining
6/30/2018 1/31/2018 6/30/2018

Revenues Budget*** Actual Budget
General Assembly 300,000            18,800              281,200            
WRCOG HERO Residential Revenue 816,771            607,061            209,710            
CA HERO Residential Revenue 5,800,000         2,484,292         3,315,708         
The Gas Company Partnership 50,000              6,521                43,479              
SCE WREP Revenue 75,000              21,302              53,698              
WRCOG HERO Residential Recording Revenue 182,775            115,445            67,330              
CA HERO Residential Recording Revenue 1,000,000         411,070            588,930            
CA First Residential Revenue 167,000            25,785              141,215            
CA First Residential Recording Revenue 86,000              8,910                77,090              
Other Misc Revenue -                    1,318                (1,318)               
Solid Waste 117,100            48,892              68,208              
Active Transportation Revenue 150,000            80,567              69,433              
RIVTAM Revenue 25,000              25,000              -                    
Air Quality-Clean Cities 137,500            119,000            18,500              
LTF 726,000            726,000            -                    
Commercial/Service - Admin Portion 101,097            45,141              55,956              
Retail - Admin Portion 118,867            86,597              32,270              
Industrial - Admin Portion 249,133            279,230            (30,097)             
Residential/Multi/Single - Admin Portion 1,045,779         691,415            354,364            
Multi-Family - Admin Portion 129,787            79,009              50,778              
Commercial/Service - Non-Admin Portion 2,426,945         1,128,514         1,298,430         
Retail - Non-Admin Portion 2,852,820         2,164,931         687,889            
Industrial - Non-Admin Portion 5,979,195         6,980,745         (1,001,550)        
Residential/Multi/Single - Non-Admin Portion 25,098,070       17,285,371       7,812,699         
Multi-Family - Non-Admin Portion 3,114,890         1,975,227         1,139,663         
Total Revenues 60,574,824       35,416,142       25,158,682       

Expenditures
Wages & Salaries 2,584,095         1,508,407         1,075,688         
Fringe Benefits 739,956            482,256            257,700            
Total Wages and Benefits 3,384,051         1,990,663         1,393,388         

-                    
Overhead Allocation 2,219,371         1,294,633         924,738            
General Legal Services 597,394            512,289            85,105              
Audit Fees 27,500              20,200              7,300                
Bank Fees 29,000              32,863              (3,863)               
Commissioners Per Diem 62,500              30,000              32,500              
Office Lease 427,060            147,228            279,832            
WRCOG Auto Fuel 750                   320                   430                   
WRCOG Auto Maintenance 100                   29                     71                     
Parking Validations 4,785                2,620                2,165                
Event Support 109,600            61,594              48,006              
General Supplies 25,976              14,449              11,527              
Computer Supplies 11,076              6,652                4,424                
Computer Software 23,126              22,100              1,026                
Rent/Lease Equipment 35,100              17,473              17,627              

For the Month Ending January 31, 2018

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Monthly Budget to Actuals

13



Membership Dues 32,850 17,844 15,006 
Subcriptions/Publications 5,500 279 5,221 
Meeting Support/Services 18,273 5,972 12,301 
Postage 4,285 3,830 455 
Storage 11,000 7,800 3,200 
Computer Hardware 2,643 1,692 951 
Misc. Office Equipment 688 688 (0) 
EV Charging Equipment - 5,975 (5,975) 
Communications-Regular 2,571 9,535 (6,964) 
Communications-Long Distance 500 192 308 
Communications-Cellular 12,961 7,603 5,358 
Communications-Comp Sv 75,009 33,138 41,871 
Communications-Web Site 6,600 7,208 (608) 
Equipment Maintenance - General 10,000 5,737 4,263 
Equipment Maintenance - Computers 25,600 11,662 13,938 
Insurance - General/Business Liason 73,335 66,526 6,809 
WRCOG Auto Insurance 1,570 3,457 (1,887) 
PACE Recording Fees 1,354,775         695,073            659,702            
Seminars/Conferences 26,250 9,722 16,529 
General Assembly Expenditures 300,000            20,154 279,846            
Travel - Mileage Reimbursement 24,950 12,711 12,239 
Travel - Ground Transportation 8,350 2,159 6,191 
Travel - Airfare 31,936 6,271 25,665 
Lodging 17,319 6,410 10,909 
Meals 10,700 3,509 7,191 
Other Incidentals 10,123 8,007 2,116 
Training 17,171 9,060 8,111 
Supplies/Materials 65,492 281 65,211 
Ads 51,571 40,525 11,046 
Education Reimbursement 25,000 2,500 22,500 
Consulting Labor 4,450,276         924,669            3,525,607         
Consulting Expenses 96,466 4,443 92,023 
TUMF Project Reimbursement 39,000,000       8,698,005         30,301,995       
BEYOND Expenditures 2,052,917         470,214            1,582,703         
Computer Equipment Purchases 43,704 14,608 29,096 
Office Furniture Purchases 312,500            265,488            47,012 
Total General Operations 61,587,358       13,545,394       48,041,964       

Total Expenditures 64,971,409       15,536,057       49,435,352       

***Includes 1st quarter budget amendments

14



Item 6.B 

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Technical Advisory Committee 

Staff Report

Subject: WRCOG Committees and Agency Activities Update 

Contact: Rick Bishop, Executive Director, rbishop@wrcog.us, (951) 405-6701 

Date: March 15, 2018 

The purpose of this item is to update the Technical Advisory Committee on noteworthy actions and 
discussions held in recent standing Committee meetings, and to provide general project updates.   

Requested Action: 

1. Receive and file.

Attached are summaries of actions and activities from recent WRCOG standing Committee meetings that have 
taken place since the February 2018 Executive Committee meeting.   

Prior Action: 

March 5, 2018: The Executive Committee received and filed. 

Fiscal Impact: 

This item is for informational purposes only; therefore, there is no fiscal impact. 

Attachments: 

1. WRCOG Committees Activities Matrix (Action items only).
2. Summary recaps from recent Committee meetings.

15

mailto:rbishop@wrcog.us


 

 

 

16



Item 6.B 
WRCOG Committees and Agency 

Activities Update 

Attachment 1 
WRCOG Committees Activities Matrix 

(Action items only) 

17



 

 

 

18



Executive 
Committee

Administration & 
Finance Committee

Technical Advisory 
Committee

Planning Directors 
Committee

Public Works 
Committee

Finance Directors 
Committee

Solid Waste 
Committee

Date of Meeting: 2/5/18 2/14/18 Did not meet Did not meet 2/8/18 Did not meet 2/21/18
Current Programs / Initiatives:

Regional Streetlights Program Received and filed.  n/a Received and filed.  n/a

Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) 
Programs

1) Received WRCOG PACE 
Summary; 2) conducted a Public 
Hearing regarding the inclusion of 
the City of Milpitas and the Town 
of Truckee for the purposes of 
considering the modification of the 
Program Report for the California 
HERO Program to increase the 
Program Area to include such 
additional jurisdictions and to hear 
all interested persons that may 
appear to support or object to, or 
inquire about, the Program; 3) 
Adopt WRCOG Resolution 
Number 03-18; 4) accepted the 
City of Pleasanton as an Associate 
Member; 5) adopted WRCOG 
Resolution Number 04-18; 6) 
approved the revised WRCOG 
Energy Efficiency and Water 
Conservation Administrative 
Guidelines and Program Report 
and Statewide SAMAS 
Commercial Program Handbook; 
and 7) adopted the updated 
WRCOG PACE Consumer 
Protections Policy;

1) Recommend that the Executive 
Committee approve the 1st 
Amendment to Master Bond 
Purchase Agreement between 
WRCOG and Renovate America; 
2) recommended that the 
Executive Committee approve the 
2nd Amendment to the 
Professional Services Agreement 
between WRCOG and David 
Taussig & Associates; and 3) 
directed the WRCOG Executive 
Director to seek a legislative 
exemption from SB 2 on imposed 
fees for PACE real estate 
transactions.

 n/a  n/a

Community Choice Aggregation (CCA) / 
Western Community Energy

 Received and filed. Received and filed.  n/a  n/a

TUMF 1) Approved the TUMF Program 
Ad Hoc Committee’s 
recommendation to maintain the 
current administration and 
management structure of the 
TUMF Program; 2) approved the 
TUMF Program Ad Hoc 
Committee’s recommendation to 
maintain the current structure of 
the TUMF Zone process; and 3) 
approved the TUMF Program Ad 
Hoc Committee’s recommendation 
to have the Public Works 
Committee review the TUMF 
Network criteria and project type 
for future Nexus Study updates to 
address the following areas:
a) expanding the types of projects 
that can be funded by TUMF, 
including active transportation 
projects; b) formalizing a process 
for each TUMF Zone to prioritize 
projects within the Zone; c) 
updating the criteria that is used to 
determine how projects are added 
to the Program through the Nexus 
Study update.

n/a Requested five volunteers to 
participate in interviews regarding 
the existing communications 
strategies WRCOG utilizes for the 
TUMF Program.

 n/a

Fellowship n/a  n/a  n/a  n/a

New Programs / Initiatives:

EXPERIENCE  n/a Received and filed.  n/a  n/a

WRCOG Committees
Activities Matrix

(Action Items Only)

19



20



 

Item 6.B 
WRCOG Committees and Agency 

Activities Update 

Attachment 2 
Summary recaps from recent 

Committee meetings 

21



22



 
Western Riverside Council of Governments 
Executive Committee Meeting Recap 
February 5, 2018 
 

 
Following is a summary of key items discussed at the last Executive Committee meeting. To review the full 
agenda and staff reports for all items, click here. To review the meeting PowerPoint presentations, 
click here. 
 
PACE Programs Update 

• The Executive Committee approved two new jurisdictions into the California HERO Program: 
Milpitas and Truckee, bringing the total number of participants to 392 (WRCOG and California 
HERO Programs). 

• WRCOG updated its Consumer Protection Policies, to which all programs under the WRCOG PACE 
Umbrella must adhere, to incorporate additional protections for property owners who use PACE 
financing including: aligning the right to cancel with recently passed legislation, emphasizing 
enforcement of prohibited marketing practices by contractors, adding income based underwriting 
criteria, and prohibiting the compensation of contractors beyond the cost of a home improvement 
contract. 

Update from the Riverside County Fair Housing Council 
• Rose Mayes, Executive Director, Riverside County Fair Housing Council provided an overview on 

the activities her organization oversees, including a focus on the Mission Heritage Plaza affordable 
housing project, which is a $35 million mixed use project in Riverside that will house the Council’s 
office along with 72 residential units, a Civil Rights Institute, Diversity Center, and plaza. 

WRCOG and SBCTA Awarded Transportation / Climate Adaptation Grant 
• WRCOG submitted a successful Caltrans grant application, in partnership with San Bernardino 

County Transportation Authority (SBCTA), and will receive $582,376 for four components: 
o Establishment of a new “Inland Empire Regional Climate Collaborative;” 
o Completion of city-level, climate related transportation hazards and evacuation maps; 
o Creation of a climate resilient transportation infrastructure guidebook; and 
o A regional climate adaptation and resiliency template general plan element, to help 

jurisdictions comply with recently passed legislation. 
TUMF Update – Ad Hoc Committee recommendations 

• The Committee approved recommendations from the TUMF Ad Hoc Committee that has been 
meeting since April 2017 to review a variety of topics related to TUMF, including the administration 
and management of the Program, Zone process, fee calculations, and the types of projects that can 
be funded.   

• The Committee supported the following Ad Hoc recommendations, and acknowledged that any 
substantive changes to the TUMF Network criteria and Nexus Study process will return to the 
Committee in future meetings for further review and consideration: 

o Maintain the current administration and management structure of the TUMF Program.  
o Maintain the current structure of the TUMF Zone process.  
o Have the Public Works Committee review the TUMF Network criteria and project type for 

future Nexus Study updates to address the following areas:  

23

http://wrcog.us/AgendaCenter/Executive-Committee-5
http://wrcog.us/DocumentCenter/View/2727


 Expanding the types of projects that can be funded by TUMF, including active
transportation projects.

 Formalizing a process for each TUMF Zone to prioritize projects within the Zone.
 Updating the criteria that is used to determine how projects are added to the Program

through the Nexus Study update.
League of Cities Update 

• Erin Sasse provided updates on several bills including two which the League recommends local
jurisdictions oppose: SB 827 (Wiener) – Planning and zoning: transit-rich housing bonus; and SB
623 (Monning) – Water quality: Safe and Affordable Drinking Water Fund.

• The League released a report, Retirement System Sustainability Study and Findings, that confirms
pension costs for cities are approaching unsustainable levels, and cities need more tools and
options to ensure they are able to retain and attract public sector employees and continue to deliver
high quality municipal services to residents.

• The next League of California Cities – Riverside Division dinner will be held on Monday, March 12 in
Canyon Lake.

24

http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/public/search.aspx?id=ad485199-37cd-42cd-8217-d19b4d257119&session=17&s=sb%20827&t=bill
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/public/search.aspx?id=ad485199-37cd-42cd-8217-d19b4d257119&session=17&s=sb%20623&t=bill
http://ct3k1.capitoltrack.com/public/search.aspx?id=ad485199-37cd-42cd-8217-d19b4d257119&session=17&s=sb%20623&t=bill
http://www.cacities.org/2018PensionSurvey


Western Riverside Council of Governments 
Administration & Finance Committee Meeting Recap 
February 14, 2018 

Following is a summary of major items discussed at the February 14, 2018, Administration & Finance 
Committee meeting. To review the full agenda and staff reports, please click here.  To review the meeting 
PowerPoint Presentation, please click here. 

27th Annual General Assembly & Leadership preparations underway 

• The 2018 General Assembly & Leadership Address is scheduled for Thursday, June 21 at the
Morongo Casino, Resort & Spa.

• Based on feedback from Committee members, staff is working on securing Steve Forbes as the
keynote speaker for the event, and once confirmed, will distribute additional information, invitations,
and sponsorship information.

PACE Update – changes to Program fees 

• The Committee recommended that the Executive Committee make several changes to WRCOG’s
PACE Programs to reflect recent legislation and increasing costs of operating PACE programs in
California:

o The first change is related to the HERO Program Master Bond Purchase Agreement
between WRCOG and Renovate America (the HERO Program PACE Provider).  Currently,
the HERO Program receives a 4.99% one-time administrative fee for Program
Administration, and a portion (0.075%) of that fee goes to a bond reserve used to cover
shortfalls to bond holders that result from property owners not paying their annual PACE
assessments.  WRCOG’s Financial Advisor (Public Financial Management) determined that
0.075% of the one-time fee is not adequate to cover a high volume of delinquencies, so the
bond reserve allocation needs to be increased to 0.25%, therefore raising the total one-time
administrative fee to 5.17%.

o The second change is related to annual administrative fees ($25 per PACE assessment) that
covers the costs of placing the assessment onto the tax roll, which is done by WRCOG’s
HERO Program Partner David Taussig & Associates (DTA).  WRCOG’s Financial Advisor
determined that this $25 annual fee needs to be increased by $15, bringing the total annual
fee to $40.  $10 of this increase will augment DTA’s funding for placing assessments on the
tax roll and $5 will augment the Program’s Administrative Account to ensure the Program
could adequately service existing PACE assessments over the next 25-years, in the event of
the Program’s dissolution.

o The third change is related to Senate Bill 2, which became law in September 2017 and
imposes fees of up to $225 on real estate transactions.  Despite WRCOG’s understanding
that this bill would not impact PACE related transactions, County Recorders Offices are now
interpreting the law’s implementation to apply to subject PACE assessments to these new
fees.  To make up for this increase, WRCOG PACE Program staff recommended increasing
the current recording fee (the cost of recording a PACE assessment onto the property tax
bill, paid by the homeowner) from $75 per transaction to $150 per transaction.  Concurrently,
staff will work with other issuers to see if there is interest in pursuing a legislative fix to
exempt PACE from the provisions of SB 2.

Renovate America Fiscal Year 2015/2016 Operational Analysis 
• Per WRCOG’s PACE Consumer Protection Policies, WRCOG conducted an operational analysis of

Renovate America, the HERO Program PACE Provider. Baker Tilly was the firm retained to conduct
the analysis.

25

http://www.wrcog.us/AgendaCenter/Administration-Finance-Committee-3
http://wrcog.us/DocumentCenter/View/2799


• There were a total of 114 testing requirements outlined in the Scope of Work, of which 61 were
sample-based transaction testing and 53 were based on an evaluation of Renovate America’s
processes compared to the applicable Consumer Protection Policy.  To demonstrate a thorough
analysis, 5,274 individual transaction tests were performed across the 61 requirements.  The results
show that 99%, or 5,223 testing points met the requirements of the applicable Consumer Protection
Policy.

• Baker Tilly made 7 observations in the transaction testing and 4 observations in the Program
Process.  WRCOG. It should be noted that during the reporting period, Renovate America made a
number of enhancements which included additional scrutiny on contractor participation, enhanced
confirmed terms calls with property owners, and ensuring the automated system developed to
approve projects is accurate.  Due to the changes, many of the observations have been addressed.

Western Community Energy Update 

• Staff provided an updated on WRCOG’s efforts to launch a Community Choice Aggregation (CCA)
program for interested member jurisdictions, called Western Community Energy.

• Recent actions taken by the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC), which regulates the
existing CCAs in California and dictates the process for new CCAs to launch, have enabled Western
Community Energy to move forward on schedule. Staff anticipates that CCA services could be
available to customers in Western Riverside County by 2019.

• A primary component to consider when creating a CCA is the “exit fee” charged by the existing
Investor Owned Utility, in our case Southern California Edison, on new CCA customers to cover
Edison’s costs of no longer procuring and selling power to many customers—because once a CCA
launches, Edison will continue to provide energy transmission services but the CCA itself chooses
and purchases its own energy sources.

• This exit fee, technically referred to as the Power Charge Indifference Adjustment (PCIA), has been
conservatively factored into all of WRCOG’s feasibility analysis for Western Community Energy, and
will not impact the CCA’s ability to provide competitive, locally-driven power choices for participating
communities in Western Riverside County.  WRCOG staff is continually working with Edison to
determine the most efficient PCIA structure.

26



 
Western Riverside Council of Governments 
Public Works Committee Meeting Recap 
February 8, 2018 
 

Following is a summary of major items discussed at the most recent Public Works Committee meeting. To 
review the full agenda and staff reports, please click here.  To review the meeting PowerPoint Presentation, 
please click here. 
 
Regional Streetlight Program 

 Tyler Masters, WRCOG Program Manager, provided an activities update on the Regional Streetlight 
Program.  The Regional Streetlight Program will assist member jurisdictions with the acquisition and 
retrofit of their Southern California Edison-owned and operated streetlights.  In September 2017, 
WRCOG released a Request for Quotations solicit suppliers interested in providing WRCOG’s 
member agencies with LED lights for the replacement of jurisdiction-owned streetlights.   

 An Evaluation Committee was created to review the proposals received and analyze the lighting 
specifications.  The Evaluation Committee will meet in February with the ultimate goal of providing a 
recommended selection for the WRCOG Committee structure to consider. 

 For more information, please contact Tyler Masters at tmasters@wrcog.us. 
 
TUMF Calculation Handbook 

 Daniel Ramirez-Cornejo, WRCOG Senior Analyst, provided an update on the potential inclusion of a 
category to the TUMF Calculation Handbook for high-cube fulfillment centers.  Staff received a 
number of requests to review this potential category and the Institute of Transportation Engineers 
have updated the trip generation manual to include a specific category for fulfillment centers/parcel 
hubs based on their different trip characteristics. 

 The Public Works Committee directed staff to form a sub-committee to review the available data for 
fulfillment centers/parcel hubs and provide a recommendation for the Public Works Committee to 
consider. 

 For more information, please contact Daniel Ramirez-Cornejo at dramirez-cornejo@wrcog.us.  
 
TUMF Program Communications Review 

 Sarah Brandenberg, Fehr & Peers, provided a presentation on the review of WRCOG’s 
communication strategy for the TUMF Program.  The goal of this exercise is to provide member 
agencies with the necessary information on the TUMF Program to effectively communicate with all 
stakeholders.     

 Staff requested volunteers to participate in interviews regarding WRCOG’s existing communications 
strategy for the TUMF Program.  The Cities of Corona, Jurupa Valley, Murrieta, Temecula, and 
Wildomar volunteered to participate.   

 For more information, please contact Christopher Gray at cgray@wrcog.us.   
 
Local Agency Interest in Big Data 

 Christopher Gray, WRCOG Director of Transportation, presented a Big Data request form to 
determine whether WRCOG should invest in further Big Data initiatives based on actual member 
agency requests. 

27

http://wrcog.us/AgendaCenter/Public-Works-Committee-8
http://wrcog.us/DocumentCenter/View/2778
mailto:tmasters@wrcog.us
mailto:dramirez-cornejo@wrcog.us
mailto:cgray@wrcog.us


 For more information, please contact Christopher Gray at cgray@wrcog.us.

Regional Transportation Prioritization Studies 

 Sarah Brandenberg, Fehr & Peers, provided a presentation on an effort conducted by the Los
Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (Metro) to prioritize transportation projects.

 The Los Angeles Mobility Matrix was developed to identify projects that would be funded by the
recently approved sale tax measure, Measure M.

 The Los Angeles Mobility Matrix is one of three models staff reviewed for the Public Works
Committee to consider for future TUMF Nexus Study updates.

 Staff will hold a workshop in the place of a Public Works Committee meeting in 2018 to review
criteria for prioritizing projects in the TUMF Nexus Study and the Zone Transportation Improvement
Programs.

 For more information, please contact Christopher Gray at cgray@wrcog.us.

Complete Streets Training 

 WRCOG will hold a Complete Streets Training workshop for the Public Works Committee members
on March 8, 2018, between 11:00am and 1:00pm at the WRCOG office (Citrus Tower, 3390
University Avenue, Suite 450, Riverside, CA, 92501.

 The training will be tailored to fit the needs of the WRCOG subregion and WRCOG will hold
subsequent workshops in the future for agency staff and stakeholders.

GoMentum Station Field Visit 

 WRCOG is planning a field visit to the GoMentum Station, a testing facility for autonomous and
connected vehicle technology in Concord, California.  The Contra Costa Transportation Authority and
its partners use the GoMentum Station as a center for transportation research.

 The field visit is tentatively scheduled for April 20, 2018.  WRCOG has secured spots for up to forty
members of the WRCOG Committees.  If interested in participating in this field visit, please contact
Christopher Gray at cgray@wrcog.us.

28

mailto:cgray@wrcog.us
mailto:cgray@wrcog.us
mailto:cgray@wrcog.us


Western Riverside Council of Governments 
Solid Waste Committee Meeting Recap 
February 21, 2018 

Following is a summary of major items discussed at the February 21, 2018, Solid Waste 
Committee meeting. To review the full agenda and staff reports, please click here.  To review 
the meeting PowerPoint Presentation, please click here. 

Creative Outdoor Advertising 

• Creative Outdoor Advertising (COA), a national company with a focus on municipal
recycling programs, presented their program which increases pedestrian recycling and
provides cities with a monthly revenue stream. COA installs and maintains the
customized bins that are typically placed in parks and other municipal properties.

• For additional information, contact Marc Oosterholt at MarcO@CreativeOutdoor.com or
at (866) 650-2828.

Waste Hauler Update 

• CR&R Environmental Services provided an update on their Anaerobic Digester (AD),
located at their facility in Perris.  The regional waste hauler collects organic material
such as grass clippings and food waste from residential and commercial customers and
transports the material to the Organic Recovery Facility (ORF).  The organic material is
converted into two products: compost and biogas. The AD facility has a targeted goal of
four phases until it is fully operational; phase two is almost complete.

• For additional information, contact CR&R Sustainability Coordinator, Ignacio Valdivia
at ignaciov@crrmail.com.

Legislative Activities 

• Staff tracks legislation relevant to the WRCOG 2018 Legislative Platform with regard to
supporting the increase of markets for recyclable or compostable materials and funding
for programs to reduce litter and illegal dumping.  WRCOG supports legislation that
implements Extended Producer Responsibility principles aimed at removing the cost
burden for disposal of these products from local jurisdictions and agencies.

• Committee members received updates on three Assembly Bills and two Senate Bills that
could improve jurisdictions’ abilities to reach recycling goals and are primarily directed at
schools and commercial businesses.

• Members shared current information on SB 1383, which became law in September
2016 (SB 1383(Lara) Chapter 395, Statutes of 2016), and established methane
emissions reduction targets in a statewide effort to reduce emissions of short-lived
climate pollutants in various sectors of California’s economy.

29

http://wrcog.us/AgendaCenter/Solid-Waste-Committee-9
http://wrcog.us/DocumentCenter/View/2859
mailto:MarcO@CreativeOutdoor.com
mailto:ignaciov@crrmail.com
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201520160SB1383


• CalRecycle will hold a workshop on April 6, 2018, in the Schulman Auditorium at 1775
Dove Lane in Carlsbad to discuss the SB 1383 implementation process. WRCOG staff
will attend this upcoming workshop and report back to the Solid Waste Committee.

• For additional information, contact Dolores Sanchez Badillo, Senior Analyst,
at dbadillo@wrcog.us or at (951) 405-6735.

Electronic Annual Reports Update 

• WRCOG completed 2016 CalRecycle Electronic Annual Reports for eleven member
cities in 2017.  Some cities, but not all, received a letter about stagnant numbers or
inconsistent numbers from CalRecycle. In conversations with CalRecycle, staff learned
the letters were sent to encourage cities to utilize more and better methods to increase
recycling diversion, including additional planning and programs targeted at commercial
businesses and multi-family housing complexes. The goal is to reach the State’s
mandated 75% diversion requirement.

• For additional information, contact Kyle Rodriguez, Staff Analyst,
at krodriguez@wrcog.us or (951) 405-6721.

CalRecycle Recovery Update and Review of Electronic Annual Reports 

• CalRecycle’s, Jill Larner, Supervisor, Senior Environmental Scientist, is the new contact
for Western Riverside County in regard to the Electronic Annual Reports. Two new Local
Assistance and Market Development (LAMD) staff will be in place soon.  Ms. Larner
provided an update on CalRecycle information to the Committee.

• Some cities in Southern California were selected for additional review in regard to their
diversion status, and Ms. Larner covered ways cities can improve their diversion rates:

o Covered generators under the law need to be consistent from year to year. If
fluctuations occur there needs to be reasonable explanations.

o In January 2019, the covered business generators under MCR and MORe will
merge (four cubic yard per week of municipal solid waste). Jurisdictions need to
track the covered generators who are not using a franchise hauler. The tonnage
is not required but is helpful if can be provided.

o Education and outreach follow up are effective if consistent. Compliance should
then increase year to year. Education and outreach can be done by the
jurisdiction, franchise hauler, regional cooperatives, social media, PSA’s,
community presentations, property manager associations, city manager
communications, personalized letters, business visits, etc.

o Noncompliant generators need to be directly contacted with jurisdiction
letterhead. This bring integrity to the message and eliminates any perception that
the franchise is simply trying to sell more of their services. If businesses are not
signing up the jurisdiction needs to track the reasons why they are not signing up
for recycling and organics services.

o In January 2017, CalRecycle’s director sent a letter to all California jurisdictions
stating that those that are not complying could be referred to CalRecycle’s
compliance unit at any time.

• For additional information, contact Dolores Sanchez Badillo, Senior Analyst,
at dbadillo@wrcog.us or (951) 405-6735.

30

mailto:dbadillo@wrcog.us
mailto:krodriguez@wrcog.us
mailto:dbadillo@wrcog.us


Item 6.C 

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Technical Advisory Committee 

Staff Report

Subject: Western Community Energy Activities Update 

Contact: Barbara Spoonhour, Director of Community Choice Aggregation Development, 
bspoonhour@wrcog.us, (951) 405-6760 

Date: March 15, 2018 

The purpose of this item is to provide the Committee with an update on the status of implementing Western 
Community Energy (WCE), a Community Choice Aggregation for participating jurisdictions in the subregion. 

Requested Action: 

1. Receive and file.

Community Choice Aggregation (CCA) allows cities and counties to aggregate their buying power to secure 
electrical energy supply contracts on a region-wide basis.  In California, CCA (Assembly Bill 117) was 
chaptered in September 2002 and allows for local jurisdictions to form a CCA for this purpose.  Several local 
jurisdictions throughout California are pursuing the formation of CCAs as a way to provide local control in rate-
making, and potentially lower energy costs and/or provide a “greener” energy supply.  WRCOG’s Executive 
Committee has directed staff to pursue a separate agency for the implementation of CCA for Western 
Riverside County.   

IOU Petition for Modification to the Code of Conduct 

On January 30, 2018, the Joint Utilities (IOUs), representing Pacific Gas and Electric (PG&E), San Diego Gas 
& Electric Company (SDG&E), and Southern California Edison (SCE), filed a petition (Attachment 2) to the 
California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) for a modification to the Code of Conduct that would allow them 
to communicate with local governments and the media regarding CCAs.  While the petition at face value 
seems reasonable (in that the IOUs would be able to answer direct questions regarding CCAs), a deeper 
examination indicates something far from that, with unknown implications that could allow the IOUs to unfairly 
influence a local government’s decision regarding participation in a CCA.   

Background on the Code of Conduct:  Senate Bill 790 (Chaptered in 2012) required the CPUC to adopt a code 
of conduct, associated rules, and enforcement procedures, to govern the conduct of the IOUs treatment of 
Community Choice Aggregators, and established an expedited complaint procedure applicable to complaints 
filed by CCAs against such corporations.  The rules and procedures are intended to provide CCAs with the 
opportunity to compete on a fair and equal basis with other load serving entities, and to prevent investor-owned 
electric utilities from using their position or market power to undermine the development or operation of 
aggregators.  The Code of Conduct was also established to assist customers by enhancing their ability to 
make educated choices among authorized electric providers.  

The Petition filed from the IOUs alleges that local governments are not being informed on the operating costs 
of a CCA and that the Power Charge Indifference Adjustment (PCIA), or Exit Fee, is not being clearly 
articulated to the local governments.  In addition, SCE specifically calls out a number of cities that are in the 

31

mailto:bspoonhour@wrcog.us


process of scheduling items to consider CCA participation, including the cities of Murrieta and Wildomar. 
WRCOG takes exception to the IOUs broad, unsupported allegation.  

Regarding the PCIA, WRCOG is party to the CPUC Proceeding which is examining different models to ensure 
that customers that remain with the IOUs (bundled customers) are not negatively impacted by a CCA being 
formed.  WRCOG has openly supported the need to ensure that bundled customers should not be burdened 
and staff continues to actively seek solutions (i.e., change in the PCIA methodology, updated indexes, etc.).  In 
fact, WRCOG has been having recent conversations with SCE on how the impacts could be minimized.  As 
staff has reported in the past, the Feasibility Study conducted for the subregion included a conservative (high) 
PCIA charge, which still showed a potential savings to customers.   

Regarding the costs associated with implementation, staff has selected a team of consultants (The Energy 
Authority (TEA), Calpine Energy, EES Consulting, Public Financial Management, and Best, Best & Krieger) 
that will assist with the implementation of the CCA.  In fact, TEA and Calpine Energy are providing a financial 
solution so that WCE’s upfront implementation capital needs are significantly reduced; this includes all bonding 
requirements held by the CPUC and SCE, and allows WCE to develop a rate structure that could provide a 
savings to the subregion.   

Staff continues to provide presentations and meet with its member jurisdictions to objectively present and 
discuss benefits and risks of CCA implementation   

The benefits include: 

• Local control over rate setting
• Customer choice in their energy supplier
• Customer choice in their energy mix (i.e., more renewables)
• Competitive / lower rates

The risks include: 

• Potential regulatory changes
• Potential increased energy costs
• Potential decrease in the IOUs rates

The release of this Petition came right when some of our member jurisdictions are considering joining the CCA, 
the CPUC is dealing with the Exit Fees in an open proceeding, and the CPUC adopted a Resolution which to 
provide a strategy for dealing with short-term Resource Adequacy costs.  Unfortunately, it seems to be creating 
additional confusion in the process; it would also stifle other aspiring CCA efforts throughout the state.  Also, 
WRCOG, along with LACCE and DCE, are in negotiations with SCE to remedy some of these aforementioned 
issues. 

Comments to the petition were due on March 1, 2018.  WRCOG worked with LACCE and DCE to prepare 
comments that outlined that the IOUs presently have the ability to provide factual statements regarding CCAs; 
they also have the ability to lobby against CCAs using the CPUC guidelines.   

California Public Utilities Commission Resolution E-4907 Update 

On December 8, 2017, WRCOG staff received notification that the CPUC was scheduled to hear an item on 
Draft Resolution E-4907 at its January 11, 2018, meeting (later extended until February 8, 2018).  The 
Resolution proposed an informal process of review of CCA Implementation Plans pursuant to the requirements 
and directives of Public Utilities Code Section 366.21 and Decision (D.) 05-12-041.  This process of review will 
coordinate with the timeline of the mandatory forecast filings of the CPUC’s Resource Adequacy (RA) Program 
to ensure that newly launched and expanding CCAs comply with RA requirements, as established by Section 
380, before they serve customers.  RA is a regulatory construct developed to ensure that there will be sufficient 
resources available to serve electric demand under all but the most extreme conditions.  This stems from the 
Electricity Crisis of 2000 where the state determined that it was necessary to develop a system that would 

32



prevent the kind of power shortages, extreme price spikes, and rolling blackouts that occurred during a 
turbulent period.  

After receiving numerous comments on Draft Resolution E-4907, the CPUC staff released an Updated 
Resolution on February 2, 2018 (Attachment 1), which the CPUC Commission adopted on February 8, 2018. 

The revised adopted Resolution provides a way for Western Community Energy to move forward with CCA 
formation through the submittal of a “waiver” to the CPUC for approval regarding the purchasing of RA from the 
Investor Owned Utility (IOU).  However, there are some issues in the Resolution that still need clarification.  
Staff worked with Desert Community Energy (DCE), the emerging CCA comprised of jurisdictions in the 
Coachella Valley, to submit a letter to the CPUC regarding these issues; however, the Commission adopted 
the Resolution in its entirety, with no changes. 

The following outlines the new waiver process and a timeline for the 2018 transition year as contained in the 
revised Draft Resolution.   

1. The New Waiver Process:  CCAs may request a waiver to begin service in new or expanded territory prior
to January 1, 2019, so long as either:
a. the CCA and the IOU mutually agree on RA cost responsibility for 2018, and the CCA submits a Tier 1

Advice Letter 75 days ahead of the service date; or
b. the CCA and the IOU do not agree on RA cost responsibility for 2018, and the CCA submits a Tier 1

Advice Letter 75 days ahead of service date, and also files a motion in the RA proceeding seeking a
determination on cost responsibility within 60 days of the Advice Letter submittal.

2. Timeline for the 2018 Transition Year:  There are three categories in this transition:
a. Implementation plan submissions prior to December 8 are “not impacted”:  Los Angeles County Clean

Energy (LACCE), East Bay Clean Energy, Redwood Coast Energy Authority expansion to Ferndale,
Monterey Bay Community Power, Pioneer Community Energy, City of Rancho Mirage, Valley Clean
Energy Alliance, City of Solana Beach, City of San Jose, and the Marin Clean Energy expansion.

b. Submissions after December 8 will serve load no sooner than January 1, 2019, unless the waiver
process is followed:  Desert Community Energy, King City, Riverside County Unincorporated, Silicon
Valley Clean Energy expansion, and the LACCE expansion.

c. Additional CCAs submissions on or before March 1, 2018, will serve load in January 1, 2019.

Power Charge Indifference Adjustment Update 

As background, on June 29, 2017, the CPUCs opened a proceeding (R17-06-026, which WRCOG and CVAG 
are party to) to consider alternatives to the amount that CCA and Direct Access customers pay in order to keep 
remaining Investor Owned Utility customers financially unaffected by their departure, which is required by 
legislation.  Legislation also requires that departing customers do not experience cost increases as a result of 
an allocation of costs that were not incurred on behalf of the departing load.  The PCIA is the mechanism to 
ensure that customers who remain with the utility do not end up taking on the long-term financial obligations 
the utility incurred on behalf of now-departed customers.  Examples of such financial obligations include utility 
expenditures to build power plants and, more commonly, long-term power purchase contracts with 
independent power producers. 

The Administrative Law Judge (ALJ) which is overseeing the Proceeding, recently revised the PCIA schedule, 
as follows: 

Schedule for Track 2: 
Evaluation and Possible Modification of the PCIA Methodology 

Event Original 
Schedule 

Joint Parties’ 
Request 

Joint IOUs’ 
Compromise 

Revised 
Schedule 

Utility production of ALJ-requested 
data template 2/22/18 3/2/18 

33



Testimony served and submitted to 
Supporting Documents 3/12/18 4/16/18 3/26/18 4/2/18 

Concurrent rebuttal testimony served 4/2/18 5/7/18 4/23/18 4/23/18 

Evidentiary Hearings 
Commission Courtroom 
505 Van Ness Avenue  
San Francisco, California 

4/16/18 5/21/18 5/7/18 5/7/18 

Hearings end 4/20/18 5/25/18 5/11/18 5/11/18 

Concurrent opening briefs/ Request 
for final oral argument filed and 
served 5/11/18 6/15/18 6/1/18 6/1/18 

Concurrent reply briefs 5/25/18 6/29/18 6/15/18 6/15/18 

Proposed Decision mailed for 
comment July, 2018 8/10/18 7/20/18 Late July, 2018 

Jurisdictional Meetings 

Staff continues to meet one-on-one with elected officials throughout the subregion to provide a high level 
overview of the Program.  Once these meetings conclude, staff is requesting to provide presentations at either 
a Working Group, Study Session, and/or City Council meeting to gain comments from the community and to 
determine whether the Council wants to direct its staff to come back with an action.   

• February 6, 2018, staff provided a presentation to the Beaumont City Council.  Beaumont staff was directed
to bring the item back at a future meeting for some type of action.

• February 14, 2018, staff provided a presentation to the Wildomar City Council
• February 27, 2018, staff provided a presentation to the Lake Elsinore City Council
• March 13, 2018, staff will provide a presentation to the Hemet City Council

Upcoming Events 

Community Choice Energy Summit 
April 24 – 26, 2018 
Marriott San Diego La Jolla 

Infocast is coordinating the 2018 Community Choice Energy Summit, which will take a deeper look into 
renewable power planning, procurement and financial strategies, initiatives for developing local energy 
resources and projects, and emerging advanced methods including customer analytics, energy portfolio risk 
management, and demand energy resources (DERs).  This year also features a special session designed to 
provide executives from working CCAs, and Mayors, City Managers and Committee/Task Force Chairs from 
prospective CCAs, an opportunity to network and share insights, best practices and concerns, and a panel 
focused just on Southern California CCAs and municipalities.  

For more information, please visit http://infocastinc.com/event/community-choice-energy/. 

The Business of Local Energy Symposium 
June 4 – 5, 2018 
Sheraton Hotel, Sacramento 

The Center for Climate Protection, along with the Local Government Commission (LGC) and the Local 
Government Sustainable Energy Coalition (LGSEC) are organizing the 3rd Business of Local Energy 

34

http://infocastinc.com/event/community-choice-energy/


Symposium.  This year’s theme, “Community Choice: Power with Purpose,” which looks at accelerating CCA 
adoption, sharing best practices, and creating more benefits for communities.  There will also be a pre-
symposium workshop on the afternoon of June 4th on distributed energy resource (DER) projects that build 
local resiliency, provide unique customer services and contribute to local economic development. 

For more information, please visit https://climateprotection.org/business-local-energy-symposium-2018/. 

Prior Action: 

January 10, 2018: The Administration & Finance Committee created an SCE negotiations Ad Hoc 
Committee to work through the Draft Resolution issues with Southern California Edison. 

Fiscal Impact: 

This item is for informational purposes only; therefore, there is no fiscal impact. 

Attachments: 

1. Updated Draft Resolution E-4907.
2. Joint Utilities Petition to Modify the Code of Conduct.

35

https://climateprotection.org/business-local-energy-symposium-2018/


36



Item 6.C 
Western Community Energy 

Activities Update 

Attachment 1 
Updated Draft Resolution E-4907

37



 

 

 

38



DRAFT 

208956263 1 

PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
   Item #9 (Rev. 1) 

Agenda ID #16190 
ENERGY DIVISION    RESOLUTION E-4907 

   February 8, 2018 

R E S O L U T I O N

Resolution E-4907.  Registration Process for Community Choice 
Aggregators. 

PROPOSED OUTCOME: 

 This resolution would publish and implement a registration

process for Community Choice Aggregators.

SAFETY CONSIDERATIONS: 

 There is no impact on safety.

ESTIMATED COST: 

 Potential unquantifiable bundled ratepayer savings due to

elimination of cost shifting of resource adequacy costs.

By the Commission’s own initiative. 
__________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 

The Commission through this Resolution proposes an informal process of 

review of Community Choice Aggregation (CCA) Implementation Plans 

pursuant to the requirements and directives of Public Utilities Code Section 

366.21 and Decision (D.) 05-12-041. This process of review will coordinate with 

the timeline of the mandatory forecast filings of the Commission’s Resource 

Adequacy program to ensure that newly launched and expanding CCAs 

comply with Resource Adequacy requirements, as established by Section 380, 

before they serve customers. 

1 All further references are to the Public Utilities Code unless otherwise specified. 

39



Resolution E-4907 / SC8           DRAFT                February 8, 2018 

2 

This Resolution will require Community Choice Aggregators (CCAs) to submit 

to a process that includes a timeline for submission of Implementation Plans; a 

requirement to “meet and confer” between the CCA and the incumbent utility 

that can be triggered by either the CCA or the utility; a registration packet 

including a CCA’s service agreement and bond; and a Commission authorized 

date to begin service.  

This resolution could delay the dates in which some CCAs serve customers but 

for a limited period of time in most circumstances no longer than one year and if 

a new or expanding CCA cannot comply with the new timelines the resolution 

creates a process where the CCA can still seek a waiver to serve customers 

within several months of approval of their implementation plans. 

This Resolution, in part, is responsive to the directive of D.05-12-041 instructing 

the Executive Director to publish steps for the submission of Implementation 

Plans, and addresses the current rapid growth of CCA programs. The filing 

deadlines in this Resolution are intended to coordinate with the timeline for 

mandatory forecast filings in the Resource Adequacy program. 

BACKGROUND 

Overview of Community Choice Aggregation  

In 2002 the State Legislature enacted Assembly Bill (AB) 117 (codified at 

Section 366.2), authorizing the creation of Community Choice Aggregators 

(CCAs). The Commission implemented the provisions of AB 117 in D.04-

12-046, and D.05-12-041, among other Decisions.

D.05-12-041 directed the Executive Director to prepare and publish

instructions for CCAs and utilities which would provide a forum for the

CCA and the utility to understand the CCA’s implementation plans and to

assure that the CCA is able to comply with utility tariffs. The instructions

should include a timeline and descriptions of the procedures for

submitting and certifying receipt of the Implementation Plan, notice to

customers, and notice to CCAs of the appropriate Cost Responsibility

Surcharge (CRS) and registration of CCAs.

40



Resolution E-4907 / SC8                   DRAFT                                     February 8, 2018 

3 
 

After D.05-12-041, no CCA came into formation until 2010 with the launch 

of Marin Clean Energy.  From 2010 to 2015, two CCAs launched serving 

approximately 135,000 customer accounts statewide.  From 2016 to 2017, 

CCA formation accelerated and 12 more communities launched or 

submitted CCA Implementation Plans to the Commission.  As a result of 

this rapid growth in CCAs, it is appropriate now to address the directives 

of D.05-12-041 to create and publish processes for CCA implementation 

and registration. 

 
  
 

Overview of CCA Implementation Plan Requirements  

 

Section 366.2 authorizes the aggregation of electric loads by CCAs and 

establishes the broad requirements for implementing a CCA program. 

Section 366.2 grants the Commission authority over CCA implementation, 

and includes directives on the policy requirements of CCA programs, 

necessary implementation documents, timing requirements and deadlines 

for CCA implementation. 

 

Section 366.2(c)(8) establishes the authority of the Commission to designate a 

CCA’s start date with consideration of the impact on the electrical corporation’s 

annual procurement: 

 

No entity proposing community choice aggregation shall act to 

furnish electricity to electricity consumers within its boundaries 

until the commission determines the cost recovery that must be 

paid by the customers of that proposed community choice 

aggregation program, and provided for in subdivisions (d), (e), 

and (f). The commission shall designate the earliest possible 

effective date for implementation of a community choice 

aggregation program, taking into consideration the impact on 

any annual procurement plan of the electrical corporation that 

has been approved by the commission.2 

                                              
2 Section 366.2(c)(8). 

41



Resolution E-4907 / SC8                   DRAFT                                     February 8, 2018 

4 
 

 

Policy Requirements for CCAs 

Any CCA program must provide for universal access, reliability, equitable 

treatment of all classes of customers, and fulfill requirements established by state 

law or by the commission concerning aggregated service.3   

 

Section 366.2(c)(4) states: 

 A community choice aggregator establishing electrical load 

aggregation shall prepare a statement of intent with the 

implementation plan. Any community choice load aggregation 

established pursuant to this section shall provide for the 

following: 

(A) Universal access. 

(B) Reliability. 

(C) Equitable treatment of all classes of customers. 

(D) Any requirements established by state law or by the 

commission concerning aggregated service, including 

those rules adopted by the commission pursuant to 

paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of Section 8341 for the 

application of the greenhouse gases emission performance 

standard to community choice aggregators. 

 

Additionally, the implementation of a CCA program “shall not result in a 

shifting of costs between the customers of the community choice aggregator and 

the bundled service customers of an electrical corporation.”4 

 

Implementation Documents and Requirements 

Section 366.2 requires that CCAs submit an Implementation Plan and a 

Statement of Intent to the Commission and sets forth seven elements that 

Implementation Plans, and any subsequent changes to implementation 

plans, must contain.5  Section 394.25(e) also requires that “an electric 

                                              
3 Section 366.2(c)(4). 

4 Section 366.2(a)(4). 

5 Section 366.2(c)(3) requires that Implementation Plans and any subsequent changes to 

implementation plans must be considered and adopted at a duly noticed public hearing and 

42



Resolution E-4907 / SC8           DRAFT                February 8, 2018 

5 

service provider or community choice aggregator shall post a bond or 

demonstrate insurance sufficient to cover those reentry fees” in the event 

of an involuntary return of CCA customers back to bundled service.6 

Timing and Deadlines 

The Public Utilities Code establishes requirements that direct the Commission 

how and when to respond to Implementation Plan filings. Within 10 days of an 

Implementation Plan filing, the Commission must notify the respective electrical 

cooperation of the filing.7 Additionally, within 90 days of the filing of an 

Implementation Plan, the commission must “certify that it has received the plan” 

as well as provide the CCA with its findings regarding cost recovery.8  

must contain all the following:  (A)An organizational structure of the program, its operations, 

and its funding.(B)Ratesetting and other costs to participants, (C)Provisions for disclosure and 

due process in setting rates and allocating costs among participants. (D)The methods for 

entering and terminating agreements with other entities. (E)The rights and responsibilities of 

program participants, including, but not limited to, consumer protection procedures, credit 

issues, and shutoff procedures. (F)Termination of the program. (G)A description of the third 

parties that will be supplying electricity under the program, including, but not limited to, 

information about financial, technical, and operational capabilities. 

6 Regarding the bond requirement in Section 394.25(e), in 2007 the Commission established in 
Resolution E-4133 an interim bond amount of $100,000. Currently the Commission is examining 
the permanent CCA bond calculation methodology in R.03-10-003. 

7 Section 366.2(c)(7) states: 

Within 90 days after the community choice aggregator establishing load aggregation 

files its implementation plan, the commission shall certify that it has received the 

implementation plan, including any additional information necessary to determine a 

cost-recovery mechanism. After certification of receipt of the implementation plan and 

any additional information requested, the commission shall then provide the 

community choice aggregator with its findings regarding any cost recovery that must be 

paid by customers of the community choice aggregator to prevent a shifting of costs as 

provided for in subdivisions (d), (e), and (f). 
8 Section 366.2(c)(7). 

43



Resolution E-4907 / SC8                   DRAFT                                     February 8, 2018 

6 
 

Finally, the CCA “shall register with the Commission, which may require 

additional information to ensure compliance with basic consumer protection 

rules and other procedural matters.”9 

 

Overview of CCA Resource Adequacy Requirements 

As more CCAs launch, it is important to consider how a registration process 

interacts with a CCA’s compliance with its Resource Adequacy requirements. 

 

All Load-Serving Entities (LSEs) are subject to Resource Adequacy (RA) 

requirements pursuant to Section 380. Section 380(k) defines LSEs to include 

CCAs. Additionally, D.05-12-041 in Conclusion of Law 19 states that “The 

utilities will not procure power on behalf of CCA customers as part of their 

resource adequacy planning.”  

 

The Commission in D.04-10-035 adopted a protocol which required LSEs to 

submit load forecasts using their best estimates of future customers and their 

loads. The Commission established a preliminary load forecast submission 

timeline in D.05-10-042.10 

 

There are two mandatory annual load forecast deadlines that an LSE must 

comply with in order to receive an annual RA obligation responsibility for the 

following year.11  First, an LSE must file a preliminary load forecast by mid-April 

for the following calendar year. An LSE then must file a revised forecast in 

                                              
9 Section 366.2(c)(15). 

10 D.05-10-042, page 83. 

11 D.04-10-035 adopted a protocol whereby LSEs are required to submit load forecasts using 

their best estimates of future customers and their loads. D.05-10-042 at page 83 specified the 

preliminary load forecast submission timeline and set April 15 as the date for the submission of 

preliminary load forecasts. D.11-06-022 at page 38 modified the year-ahead forecast timeline to 

include optional revisions to be submitted by Aug. 19th of each year. D.17-06-027 ordered that 

the revised August forecast be mandatory.  

44



Resolution E-4907 / SC8                   DRAFT                                     February 8, 2018 

7 
 

August.12 The August forecast was intended to refine and improve the accuracy 

of April forecast.13 

 

The timeline of RA load forecast submissions has practical implications for newly 

forming CCAs and expanding CCAs. If an existing or pre-operational CCA does 

not submit an annual load forecast, they are not allocated a year-ahead RA 

obligation for the following year. In this scenario, the incumbent utility remains 

responsible for that load and procures RA for those customers, even if those 

customers are about to be served by a CCA. This scenario is most likely to occur 

if a CCA launches or expands service to customers (or additional customers in 

the case of an existing, yet expanding CCA) after the RA annual load forecast 

deadlines without filing an annual load forecast. 

 

As a result, the utilities incur short-term power purchase costs for the customers 

of CCAs in their launch or expansion year. Utilities procuring for CCAs in their 

first launch or expansion year creates a cost shifting challenge.  D.11-12-018 

excluded power purchase transactions less than a year in term from the total 

portfolio calculation of the Power Charge Indifference Adjustment (PCIA).  

Consequently, Resource Adequacy contracts of over one year are captured by the 

PCIA, but Resource Adequacy contracts of less than one year are not captured by 

the PCIA. Therefore, such costs are borne by bundled customers, potentially 

resulting in millions of dollars annually of stranded costs and potentially in 

contravention of the indifference requirement of Section 366.2 

 

Energy Division issued data requests to PG&E confirming the existence of 

stranded costs. Responses to these data requests were confidential because of the 

market-sensitive information they contain.  The Commission does not rely on 

those responses in making the determinations made herein.   

 

Public information illustrates the scale of load migration happening in the year-

ahead RA program. Existing and new CCAs that were not a part of the year 

                                              
12 Although D.11-06-022 modified the year-ahead forecast timeline to include optional revisions 

to be submitted by Aug. 19th of each year, later D.17-06-027 (OP 7) ordered that the revised 

August forecast be mandatory. The exact date of the August deadline varies by year. 

13 D.17-06-027, Finding of Fact 11. 

45



Resolution E-4907 / SC8           DRAFT                February 8, 2018 

8 

ahead 2018 RA process but plan to serve load in 2018 would have been allocated 

a System Peak RA requirement of approximately 3,616 MW and a local RA 

requirement of approximately 1,793 MW.  These year-ahead RA requirements 

were met by the utilities that currently serve these customers.  Some of these 

costs are recovered by the PCIA, however, any contracts less than one year are 

not captured by the PCIA and are borne by remaining bundled customers. Due 

to the confidentiality of utility’s market position, the proportion of those 

contracts that are less than one year cannot be disclosed publicly.  

In addition, if the California Independent System Operator (CAISO) procures 

back-stop capacity through its capacity procurement mechanism (CPM), it 

appears based on the CAISO’s tariff language these costs will be allocated only to 

those LSEs that exist at the time of the designation (annual designations would 

occur in December, before the compliance year).  It is not yet clear if the PCIA 

addresses this potential cost-shifting issue. 

DISCUSSION 

D.05-12-041 ordered the Executive Director to develop and publish two distinct

processes in Ordering Paragraphs (OP) 8 and 10 of that Decision.

D.05-12-041 Ordering Paragraph 8 Implementation

Ordering Paragraph 8 requires the Executive Director to develop and publish 

the steps of an informal process of review that provides a forum for the CCA 

and the utility to understand the CCA’s Implementation Plans and assures that 

the CCA is able to comply with the utility’s tariffs. 

The goal of this “forum” is to “facilitate the smoother operation of the CCA 

where its policies, practices, and decisions may affect the utility and its 

customers.”14 The operation and launch of a CCA program inherently requires 

logistical coordination between the utility and the CCA, and many CCA-utility 

partnerships must engage in these kinds of information-sharing discussions to 

facilitate smooth transitions to CCA service.  

14 OP 8, D.05-12-041. 

46



Resolution E-4907 / SC8                   DRAFT                                     February 8, 2018 

9 
 

 

In order to comply with the directive of Ordering Paragraph 8, at the request of 

either the CCA or the utility, the parties must “meet and confer” as soon as 

reasonably practical. If the first attempts at resolution are not successful, the 

parties are required to meet in person. Should the parties be unable to reach 

consensus after the in-person meeting(s), either party may request that Energy 

Division assist by sponsoring a moderated in-person discussion between the 

parties. Such a request should come in the form of a request to the Director of 

Energy Division explaining the general nature of any unresolved issues 

regarding CCA compliance with utility tariffs. During the “meet and confer” 

parties shall discuss the contents of the CCA’s Implementation Plan and any 

relevant issues with compliance with utility tariffs.  

 

D.05-12-041 Ordering Paragraph 10 Implementation 

 

Ordering Paragraph 10 of D.05-12-041 requires the Executive Director to 

prepare and publish instructions for CCAs and utilities that includes a 

timeline and describes the procedures for submitting and certifying receipt of 

the Implementation Plan, notice to customers, notice to CCAs of the 

appropriate Cost Responsibility Surcharges (CRS), and registration of CCAs.   

 

Adopted Timeline for 2019 and Beyond 

 

Appendices A and B of this Resolution include a timeline of the CCA registration 

process, including the timeline adopted by this Resolution. 

 

The Prior Timeline in Appendix B reflects the current practice of CCA 

registration. The statutory deadlines in the Prior Timeline were established in 

Section 366.2. However, several milestones in the Registration process did not 

have deadlines defined by statute. These milestones are represented as 

“undefined” in the Prior Timeline. D.12-05.041 included an illustrative 

registration timeline based on statutory deadlines associated with CCA 

implementation.15  

 

                                              
15 D.05-12-041, Attachment D. 

47



Resolution E-4907 / SC8                   DRAFT                                     February 8, 2018 

10 
 

The Adopted Timeline modifies the Prior Timeline and the Illustrative Timeline 

(proposed in D.05-12-041 Attachment D) in several respects. First, the Adopted 

Timeline includes a deadline by which Implementation Plans must be received in 

order for CCAs to serve new load beginning January 1 of the following year. The 

goal of this requirement is to assist the proposed CCA in securing the 

certification and registration within enough time to file its preliminary load 

forecast by mid-April in order to serve load the following calendar year. 

 

Second, the Adopted Timeline includes the Meet-and-Confer option for the CCA 

and the utility to discuss how the CCA will conform its operations to the utility’s 

tariff requirements. Third, the Adopted Timeline includes the deadlines for 

submission of CCA RA load forecasts in the year prior to a CCA beginning to 

serve load. Fourth, the Adopted Timeline includes a deadline by which the CCA 

must submit its Registration Packet and receive confirmation of registration.  

 

In order to coordinate the launch of a new or expanding CCA with the RA 

requirements, the Implementation Plan and Statement of Intent must be 

submitted to the Commission on or before January 1 in order to serve load in the 

following year.16 

 

These requirements are authorized by Section 366.2(c)(4), which requires a CCA 

to  “provide for universal access, reliability, equitable treatment of all classes of 

customers, and any requirements established by state law or by the 

commission concerning aggregated service.”17 Additionally, Load-Serving 

Entities, including CCAs, must comply with RA requirements pursuant to 

Section 380(a). Current RA rules require all LSEs to file an annual load forecast if 

they plan to serve load in the following year. Additionally, Section 366.2(c)(8) 

also supports this action and compels the Commission to “designate the earliest 

possible effective date for implementation of a community choice aggregation 

program, taking into consideration the impact on any annual procurement plan 

of the electrical corporation that has been approved by the commission.”  

 

                                              
16 For example, a new or expanding CCA intending to serve new load in 2020 must submit its 

Implementation Plan on or before January 1, 2019. 

17 Section 366.2(c)(4), emphasis added. 

48



Resolution E-4907 / SC8           DRAFT                February 8, 2018 

11 

Thus, in order to comply with the year-ahead RA process, Implementation Plans, 

including Implementation Plans of an existing CCA that expands its territory, 

must be received by January 1 in order to serve load in the following year 

Adopted Timeline for Transition Year Only (2018) 

a. CCAs that filed by December 8, 2017

Prior to the mailing of the draft of this Resolution on December 8, 2017, the 

following Implementation Plans were submitted to the Commission: 
1. Los Angeles Community Choice Energy

2. East Bay Community Energy

3. Redwood Coast Energy Authority Expansion to the City of Ferndale

4. Monterey Bay Community Power

5. Pioneer Community Energy

6. City of Rancho Mirage

7. Valley Clean Energy Alliance

8. City of Solana Beach

9. City of San Jose

10. MCE’s expansion to the unincorporated areas of Contra Costa County; the cities of

Concord, Martinez, Oakley, Pinole, Pittsburg and San Ramon; and the towns of Danville

and Moraga

Collectively these Implementation Plans represent approximately 3,600 MW of 

new CCA load for 2018. This resolution has no effect on these 10 Implementation 

Plans or expansions 

b. CCAs that filed after December 8, 2017

Following the mailing date of this Resolution on December 8, 2017, the following 
Implementation Plans have been submitted to the Commission:  

1. Desert Community Energy

2. King City

3. Riverside CCA

4. Silicon Valley Clean Energy’s Expansion to Milpitas

5. Los Angeles Community Choice Energy’s Expansion to serve an additional 21 cities

Collectively these additional Implementation Plans represent approximately 
1700 MW of new CCA load that CCAs express a desire to serve in 2018.  These 
five CCAs are impacted by the new timeline adopted in this resolution and may 
serve load no sooner than January 1, 2019, assuming all deadlines set forth below 

49



Resolution E-4907 / SC8                   DRAFT                                     February 8, 2018 

12 
 

are met, unless these CCAs apply for a waiver from this resolution to serve 
customers in 2018 as set forth in section (c) below.  

 

Energy Division will complete an expedited review of the Implementation Plans 

submitted by the five CCAs above as well as any additional Implementation 

Plans and registration packages received on or before March 1, 2018.   Energy 

Division will complete its review by April 13, 2018. CCAs certified by April 13, 

2018 must submit their registration packets (including signed service agreements 

and bond) no later than April 20, 2018 so that those CCAs are certified and 

registered before the Resource Adequacy annual load forecast deadline in April  

2018. This will allow these CCAs to serve load in 2019. 

 

 

c. Waiver Process 

Any new or expanding CCA may request a waiver from the timelines set forth in 

this resolution in order to begin service in that new or expanded territory prior to 

January 1, 2019.  To request a waiver either: 
 

A. The CCA and utility in whose service territory the CCA intends to begin 

service shall jointly submit a Tier 1 Advice Letter no later than 75 days 

prior to the RA compliance month in which the CCA wishes to begin 

service. This Advice Letter shall provide notification that the utility and 

CCA mutually agree (via payment, allocation of RA or a combination 

thereof) that they have addressed RA requirements and cost responsibility 

concerns raised by the intra-year load migration for 2018.18 Notification of 

agreements must include what categories of RA for what periods are being 

satisfied; or, 
 

B. If no agreement is reached, the CCA shall file a Tier 1 Advice Letter no 

later than 75 days prior to the RA compliance month in which the CCA 

wishes to begin service.  This Advice Letter shall provide notification that 

the utility and the CCA are unable to reach agreement to address the RA 

                                              
18 Any allocation of RA can be a portion of a contract, a group of contracts, a pro rata 
share of the portfolio, or a combination thereof in addition to other forms of payment 
not identified. 

50



Resolution E-4907 / SC8                   DRAFT                                     February 8, 2018 

13 
 

requirements and cost responsibility concerns raised by the intra-year load 

migration for 2018, and shall state that the CCA agrees to be bound by a 

future Commission determination in the RA proceeding (R.17-09-020) 

regarding cost responsibility for intra-year load migration, subject to 

appellate rights under the Commission’s Rules. The CCA then shall file a 

motion in the RA proceeding seeking such a determination within 60 days 

of the submittal of the Advice Letter.  Submittal of this Advice Letter 

allows the CCA to begin service in 75 days later and shifts RA 

responsibility from the utility to the CCA. 
 

CCAs Forming in Small and Multi-Jurisdictional Utility Territories 

Should a CCA form in a Small and Multi-Jurisdictional Utility (SMJU) territory, 

various procedural, cost-shifting, and other potential issues will be presented. 

Those issues are not being addressed in this Resolution, but the Commission 

expects to address these issues in an as yet determined forum. 

 

Procedural Components for CCA Implementation Plans 

 

Procedure for Submission and Certification of Receipt 

This Resolution adopts a new deadline for submission of Implementation Plans. 

Implementation Plans will be submitted to the Director of the Energy Division 

both via email and a hard copy on or before January 119 in order to serve load in 

the following year.20 Within 90 days of receiving an Implementation Plan, the 

Energy Division will certify that the plan assuming it meets all requirements.  

 

Notice to Customers 

This Resolution adopts no changes for Notice to Customers. Implementation 

Plans shall include the timing of notices sent to utility customers who will be 

transitioned to CCA service. 

 

Notice to Customers of the Appropriate Cost Responsibility Surcharge (CRS) 

                                              
19 Except for 2018, where plans may be submitted by March 1, 2018. 

20 For 2018, Energy Division will certify plans by 4/13 if received by 3/1/18 as long as 
plans are reasonably complete and meet all requirements. 

51



Resolution E-4907 / SC8           DRAFT                February 8, 2018 

14 

This Resolution adopts no changes for Notice to Customers of the Appropriate 

CRS. The current Cost Responsibility Surcharge (CRS) has three major 

components: the Department of Water Resources (DWR) Bond Charge, the 

Competitive Transition Charge, and the Power Charge Indifference Adjustment 

(PCIA).  

CCAs shall include in their Implementation Plans how they will notify customers 

of the applicable CRS. The PCIA methodology is currently under reconsideration 

in R.17-06-026.    

Registration of CCAs 

This Resolution adopts two new deadlines for CCA registration.  First, this 

Resolution requires that a CCA submit its registration packet to the CPUC within 

90 days of filing its Implementation Plan. Second, this Resolution requires that if 

the Registration Packet is complete, the CPUC will confirm the CCA’s 

registration within 120 days of the CCA submittal of its Implementation Plan 

assuming it meets all requirements.  

To register, a CCA must submit its registration packet including a signed service 

agreement with the utility and a bond pursuant to Section 394.25 (e). The interim 

bond amount was set to $100,000 in Resolution E-4133 (2007) and the amount of 

the bond is currently under consideration in R.03-10-003.   

Once a bond has been submitted, Energy Division will issue a registration letter 

confirming completion of all registration requirements. After a potential or 

expanding CCA has fulfilled the above requirements, it may initiate service to its 

new customers no earlier than the service date authorized by this Resolution.   

COMMENTS 

Public Utilities Code section 311(g)(1) provides that this resolution must be 

served on all parties and subject to at least 30 days public review and comment 

prior to a vote of the Commission. The draft Resolution was mailed for 

Comments on December 8, 2017. 

52



Resolution E-4907 / SC8                   DRAFT                                     February 8, 2018 

15 
 

The deadline for comments was extended to January 11, 2018 and reply 

comments were allowed seven days later. 

Over 60 comments and reply comments were received from the public, including 

numerous individual stakeholders as well as organizations. Of those comments, 

the majority opposed this resolution. The Joint Utilities (SDG&E, SCE and 

PG&E), TURN, ORA, and the Coalition of California Utility Employees generally 

supported Resolution E-4907, with some caveats. Comments primarily focused 

on the following topics: timing, policy effects, and due process. 

Timing 

Many comments expressed opposition to Draft Resolution E-4907 and urged the 

Commission to delay action on Resolution. Many comments stated that 

Commission consideration of the Resolution in January or February 2018 

presented too short a time period for adequate review and analysis.  

Resolution E-4907 was held from the January 11, 2018 Commission meeting and 

scheduled for the February 8, 2018 Commission meeting. The deadline for 

comments was extended from December 29, 2017 to January 11, 2018. Reply 

comments were accepted with a deadline of January 18, 2018.  The Commission 

is satisfied that it has provided adequate time for comment and has the 

information that it needs to decide the issues presented by this resolution.    

Policy Effects 

Some opposing commenters cited the significant negative impact to nascent CCA 

programs and expanding CCAs for 2018 and for 2019. They asserted that Draft 

Resolution E-4907 places substantial and unnecessary burdens on newly forming 

CCAs. Numerous stakeholders stated that communities invested significant time 

and resources to launch CCA programs and that these communities would be 

unfairly harmed in delaying a CCA’s service date. Delay of service to new load 

represents a delay in associated revenues and program benefits according to 

some commenters. Many asserted that the proposed timeline was arbitrary.  

Although Resolution E-4907 may delay some CCAs’ desired date to begin 

service, any such delay would be for a finite period and for the purpose of 

avoiding unlawful cost shifting. Section 366.2 (c) (8) requires: 

53



Resolution E-4907 / SC8                   DRAFT                                     February 8, 2018 

16 
 

No entity proposing community choice aggregation shall act to furnish 

electricity to electricity consumers within its boundaries until the 

commission determines the cost recovery that must be paid by the 

customers of that proposed community choice aggregation program, as 

provided for in subdivisions (d), (e), and (f). The commission shall 

designate the earliest possible effective date for implementation of a 

community choice aggregation program, taking into consideration the 

impact on any annual procurement plan of the electrical corporation 

that has been approved by the commission. [emphasis added.] 

 

Here, Resolution E-4907 designates the earliest possible effective date, taking into 

account the year-ahead requirements of the Resource Adequacy program in 

conjunction with our responsibility to avoid shifting costs onto bundled 

customers. Resource Adequacy is a key component of annual procurement 

planning and a responsibility of all Load-Serving Entities. The timeline 

requirements adopted by Resolution E-4907 are allowed by Section 366.2 (c) (8). 

Revisions to the resolution adjust compliance dates to ensure that the new 

provisions are consistent with the requirements of Section 366.2(c)(8) that the 

commission designate the earliest possible effective date for implementation of a 

community choice aggregation program. 
 

Due Process 

Numerous commenters assert that the resolution violates their due process 

rights.  We disagree. The changes in the CCA timeline made by this resolution 

are an exercise of authority the Commission has had since 2002.  Section 

366.2(c)(8) establishes the authority of the Commission to designate a CCA’s start 

date with consideration of the impact on the electrical corporation’s annual 

procurement.  The Commission could have set a start date/timeline for a CCA in 

a letter certifying its Implementation Plan.  There is no substantive difference 

here, where the Commission is simply setting that start date/timeline for all 

CCAs.   

Ordering Paragraph 10 of D.05-12-041, moreover, requires the Executive Director 

to “prepare and publish instructions for CCAs and utilities that includes a 

timeline and describes the procedures for submitting and certifying receipt of the 

54



Resolution E-4907 / SC8           DRAFT                February 8, 2018 

17 

Implementation Plan, notice to customers, notice to CCAs of the appropriate 

CRS, and registration of CCAs.”  This resolution effectuates that order. 

Commenters assert that there was no opportunity to be heard. We disagree. 

Comments on draft resolutions are normally afforded about 20 days to 

comment.21  Here, in response to requests from commenters, additional time was 

afforded for comments. In addition, reply comments, while not normally 

allowed, were allowed.   

Finally, two additional changes were made in response to comments.  First, the 

deadline to submit Implementation Plans in 2018 has been moved forward to 

March 1, 2018, allowing several additional CCAs to begin service in 2019.  

Second, CCAs that desire to serve in may request a waiver if they reach an 

agreement with the incumbent utility to resolve RA cost-shifting concerns. These 

changes provide greater flexibility to CCAs on the date they can begin service. 

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS 

1. Ordering Paragraph 8 of D.05-12-041 requires that the Executive Director

develop and publish the steps of an informal process of review that provides

a forum for the CCA and the utility to understand the CCA’s implementation

plans and assures the CCA is able to comply with utility tariffs.

2. Ordering Paragraph 8 of D.05-12-041 requires that the forum be mandatory at

the request of either the utility or the CCA and where the request is presented

in writing with a recitation of disputed items or areas of concern.  The process

shall implicate no approvals, either formal or informal, from the Commission.

Utility tariffs shall describe the meet and confer process for resolving disputes

over operational issues prior to initiation of services.

3. The Commission should develop and publish the steps of an informal process

of review that provides a forum for CCAs and utilities as directed in Ordering

Paragraph 8 of D.05-12-041.

21 Compare section 311(g)(1) with California Public Utilities Commission, Rules of Practice 

and Procedure (Rules),  Rule 14.5. 

55



Resolution E-4907 / SC8                   DRAFT                                     February 8, 2018 

18 
 

4. Ordering Paragraph 10 of D.05-12-041 requires the Executive Director to 

prepare and publish instructions for CCAs and utilities that includes a 

timeline and describes the procedures for submitting and certifying receipt of 

the Implementation Plan, notice to customers, notice to CCAs of the 

appropriate  

 

5. The Commission should prepare and publish instructions for CCAs and 

utilities that includes a timeline and describes the procedures for submitting 

and certifying receipt of the Implementation Plan, notice to customers, notice 

to CCAs of the appropriate Cost Responsibility Surcharge (CRS), and 

registration of CCAs. Cost Responsibility Surcharge (CRS), and registration of 

CCAs.   

 

6. CCAs must comply with the Resource Adequacy requirements as set forth in 

Public Utilities Code Section 380 before beginning service.  
 

 
 
THEREFORE IT IS ORDERED THAT: 

 

1. Within 14 days of the effective date of this Resolution, Pacific Gas and Electric 

Company (PG&E), Southern California Edison Company (SCE), and San 

Diego Gas and Electric Company (SDG&E), shall update their tariffs and 

submit Tier 2 Advice Letters with the adopted timeline and procedures listed 

in Appendix A. 

 

2. Prospective or expanding Community Choice Aggregators who have not yet 

submitted an Implementation Plan as of December 8, 2017 shall file their 

Implementation Plans pursuant to the adopted timeline and procedures listed 

in Appendices A and B and fulfill the Resource Adequacy portion of 

Appendices A and B prior to initiating service to customers unless they 

receive a waiver from the Commission as described in Paragraph 3 below.  

This Resolution is not retroactive. 

 

56



Resolution E-4907 / SC8                   DRAFT                                     February 8, 2018 

19 
 

3. Any new or expanding CCA may request a waiver from the timelines set 

forth in this resolution in order to begin service prior to the deadlines in 

Appendices A and B.  To request a waiver either: 

 

A. The CCA and utility in whose service territory the CCA intends to begin 

service shall jointly submit a Tier 1 Advice Letter no later than 75 days 

prior to the RA compliance month in which the CCA wishes to begin 

service. This Advice Letter shall provide notification that the utility and 

CCA mutually agree (via payment, allocation of RA or a combination 

thereof) that they have addressed RA requirements and cost responsibility 

concerns raised by the intra-year load migration for 2018.  Notification of 

agreements must include what categories of RA for what periods are being 

satisfied; or, 
 

B. If no agreement is reached, the CCA shall file a Tier 1 Advice Letter no 

later than 75 days prior to the RA compliance month in which the CCA 

wishes to begin service.  This Advice Letter shall provide notification that 

the utility and the CCA are unable to reach agreement to address the RA 

requirements and cost responsibility concerns raised by the intra-year load 

migration for 2018, and shall state that the CCA agrees to be bound by a 

future Commission determination in the RA proceeding (R.17-09-020) 

regarding cost responsibility for intra-year load migration, subject to 

appellate rights under the Commission’s Rules. The CCA then shall file a 

motion in the RA proceeding seeking such a determination within 60 days 

of the submittal of the Advice Letter.  Submittal of this Advice Letter 

allows the CCA to begin service in 75 days later and shifts RA 

responsibility from the utility to the CCA. 

 

 

4. Commission staff will process Implementation Plans pursuant to the adopted 

timeline and procedures listed in Appendices A and B. 

5. The Commission will revisit this process, if necessary, depending on the 

outcome of R.03-10-003 or successor proceedings. 

 

This Resolution is effective today. 

57



Resolution E-4907 / SC8           DRAFT                February 8, 2018 

20 

I certify that the foregoing resolution was duly introduced, passed and adopted 

at a conference of the Public Utilities Commission of the State of California held 

on February 8, 2018; the following Commissioners voting favorably thereon: 

    ___________________      
         TIMOTHY SULLIVAN 
          Executive Director 

58



Resolution E-4907 / SC8                   DRAFT                                     February 8, 2018 

21 
 

Appendix A: Adopted CCA Registration Timeline and Procedures 

                                              
22 For Plans to be submitted in 2018 to serve load in 2019, this deadline is extended to 
March 1, 2018. 

23 For Plans submitted by March 1, 2018, CPUC will complete review by April 13, 2018. 

Date Action 

Day 1, Year 1 
(On or before January 1 
Year 1)22 

(1) The prospective or expanding CCA submits its Implementation 

Plan to Energy Division and serves it on the R.03-10-003 

Service List, on the R.16-02-007 Service List, and on the R.17-

09-020 Service List, or successor proceedings. 

 

Day 1 – 10, Year 1 (1) The CPUC notifies the Utility servicing the customers that are 

proposed for aggregation that an implementation plan initiating 

their CCA program has been filed.   

 

Day 1 – 60, Year 1 (1)  The CCA provides a draft customer notice to CPUC’s Public 

advisor. 

 

(2) Within 15 days of receipt of the draft notice, the Public 

Advisor shall finalize that notice and send it to the CCA. 

 

DAY 1 – 90, Year 123 

 
(1) The CPUC sends a letter confirming that it has received the 

Implementation Plan and certifying that the CCA has satisfied 

the requirements of an Implementation Plan pursuant to 

Section 366.2(c) (3). This letter informs the CCA about the 

cost recovery mechanism as required by P.U. Code Section 

366.2(c)(7). 

 

If and when the CPUC requests additional information from a 

CCA, the CCA shall respond to CPUC staff within 10 days, or 

notify the staff of a date when the information will be 

available.  

 

(2) The CPUC provides the CCA with its findings regarding any 

cost recovery that must be paid by customers of the CCA in 

order to prevent cost shifting. (P.U. Code Section 366.2 (c) 

(7).)  

 

59



Resolution E-4907 / SC8           DRAFT                February 8, 2018 

22 

24 For 2018, the bond and signed service agreement must be submitted by April 20, 2018. 

25 For 2018, the CPUC will confirm registration by April 27, 2018. 

(3) The CCA and the Utility should Meet-and-Confer regarding

the CCA’s ability to conform its operations to the Utility’s

tariff requirements.

DAY 1 – 90, Year 124 (1) The CCA submits its registration packet to the CPUC,

including:

a. Signed service agreement with the utility, and

b. CCA interim bond of $100,000 or as determined in R.03-

10-003

Day 90 – 120, Year 125 (1) If the registration packet is complete, the CPUC confirms

Registration as a CCA.

April, Year 1 (1) The CCA submits its  year ahead  Resource Adequacy

forecast  (P.U. Code Section 380)

August, Year 1 (1) The CCA submits its updated year-ahead RA forecast

October Year 1 (75 days 
before service 
commences) 

(1) CCAs submit their Monthly load migration forecast for the

Resource Adequacy program, filed about 75 days prior to

the compliance month.

Within 60 days of the 
CCA’s Commencement 
of Customer Automatic 
Enrollment 

(1) The CCA shall send its first notice to the prospective

customers describing the terms and conditions of the

services being offered and the customer’s opt-out

opportunity prior to commencing its automatic enrollment.

(P.U. Code Section 366.2 (c) (13) (A))

Within 30 days of the 
CCA’s Commencement 
of Customer Automatic 
Enrollment 

(1) The CCA shall send a second notice to the prospective

customers describing the terms and conditions of the

services being offered and the customer’s opt-out

opportunity prior to commencing its automatic enrollment.

(P.U. Code Section 366.2 (c) (13) (A))

(2) Once notified of a CCA program, the Utility shall transfer

all applicable accounts to the new supplier within a 30-day

period from the date of the close of their normally

scheduled monthly metering and billing process.  (P.U.

Code Section 366.2 (c) (16))

January 1, Year 2 (1) CCA begins service.

Following the CCA’s 
Automatic Customer 
Enrollment 

(1) The CCA shall inform participating customers for no less

than two consecutive billing cycles that:

a. They have been automatically enrolled into the CCA

program and that each customer has the right to opt out of

the CCA program without penalty.  (P.U. Code Section

366.2 (c) (13)(A)(i).)

60



Resolution E-4907 / SC8                   DRAFT                                     February 8, 2018 

23 
 

        

 

b. Terms and conditions of the services being offered.  

(P.U. Code Section 366.2 (c) (13)(A)(ii).) 

 

61



Resolution E-4907 / SC8           DRAFT                February 8, 2018 

24 

Appendix B: Schematic Comparison of Prior and Adopted Timelines for CCA Registration Process 

Prior Timeline 

 

Adopted Timeline

 

 

 

CCA submits Implementation 
Plan to CPUC 

Day 1 Day 10 Day 60 Day 90 

CPUC notifies the Utility that an 
implementation plan has been filed. 

CPUC certifies it has received the implementation plan and 
provides CCA with findings regarding cost recovery that must be 
paid by customers of the CCA in order to prevent cost shifting. 

CCA provides draft customer notice to CPUC Public 
Advisor.  Within 15 days of CCA providing draft 
notice, public advisor will finalize CCA notice 

CCA submits its 
registration packet (bond 
and service agreement)

CCA files its annual 
load forecasts 

Undefined 

CCA begins serving 
load

Sometime after submitting bond, CCA becomes 
registered, receives registration number

The following annual RA forecast 
deadline (April or August) 

CCA submits 
Implementation Plan to 
CPUC 

Day 1, on or 
before January 1, 
Year 1 

Day 10 Day 60 Day 90 

CPUC notifies the Utility that an 
implementation plan has been filed. 

CCA provides draft customer notice to CPUC Public Advisor.  Within 
15 days of CCA providing draft notice, public advisor will finalize 
CCA notice 

CCA files its 
annual load 
forecasts CCA submits its registration 

packet (bond and service 
agreement) 

Day 120 

CPUC confirms registration of a CCA, issues 
the CCA registration number, and publishes 
the Implementation Plan and Registration 
number the CCA page of the website. 

CCA 
begins 
serving 
load 

January, 
Year 2 

April, 
Year 1 

August, 
Year 1

CCA files its 
revised 
annual load 
forecasts 

CPUC certifies it has received the implementation plan and 
provides CCA with findings regarding cost recovery that must be 
paid by customers of the CCA in order to prevent cost shifting. 

No changes Undefined deadlines Proposed 

change
s

62



Item 6.C 
Western Community Energy 

Activities Update 

Attachment 2 
Joint Utilities Petition to Modify the 

Code of Conduct

63



 

 

 

64



BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION 

OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

Order Instituting Rulemaking Pursuant to 
Senate Bill No. 790 to Consider and Adopt a 
Code of Conduct, Rules and Enforcement 
Procedures Governing the Conduct of 
Electrical Corporations Relative to the 
Consideration, Formation and Implementation 
of Community Choice Aggregation Programs. 

Rulemaking 12-02-009 
(Filed February 16, 2012) 

PETITION FOR MODIFICATION OF DECISION 12-12-036 OF  
PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY (U 39-E),  

SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY (U 902-E) AND  
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY (U 338-E) 

JANET S. COMBS 
FADIA RAFEEDIE KHOURY 
2244 Walnut Grove Avenue 
Post Office Box 800 
Rosemead, CA  91770 
Telephone:  (626) 302-1524 
Facsimile:   (626) 302-3990 
E-mail: janet.combs@sce.com 

HENRY WEISSMANN 
KURUVILLA J. OLASA 
Munger, Tolles & Olson LLP 
350 S. Grand Av., 50th Floor 
Los Angeles, CA 90071 
Telephone:  (213) 683-9150 
Facsimile:  (213) 683-5150 
E-mail:  Kuruvilla.Olasa@mto.com 

Attorneys for 
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON
COMPANY  

STACY VAN GOOR 
E. GREGORY BARNES
Attorneys for
SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC
COMPANY

8330 Century Park Court CP32D 
San Diego, CA 92123 
Telephone:  (858) 654-1534 
Facsimile:  (619) 699-5027 
Email:  svangoor@semprautilities.com 

RANDALL J. LITTENEKER 
Attorney for  
PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC
COMPANY  
77 Beale Street, B30A  
San Francisco, CA 94105  
Phone:  (415) 973-2179 
Facsimile:  (415) 973-5220 
E-mail: rjl9@pge.com 

January 30, 2018 

65



PETITION FOR MODIFICATION OF DECISION 12-12-036 OF PACIFIC GAS AND 
ELECTRIC COMPANY (U 39-E), SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY 

(U 902-E) AND SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY (U 338-E) 
 

Table of Contents 

Section Page 
 

-i- 

I. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ..............................................................................................1

II. BACKGROUND .............................................................................................................5

III. JUSTIFICATION FOR PETITION FOR MODIFICATION .......................................8

A. Description of the Requested Modifications ................................................9

1. Modifying the Code of Conduct’s Lobbying Restrictions ...............9

B. Section 707 Does Not Require the Commission to Restrict the 
Joint Utilities’ Communications with Local Governments or the 
Press ...........................................................................................................10

C. Modifying “Lobbying” in the Code of Conduct Will Inform Local-
Government Decision-Making ...................................................................12

1. Local governments do not always have complete 
information about CCA programs .................................................12

2. Eliminating the Code of Conduct’s “lobbying” restrictions 
would allow the Joint Utilities to provide local 
governments with information relevant to their decisions 
about CCA programs .....................................................................17

3. Modifying the Code of Conduct’s lobbying restrictions 
would still promote the dissemination of useful information 
to local governments ......................................................................21

D. Utility Communications with the Press Regarding CCA Issues Are 
in the Public Interest ..................................................................................22

E. The Requested Relief Is Necessary to Comply with the First 
Amendment ................................................................................................23

1. The Code of Conduct is subject to “strict scrutiny” under 
the First Amendment......................................................................23

2. The Code of Conduct is not narrowly tailored to serve a 
compelling government interest .....................................................26

F. This Petition for Modification Could Not Have Been Presented 
Within One Year of the Effective Date of D.12-12-036 ............................30

66



PETITION FOR MODIFICATION OF DECISION 12-12-036 OF PACIFIC GAS AND 
ELECTRIC COMPANY (U 39-E), SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY 

(U 902-E) AND SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY (U 338-E) 

Table of Contents 

Section Page 

-ii-

IV. PROPOSED SCHEDULE ...........................................................................................31

EXHIBIT A PROPOSED REVISIONS TO D.12-12-036

EXHIBIT B COPY OF CCEA’S SEPTEMBER 25, 2017 LETTER

EXHIBIT C SUPPORTING DECLARATIONS

67



PETITION FOR MODIFICATION OF DECISION 12-12-036 OF PACIFIC GAS AND 
ELECTRIC COMPANY (U 39-E), SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY 

(U 902-E) AND SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY (U 338-E) 

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES 

Page(s) 

-iii-

Statutes 
Cal. Pub. Util. Code § 366.2(a)(4). ............................................................................................... 14 
Cal. Pub. Util. Code § 366.2(c)(5) .......................................................................................... 14, 15 
Cal. Pub. Util. Code § 366.2(d)-(i) ............................................................................................... 15 
Cal. Pub. Util. Code § 394.25(e) ................................................................................................... 14 
Cal. Pub. Util. Code § 399.13(b) .................................................................................................. 12 
Cal. Pub. Util. Code § 399.15(b)(2)(B) ........................................................................................ 14 
Cal. Pub. Util. Code § 707 ..................................................................................................... passim 
Cal. Pub. Util. Code § 707(a) .................................................................................................... 5, 10 
Cal. Pub. Util. Code § 707(a)(1) ..................................................................................................... 6 
Cal. Pub. Util. Code § 707(a)(2)-(3) ............................................................................................... 6 
Cal. Pub. Util. Code § 707(a)(4)(B) .............................................................................................. 11 
Cal. Pub. Util. Code § 707(a)(4)(C). ............................................................................................. 11 
Cal. Pub. Util. Code § 707(a)(5) ................................................................................................... 29 
Cal. Pub. Util. Code § 707(c) .......................................................................................................... 6 
Cal. Pub. Util. Code § 1708 ............................................................................................................ 8 

Legislation  
Cal. Senate Bill (SB) 350 ........................................................................................................ 12, 14 

Case Law  
A.C.L.U. of Nevada v. City of Las Vegas,

466 F.3d 784, 792 (9th Cir. 2006) ............................................................................................ 27 
Arizona Free Enter. Club’s Freedom Club PAC v. Bennett, 

564 U.S. 721, 749 (2011) .......................................................................................................... 28 
Braintree Elec. Light Dep’t v. F.E.R.C., 

550 F.3d 6, 14 (D.C. Cir. 2008) ................................................................................................ 29 
Brown v. Entertainment Merchants Ass’n, 

564 U.S. 786, 799 (2011) .........................................................................................................  26 
Buckley v. Valeo, 

 424 U.S. 1, 77 (1976) ............................................................................................................... 21 
Citizens United v. Fed. Election Comm’n,  

558 U.S. 310, 324 (2010) .......................................................................................................... 24 
Consolidated Edison Co. of N.Y. v. Pub. Serv. Comm'n of N.Y., 

447 U.S. at 530, 532, 535, 540-541 (1980)......................................................................... 23, 25 
Eastern R.R. Presidents Conference v. Noerr Motor Freight, Inc.,  

365 U.S. 127, 139 (1961). ......................................................................................................... 26 
F.T.C. v. Superior Court Trial Lawyers Ass’n, 

493 U.S. 411, 426 (1990). ......................................................................................................... 26 

68



PETITION FOR MODIFICATION OF DECISION 12-12-036 OF PACIFIC GAS AND 
ELECTRIC COMPANY (U 39-E), SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY 

(U 902-E) AND SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY (U 338-E) 
 

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES 

Page(s) 

-iv- 

Hunt v. City of Los Angeles,  
638 F.3d 703, 715 (9th Cir. 2011) ............................................................................................ 26 

Jackson v. Metro. Edison Co., 
419 U.S. 345, 350-51 (1974) .................................................................................................... 29 

Keller v. State Bar of California, 
496 U.S. 1, 14 (1990) ................................................................................................................ 29 

Pacific Gas & Elec. Co. v. Pub. Utilities Comm’n (“PG&E II”), 
85 Cal. App. 4th 86, 93 (2000) ................................................................................................. 23 

Pacific Gas & Elec. Co. v. Pub. Utilities Comm’n of California (“PG&E I”), 
475 U.S. 1, 17 n.14 (1986) ........................................................................................................ 23 

Reed v. Town of Gilbert, 
135 S. Ct. 2218, 2226 (2015) .................................................................................................... 25 

Sable Communications of California, Inc. v. FCC., 492 U.S. 115, 126 (1989)  .......................... 26 
Simon & Schuster, Inc. v. Members of N.Y. State Crime Victims Bd.,  

502 U.S. 105, 115 (1991) .......................................................................................................... 24 
Single Moms, Inc. v. Montana Power Co., 

331 F.3d 743, 746 (9th Cir. 2003) ............................................................................................ 28 
Snyder v. Phelps,  

562 U.S. 443, 451-52 (2011) .................................................................................................... 25 
United States v. Playboy Entm’t Grp.,  

529 U.S. 803, 812 (2000). ......................................................................................................... 24 
Watchtower Bible & Tract Soc'y of N.Y., Inc. v. Village of Stratton,  

536 U.S. 150, 154 (2002) .......................................................................................................... 24 
Wisconsin Right To Life, Inc. v. Barland,  

751 F.3d 804, 833 (7th Cir. 2014) ............................................................................................ 21 
Yamada v. Snipes, 

786 F.3d 1182, 1188 (9th Cir. 2015) ........................................................................................ 21 

CPUC Decisions 
D.97-12-088 .................................................................................................................................. 11 
D.05-12-041 .................................................................................................................................. 15 
D.08-09-012 .................................................................................................................................. 16 
D.12-04-012 .................................................................................................................................... 8 
D.12-12-036 ........................................................................................................................... passim 
 

CPUC Rulemakings 
R.03-10-033 .................................................................................................................................. 31 
R.12-02-009 .................................................................................................................................. 31 
R.17-06-026 ................................................................................................................ 15, 16, 18, 31 
 

69



PETITION FOR MODIFICATION OF DECISION 12-12-036 OF PACIFIC GAS AND 
ELECTRIC COMPANY (U 39-E), SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY 

(U 902-E) AND SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY (U 338-E) 

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES 

Page(s) 

-v-

CPUC Rules of Practice and Procedure 
Rule 16.4 ......................................................................................................................................... 1 
Rule 16.4 (b) ............................................................................................................................... 8, 9 
Rule 16.4 (c).................................................................................................................................. 31 
Rule 16.4 (d) ................................................................................................................................... 9 
Rule 16.4 (f) .................................................................................................................................. 31 
Rule 16.4 (g)  ................................................................................................................................ 31 

Other Authorities 
CCA Code of Conduct, Attachment 1 to D. 12-12-036  ........................................................ passim 
Fourth Amended Scoping Memo, R.03-10-003 (March 1, 2017)  ........................................ passim 

70



1

BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION 

OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

Order Instituting Rulemaking Pursuant to 
Senate Bill No. 790 to Consider and Adopt a 
Code of Conduct, Rules and Enforcement 
Procedures Governing the Conduct of 
Electrical Corporations Relative to the 
Consideration, Formation and Implementation 
of Community Choice Aggregation Programs. 

Rulemaking 12-02-009 
(Filed February 16, 2012) 

PETITION FOR MODIFICATION OF DECISION 12-12-036 OF  
PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY (U 39-E),  

SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY (U 902-E) AND  
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY (U 338-E) 

Pursuant to Rule 16.4 of the Rules of Practice and Procedure of the California Public 

Utilities Commission (“Commission”), Pacific Gas and Electric Company (“PG&E”), San Diego 

Gas & Electric Company (“SDG&E”), and Southern California Edison Company (“SCE”) (each 

a “utility” and collectively, the “Joint Utilities”) respectfully submit this Petition for 

Modification of Decision (“D.”) 12-12-036 

I.  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Joint Utilities ask the Commission to allow electrical corporations (“utilities”) to 

communicate with local governments regarding Community Choice Aggregators or Aggregation 

(“CCAs”).  In D.12-12-036, the Commission adopted a Code of Conduct that imposes substantial 

restrictions on such communications, which the Code classifies as “lobbying.”  Modifying these 

restrictions would advance the public interest, would be consistent with California law, and is 

71



2

necessary to ensure that the Code complies with the United States Constitution.  For these same 

reasons, the Joint Utilities also request that the Commission confirm that the Code of Conduct 

does not restrict the Joint Utilities’ right to communicate with the press—newspapers, television 

stations, and radio stations—regarding CCAs.1   

The Joint Utilities’ goal in filing this petition is not to prevent CCA formation.  To the 

contrary, the Joint Utilities support customers’ right to choose CCAs, as long as bundled service 

customers are not allocated costs that should be borne by CCA customers.  Accordingly, in this 

petition, the Joint Utilities do not seek any changes to the Code of Conduct’s “marketing” 

provisions, which restrict their ability to communicate with customers “regarding the [utility’s] 

and community choice aggregators’ energy supply services and rates.”2  Instead, this petition 

concerns only communications with local governments and the press.  

Modifying the Code of Conduct’s lobbying restrictions is in the public interest.  Utility 

customers are not well served if localities make uninformed decisions because they have been 

able to hear only from certain constituencies.  Without complete information regarding CCA 

formation and operation, localities may adopt or implement CCA programs without a full 

understanding of the benefits, risks, and costs of their decisions.  This could result in unintended 

negative consequences for utility customers served by the CCA, as well as for bundled service 

customers who may face additional costs as a result of a CCA program’s flaws or the return of 

customers to bundled service.  In both cases, the Joint Utilities’ customers would be negatively 

affected.3 

1  This petition does not seek any change the Code’s marketing restrictions on a utility’s ability to 
communicate with customers through paid advertising.  See Code of Conduct Rule 1(a).   

2  The Joint Utilities do not believe that the Code’s “marketing” restrictions, by their terms, prohibit 
utilities from communicating with customers or correcting misleading statements about the utilities’ 
own services and rates (so long as such communications do not reference CCA services and rates).  
But to the extent the Code is interpreted otherwise, it would raise significant free speech concerns.   

3  CCA customers are also utility customers because they continue to receive transmission, distribution, 
and other services from a utility. 

72



3

Allowing the Joint Utilities to communicate with local governments regarding CCA 

programs is particularly important with respect to localities’ decisions to form or join CCAs.  

CCA formation involves numerous complex issues, including Commission-approved tariff rules 

that govern utility services to CCAs, the rules and obligations governing procurement by load 

serving entities in California (including CCAs), resource planning, long-term planning 

assumptions (e.g., forecasting market conditions and resource costs), rate-setting issues (such as 

the status of default time-of-use (TOU) rate implementation for residential customers), cost 

recovery, the operation of departing load charges such as the Power Charge Indifference 

Adjustment (“PCIA”) or its successor, and the need for adequate financial security requirements 

for involuntary returns of CCA customers to utility service.   

It appears, however, that localities in SCE’s and SDG&E’s service areas are not always 

receiving the necessary information, and in some instances have received information that is 

incomplete, inaccurate, and potentially misleading.  Indeed, some local public officials have 

expressed frustration to the Joint Utilities about their inability to more fully comment on the 

benefits and costs of proposed CCA programs.4  Absent access to information from the utility, 

local governments’ primary source of information is often external advisory firms that 

potentially anticipate having a role in implementing the CCA entity after the feasibility study.   

Allowing the Joint Utilities to communicate with local governments in connection with 

their deliberations on CCA formation will promote informed decision-making by these 

governments and mitigate the risk of unanticipated costs and outcomes that customers may incur 

resulting from CCA formations based on incomplete or inaccurate information.    

The PG&E-area situation is somewhat different.  PG&E already serves over 1.1 million 

CCA customers today, and by January 2019, approximately half of PG&E’s electric customers 

will likely be served by CCAs.  Accordingly, as compared to the SCE-area and SDG&E-area, 

PG&E has less of a need to discuss CCA-related issues with communities that are deciding 

4  See, e.g., Declaration of J. Christopher Thompson ¶ 8. 

73



4

whether to adopt CCA programs.  Nevertheless, PG&E is interested in discussing CCA-related 

issues with local government officials of the communities it serves even after CCAs begin 

service. 

The Code of Conduct’s restrictions on CCA-related communications between the Joint 

Utilities and local government officials appear to be an outlier.  Although some states impose 

certain limits on marketing to CCA customers, the Joint Utilities are not aware of any 

jurisdiction that restricts a utility from communicating with local government officials regarding 

CCAs.   

The Commission also should confirm that the Code of Conduct does not restrict the Joint 

Utilities’ right to communicate with the press regarding CCA-related issues.  The Code currently 

does not directly address such communications, but the Joint Utilities are concerned that some 

may allege that communications with the press could be deemed to constitute prohibited 

“lobbying” or “marketing.”  Just as local governments will benefit from receiving information 

from utilities regarding the issues surrounding CCA formation and operation, so too will the 

press for its communications with the public at large.  Preventing the Joint Utilities from 

commenting on or providing the press with the Joint Utilities’ perspective on these issues is not 

in the public interest because it would result in these discussions being informed only by certain 

constituencies and by incomplete information.   

In addition, the Commission should grant the relief requested in this petition to avoid a 

violation of the Joint Utilities’ First Amendment rights to communicate on a matter of public 

concern and to be free of content-based restrictions on their speech.  The restrictions on lobbying 

also violate the Joint Utilities’ right to communicate with local government representatives. 

The relief requested in this petition is consistent with California law, which does not 

require the Commission to retain the Code of Conduct’s lobbying restrictions or restrict the Joint 

Utilities’ communications with the press.  California Public Utilities Code § 707, the statute that 

requires the Commission to adopt a Code of Conduct, directs the Commission to “[e]nsure that 

an electrical corporation does not market against a community choice aggregation program, 

74



 
 

5 

 

except through an independent marketing division.”5  Section 707 does not mention lobbying 

communications with local government officials, or communications with the press. 

Because many local governments in the Joint Utilities’ service areas are currently 

considering CCA programs, the Commission should act promptly on this petition so that the 

Joint Utilities can communicate with these governments in a timely manner and so that local 

government officials will have access to as much information as possible to help them make 

informed decisions on issues that impact CCA formation and operation.  Accordingly, the Joint 

Utilities respectfully request that the Commission decide this petition by June 1, 2018, in 

accordance with the Proposed Schedule described in Part IV, below.  

II.  

BACKGROUND 

Public Utilities Code § 707 (a) directs the Commission to adopt a “code of conduct” to 

“govern the conduct of the electrical corporations relative to the consideration, formation, and 

implementation of community choice aggregation programs.”  As relevant here, this code of 

conduct must: 

Ensure that an electrical corporation does not market against a community choice 
aggregation program, except through an independent marketing division that is 
funded exclusively by the electrical corporation’s shareholders and that is 
functionally and physically separate from the electrical corporation’s ratepayer-
funded divisions.6 

The code must also “limit” the independent marketing division’s “use of support services 

from the electrical corporation’s ratepayer-funded divisions”; require that this division be 

allocated any costs of any permissible support services from the “ratepayer-funded divisions on a 

                                            
5  Cal. Pub. Util. Code § 707 (a) (emphasis added).  All subsequent statutory references in this petition 

are to the California Public Utilities Code.    
6  Cal. Pub. Util. Code § 707 (1).   

75



6

fully allocated embedded cost basis”; and require that this division not have access to 

competitively sensitive information.7   

In D.12-12-036, the Commission adopted the Code of Conduct.  Rule 2 of the Code 

states: 

No electrical corporation shall market or lobby against a community choice 
aggregation program, except through an independent marketing division that is 
funded exclusively by the electrical corporation’s shareholders and that is 
functionally and physically separate from the electrical corporation’s ratepayer-
funded divisions.8 

Rule 2 largely tracks § 707(a) (1), except that it applies to both “market[ing]” and 

“lobby[ing],” while the statute mentions only “market[ing].”  The Code of Conduct defines 

“lobby” as communicating “with public officials or the public or any portion of the public for the 

purpose of convincing a government agency not to participate in, or to withdraw from 

participation in, a [CCA] program.”9  Lobbying does not include the following: 

i) Provision of factual answers about utility programs or tariffs, including but not
limited to rate analyses, in answer to questions from a government agency or its
representative.

ii) Provision of information to potential Community Choice Aggregators related
to Community Choice Aggregation program formation rules and processes.10

The Code of Conduct defines “[m]arket” to mean “communicate with customers . . . 

regarding the electrical corporation’s and community choice aggregators’ energy supply services 

and rates.”11  Marketing does not include the following:  

i) Communications provided by the electrical corporation throughout all of its
service territory to its retail electricity customers that do not reference community
choice aggregation programs.

7  § 707(a) (2)-(3).  As an alternative, section 707 also allows the Commission “to require that any 
marketing against a community choice aggregation plan shall be conducted by an affiliate of the 
electrical corporation . . . subject to affiliate transaction rules to be developed by the Commission.”  
§ 707(c).  The Commission has not taken any actions pursuant to this provision.

8  Code of Conduct Rule 2. 
9  Code of Conduct Rule 1(b). 
10  Id. 
11  Code of Conduct Rule 1(a). 

76



7

ii) Communications that are part of a specific program that is authorized or
approved by the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC), . . . renewable
energy rebate, or tariffed programs . . . . 

iii) Provision of factual answers about utility programs or tariffs, including but not
limited to rate analyses, in answer to the questions of individual customers.12

The Code of Conduct also imposes various restrictions on any independent marketing 

division that is created by a utility to conduct marketing and lobbying in compliance with Rule 2.  

The independent marketing division shall not have access to a utility’s “competitively sensitive 

information.”  Nor may the division access the utility’s “market analysis reports or any other 

types of proprietary or non-publicly available reports, including but not limited to market, 

forecast, planning or strategic reports.”13  Apart from shared support services, utility employees 

may not be employed by the independent marketing division14 and may not speak on behalf of 

the independent marketing division.15   

The formation of an independent marketing division also is subject to other significant 

restrictions.  The independent marketing division must be physically separated from the utility.16  

The independent marketing division may not share equipment, services, and systems (including 

information technology systems) with the utility, except as necessary to perform corporate 

support services.17  Transfers of employees between the utility and the independent marketing 

division are restricted and subject to a transfer fee.18   

The utility and the independent marketing division are subject to audits for compliance 

with the rules.19  And the Code also provides an expedited complaint procedure that generally 

12  Id. 
13  Code of Conduct Rules 5, 8. 
14  Code of Conduct Rule 15. 
15  Code of Conduct Rule 9. 
16  Code of Conduct Rules 2, 11. 
17  Code of Conduct Rule 11. 
18  Code of Conduct Rule 16. 
19  Code of Conduct Rule 23.  

77



8

requires any complaints filed against utilities by CCAs to be resolved in no more than 180 

days.20 

The combined effect of these restrictions is to discourage the utility from communicating 

to localities, unless specifically asked, crucial information—including information about market 

structure and challenges, impacts of future market conditions, rate-setting and cost recovery 

issues, and rules and policies applicable to CCAs—that is understood by utility employees who 

are subject-matter experts on these issues but who cannot speak for (and are restricted from 

transferring relevant information to) an independent marketing division. 

III.  

JUSTIFICATION FOR PETITION FOR MODIFICATION 

The Commission has broad authority to “amend any order or decision made by it” at “any 

time, upon notice to the parties[] and with opportunity to be heard.”21  In compliance with Rule 

16.4 (b) of the Commission’s Rules of Practice and Procedure, Section A, below, proposes the 

specific wording to carry out the Joint Utilities’ requested modifications to the Code of Conduct.   

Sections B, C, D, and E, below, provide a concise justification for the requested relief.  

Section B explains why § 707 does not require the Commission to restrict the Joint Utilities’ 

communications with local governments or the press.  Section C explains why the requested 

modifications to the Code of Conduct would improve local governments’ access to information 

regarding CCA programs and promote more informed decision-making, which would be in 

customers’ interest.  Section D explains why allowing the Joint Utilities to communicate with the 

press regarding CCA-related issues is in the public interest.  Section E explains why the relief 

requested in this petition is necessary to comply with the First Amendment.   

20  Code of Conduct Rule 24. 
21  §1708; see also D.12-04-012 at 3 (“Pursuant to [§ 1708], the Commission has broad authority to 

modify decisions after notice to parties to the prior proceeding.”)  

78



 
 

9 

 

Finally, in compliance with Rule 16.4 (d), Section F explains why this “petition could not 

have been presented within one year of the effective date of” D.12-12-036.  

A. Description of the Requested Modifications 

1. Modifying the Code of Conduct’s Lobbying Restrictions 

The Joint Utilities request that the Commission eliminate the restrictions on lobbying 

from the Code of Conduct.  Consistent with Rule 16.4 (b), Exhibit A to this Petition shows the 

requested modifications to the Code of Conduct in the form of a markup to the existing Code.  

As a result of these modifications, a utility’s communications with local government officials 

regarding CCA-related issues would be treated on the same footing as a utility’s communications 

with this Commission regarding CCA-related issues; on the same footing as a utility’s 

communications with local government officials regarding any other issue or concern; and on the 

same footing as CCA consultants’ communications with local government officials about CCA 

formation. 

If the Commission declines to eliminate the restrictions on lobbying in their entirety, SCE 

and PG&E submit that the Commission should at a minimum narrow these restrictions to allow 

utilities to share useful and timely information with localities.  SCE and PG&E ask the 

Commission to clarify that the lobbying restrictions encompass only express advocacy against 

CCA programs.  Such a clarification would provide at least incremental certainty that the Joint 

Utilities can communicate important information to local governments without running the risk 

that they will later be deemed to have had the “purpose” of dissuading CCA participation.  

SDG&E does not believe that this narrowing solves the constitutional problems with the 

Commission’s lobbying restrictions and does not support this approach. 

No specific changes to the language of the Code are necessary in order for the 

Commission to clarify that the Code’s lobbying restrictions apply only to express advocacy.  

Rather, the Commission could simply issue a decision containing the following language or its 

79



10

equivalent:  “An electrical corporation shall not be deemed to have the purpose of convincing a 

government agency not to participate in, or to withdraw from participation in, a Community 

Choice Aggregation program unless the electrical corporation expressly advocates against 

participation in such a program.” 

While no change to the wording of the Code is necessary to address utility 

communications with the press, the Joint Utilities ask the Commission to issue a decision that 

confirms that such communications are not restricted.  The Joint Utilities propose that the 

Commission use the following language: “Nothing in the Code of Conduct is intended to restrict 

an electrical corporation’s right to communicate with the press, including newspapers, television 

stations, and radio stations.”  

B. Section 707 Does Not Require the Commission to Restrict the Joint Utilities’

Communications with Local Governments or the Press

Section 707(a) requires the Commission to “[e]nsure that an electrical corporation does

not market against a community choice aggregation program, except through an independent 

marketing division.”22  Section 707(a) does not mention lobbying or communications with local 

government officials.  Accordingly, § 707(a) neither instructs nor requires the Commission to 

adopt any rules regarding an electrical corporation’s communications with local government 

officials.  Nor does § 707(a) mention communications with the press. 

No other provision of § 707 prevents the Commission from granting the requested 

modification to the Code’s lobbying provisions or confirming that the Code does not apply to 

communications with the press.  Section 707(a) (5) states that the Commission may adopt any 

rules it finds “necessary or advisable to protect a ratepayer’s right to be free from forced speech.”  

But this provision does not mandate the adoption of any specific rules regarding communications 

with local government officials or the press.  In particular, it does not mandate that the 

22  § 707(a) (emphasis added). 

80



11

Commission require that any communications with local government officials or the press be 

conducted solely through an independent marketing division.  And in any event, as further 

described in Section E, below, a utility’s communications with local government officials or the 

press would not infringe upon a “ratepayer’s right to be free from forced speech,” and the Code 

of Conduct’s existing restriction on utility lobbying is not necessary to prevent any such 

infringement.  

In addition, in § 707(a) (4)(B) the Legislature expressed its “intent” that the Code of 

Conduct “include, in whole or in part, the rules approved by the commission in D.97-12-088 and 

D.08-06-016.”  Again, this provision does not mandate the adoption of any specific rules

regarding communications with local government officials or the press.  Indeed, the Legislature 

expressly provided that this provision “does not limit the authority of the commission . . . to 

modify any rule adopted in those decisions.”23  Nor do the Decisions referenced by the 

Legislature impose any requirement that an electrical corporation conduct all communications 

with local government officials or the press through an independent marketing division or 

affiliate.24 

Because § 707 does not require the Commission to allow utilities to communicate with 

local government officials or the press only through an independent marketing division or 

affiliate, the Joint Utilities’ request that the Commission exempt communications with local 

23  § 707(a) (4)(C). 
24  In D.97-12-088 the Commission adopted standards of conduct governing relationships between 

utilities and their affiliates.  These standards of conduct limit a utility’s ability to share certain 
services and engage in certain transactions with an affiliate, but they do not restrict a utility’s ability 
to engage in lobbying activities or communicate with the press.  See D.97-12-088, Appendix A.  
In D.08-06-016, the Commission adopted a settlement between a CCA, the San Joaquin Valley Power 
Authority (“SJVPA”), and PG&E.  The settlement required both parties to limit themselves to truthful 
marketing and lobbying, and required functional separation of PG&E’s marketing division, but it did 
not require PG&E to engage in lobbying or communications with the press solely through this 
marketing division.  D.08-06-016 at 5-7.  Indeed, the settlement expressly did not prevent PG&E 
“from timely communicating with the city and county governments participating in SJVPA’s CCA 
program.”  Id. at 6. 

81



12

government officials or the press from the scope of the Code of Conduct is permissible under 

§ 707.

C. Modifying “Lobbying” in the Code of Conduct Will Inform Local-Government

Decision-Making

1. Local governments do not always have complete information about CCA

programs

Many localities in California have recently considered or are currently considering taking 

on electrical power procurement obligations through a CCA program, including the cities of 

Long Beach, Huntington Beach, Laguna Beach, Palmdale, Murrieta, Wildomar, and Desert Hot 

Springs, in SCE’s service area. The County of Los Angeles and cities of Rolling Hills Estates 

and South Pasadena are in the process of implementing Los Angeles Community Choice Energy 

(LACCE), and are inviting other localities to consider joining LACCE.25   

A CCA formation decision involves important complex questions, including whether the 

CCA can deliver lower cost and/or greener power over time, operate independent of system 

planning requirements and existing utility commitments, and what risks the CCA and its 

sponsoring locality must undertake in attempting to do so.  Among these complex issues are the 

following: 

 Procurement:  

CCAs will be required to deliver a significant amount of the energy required by the 

Renewables Portfolio Standard (“RPS”) from long-term contracts (i.e., contracts with terms of 

ten year or longer) to comply with Senate Bill (SB) 350.26  CCAs also have to meet Local and 

25  LACCE submitted a supplemental implementation plan on December 29, 2017, to add 21 
jurisdictions: Agoura Hills, Alhambra, Arcadia, Beverly Hills, Calabasas, Carson, Claremont, Culver 
City, Downey, Hawaiian Gardens, Hawthorne, Malibu, Manhattan Beach, Ojai, Paramount, Santa 
Monica, Sierra Madre, Temple City, Thousand Oaks, West Hollywood, and County of Ventura. 

26  See § 399.13(b). 

82



 
 

13 

 

Flex Resource Adequacy (“RA”) requirements, which may become more challenging 

(particularly for Local) as additional load serving entities are created and enter the market 

seeking to purchase a limited amount of Local and Flex RA supply.  Utility personnel can 

identify questions and issues that localities should raise with their CCA consultants in order to 

ensure that they have a broad understanding of the benefits and risks associated with long-term 

resource procurement and Resource Adequacy requirements.       

For example, some of the feasibility studies presented to localities by consultants do not 

appear to address risks associated with the need to enter into long-term supply contracts, such as 

credit and collateral requirements, or the ability of the CCA to recover above-market costs of 

long-term contracts from customers that depart CCA service for other procurement options.27  

Some studies mention the need to enter into long-term supply contracts only in passing; others 

mention that the CCA can and should enter into such contracts for a term, but do not address the 

risk to the CCA associated with changes in market conditions or credit requirements.28 

 Resource Mix:     

Utilities have contracted resources that provide important reliability services to the 

electric grid, such as Local Capacity Requirements and New Generation resources.  The current 

electric grid cannot be reliably and safely operated with only RPS and short-term spot resources.  

Local government officials should have a full understanding of the need for integration services, 

ancillary services, voltage and short circuit duty, black start, and energy supply for hours in 

which renewables generation is insufficient, which will create additional system costs for 

localities that only consider the purchase cost of renewables and short-term spot markets in their 

CCA formation decisions.29      

                                            
27  Declaration of Colin E. Cushnie ¶ 8. 
28  Id. 
29  Declaration of Colin E. Cushnie ¶ 9. 

83



14

The Joint Utilities have observed a number of representations that CCAs will be greener 

than utilities.30  This representation may be incomplete if it is not also explained that the utilities 

will also have portfolios that exceed 50% RPS consistent with the requirements of SB 350.31 

 Projected Cost Savings: 

Projected cost savings from CCA formation are often based on a comparison of the 

utility’s generation rate, which is based on a portfolio of resources contracted over time, to 

current market prices.  Based on current market conditions, such comparisons will show lower 

potential direct costs for the CCA as compared to the utility’s legacy portfolio costs.  But these 

comparisons should also account for the fact that, in order to ensure that the utility’s remaining 

bundled service customers are indifferent to CCA formation—as is required by California law—

the PCIA (or successor charge) will need to account for the difference between legacy costs and 

current market costs.32  This topic is discussed in further detail below.33  Additionally, such 

comparisons should also reflect that utilities will be purchasing in the same market environment 

as a newly formed CCA and all other CCAs, and therefore it is not reasonable to expect a 

meaningful cost difference for new procurement.   

 Customer Migration:   

Local government officials also may not fully understand the potential migration of 

customers and the impact of such migration on their ability to recover costs, or the rules 

regarding the return of customers to the utility’s procurement service.  In addition, § 394.25(e) 

requires CCAs to post a bond or demonstrate sufficient insurance to cover the costs resulting 

from an involuntary return of customers to bundled service.  The consultants’ feasibility studies 

30  Declaration of Colin E. Cushnie ¶ 9. 
31  § 399.15(b)(2)(B).  Additionally, some utilities have large hydroelectric resources that do not produce 

GHG emissions, but which are not included in RPS-eligible energy procurement results. 
32  See § 366.2(a)(4), (c)(5). 
33  See pp. 18-21, below (discussing the Cost Responsibility Surcharge). 

84



15

that SCE has reviewed generally do not address—or address only in passing—potential changes 

to the bond requirement and the impact of these changes on the locality and the CCA.34 

 Cost Responsibility Surcharge:  

A CCA’s customers must pay a Cost Responsibility Surcharge (“CRS”) sufficient to 

ensure that the utility’s remaining customers are indifferent to the departure of the customers 

who will be served by the CCA.35  The current CRS is established through a Commission-

adopted methodology, and is recovered through the PCIA and the CTC rates.36  The Commission 

recently opened a docket to consider modifications to the current methodology for calculating 

the CRS in order to more accurately implement this statutory directive.37   

It is critically important that localities accurately and completely understand this statutory 

requirement and its implications for CCA customers.  To the extent there is currently an 

opportunity for a CCA to underprice a utility’s generation rate, that difference may be due in 

whole or in part to the PCIA’s failure to capture accurately the difference between market prices 

and the cost of the utility’s legacy generation portfolio.  When the Commission addresses that 

issue in its Order Instituting Rulemaking to Review, Revise, and Consider Alternatives to the 

PCIA (Rulemaking (R.)17-06-026), the CCA’s opportunity to underprice the utility’s generation 

rate may change. 

Localities apparently are not being fully informed on these issues.  In its recent comments 

in R.17-06-026, The Utility Reform Network (“TURN”) noted: 

Many municipalities and Joint Powers Authorities are currently considering 
whether to pursue CCA formation. Unfortunately, local public officials may not 
be aware of the possible impact of changes to the PCIA on the total costs of 
service to be offered by a new CCA. Given the Code of Conduct prohibition on 
marketing or lobbying by an IOU, local governments are forced to rely almost 
exclusively on the representations of CCA proponents when attempting to 

34  Declaration of Colin E. Cushnie ¶ 7. 
35  See § 366.2(c)(5), (d)-(i) (AB 117); D.05-12-041 at 23-25. 
36  The CTC rates recover competition transition costs.  See § 367. 
37  See Order Instituting Rulemaking to Review, Revise, and Consider Alternatives to the Power Charge 

Indifference Adjustment, R.17-06-026 (July 10, 2017). 

85



16

understand the role of the PCIA in assessing the competitiveness of alternative 
service that may be offered to their businesses and residents.38 

In addition, some consultant reports have told localities to expect a declining PCIA, 

which is inconsistent with their simultaneous predictions of declining market prices.39  

Because the PCIA is calculated to recover the above market costs of a fixed vintaged portfolio,40 

the PCIA generally varies inversely to current market prices.  In a declining market price 

environment, the PCIA will increase as the difference between market value and the cost of the 

above-market, long-term commitments in the vintaged portfolio(s) applicable to the CCA 

customers increases.  However, at least one consultant report SCE has reviewed suggests that a 

CCA could obtain savings through lower market energy prices, but fails to note that lower 

market prices would typically correspond with a higher PCIA for the CCA’s customers (and 

other departing load).41   

The relationship between current market prices and the PCIA can be complicated, and it 

is important that utilities be allowed to engage officials of localities considering CCA formation 

to discuss these issues to allow for more informed decision-making.   

All of the foregoing examples, and other important issues relating to CCA formation, 

operation, and procurement, involve core aspects of the utility business that directly affect utility 

customers.    

38  Comments of The Utility Reform Network on the Order Instituting Rulemaking, R.17-06-026 (July 
31, 2017).  

39  Declaration of Colin E. Cushnie ¶ 6. 
40  Pursuant to D.08-09-012, departing load customers are only responsible for the above-market costs of 

the resources that were procured on their behalf.  As such, customers are subject to a “vintaged” 
PCIA rate that corresponds with the “vintaged portfolio” that was procured prior to their departure.  
See D.08-09-012, at 4 n, 8. 

41  Declaration of Colin E. Cushnie ¶ 6. 

86



17

2. Eliminating the Code of Conduct’s “lobbying” restrictions would allow the

Joint Utilities to provide local governments with information relevant to their

decisions about CCA programs

The Joint Utilities have significant expertise regarding many of the issues relevant to 

CCA programs and would like to share that information with local governments.  For example, 

the Joint Utilities could explain the bond requirement to local governments and explain how the 

Commission’s actions could affect that requirement.  Similarly, by providing local governments 

with specific comments on a feasibility analysis conducted by a consultant, the Joint Utilities 

could identify inaccuracies, inconsistent or flawed assumptions, or unidentified risks.  And the 

Joint Utilities could provide local governments guidance on how the PCIA is calculated, how 

changes in market prices affect the PCIA, and how the utilities’ proposals and Commission’s 

actions could affect the PCIA.   

By considering the information provided by the Joint Utilities—along with all the 

information provided by consultants and others—local governments will be in a better position 

to critically and carefully evaluate their assumptions and models regarding CCA programs and to 

assess the benefits and risks of any particular option.  The Joint Utilities’ communications with 

local governments about CCA-related issues would benefit potential CCA customers and 

remaining bundled service customers.  Local governments can be more fully informed with 

utility engagement in their deliberations on CCA programs, and use that knowledge to construct 

their CCA programs in a manner intended to increase the likelihood of success.  More informed 

decision-making should reduce the risk that a CCA program fails or elects to terminate service to 

all or a substantial portion of its customers.  A failing CCA program creates a high risk of cost-

shifting to bundled service customers under the current, inadequate interim CCA bond 

requirement because bundled service customers may be forced to subsidize the reentry costs of 

the CCA customers who are involuntarily returned to a utility’s procurement service.   

87



18

The Joint Utilities have restricted their communications with local government officials 

because of the broad sweep of the Code of Conduct’s restrictions on lobbying and the risk that 

any communications with such officials regarding CCA formation may be deemed to violate the 

Code.  Initially, the Code of Conduct defines “lobby” as communication “for the purpose of 

convincing a government agency not to participate in, or to withdraw from participation in, a 

community choice aggregation program.”42  The Joint Utilities’ goal in providing information to 

localities is not to persuade localities not to form CCAs; rather, the Joint Utilities’ goal is to 

ensure that localities have relevant information the utility can provide.  But to the extent the Joint 

Utilities provide information that describes the risks associated with a CCA program, the Joint 

Utilities run the risk under the Code that a party will claim that the true motivation was to 

convince the locality not to participate in the program.  Given the difficulty associated with 

proving state of mind, any communication regarding CCA programs is, as a practical matter, 

fraught with peril.  

This is not a hypothetical concern.  Even where the Joint Utilities have engaged in speech 

that is plainly permissible under the Code, certain CCA proponents have complained to the 

Commission about such speech and have requested that the Commission initiate burdensome and 

expensive investigations and audits.  Recently, California Choice Energy Authority (“CCEA”), 

submitted a letter (attached as Exhibit B) to the Commission accusing SCE of violating the Code 

of Conduct by communicating with community leaders and others regarding certain issues 

pending before this Commission.  Specifically, SCE communicated with these leaders to 

encourage them to support SCE’s efforts to reform the PCIA in the pending rulemaking before 

the Commission.43  Nothing in the Code of Conduct prohibits such communications, which were 

made to draw attention to a current regulatory issue and encourage participation in the 

Commission’s pending rulemaking.  Nevertheless, CCEA requested that the Commission initiate 

42  Code of Conduct Rule 1(b). 
43  See generally R.17-06-026. 

88



19

an “audit” and “thorough review” of SCE’s speech, suggesting that it might violate the “letter” or 

“spirit” of the Code.  Even meritless complaints can create a chilling effect on protected utility 

speech.   

As a result of the risk of being accused of violating the Code, the Joint Utilities have self-

censored their communication to localities regarding CCA programs based on their legitimate 

concern that these communications might be deemed a violation of the Code of Conduct.   

For example, SCE has not answered certain CCA-related questions from local 

government officials due to the risk that an answer could be alleged to violate the Code’s 

lobbying restrictions.44  Similarly, SCE has generally been unable to comment on the substance 

of the CCA feasibility studies submitted to local governments because of the risk that any 

comments might be alleged to run afoul of the Code.45  As a result, SCE employees have not told 

local government officials about information that was inaccurate or incomplete that these 

officials were provided or were considering.46  Some localities have expressed to SCE that they 

would like more information and the perspective of the utility on CCA formation, including 

specific feedback on the feasibility studies that localities receive from CCA consultants.47 

The two express exceptions to the definition of “lobby” in the Code of Conduct do not 

ameliorate the risk utilities face when communicating with local government officials regarding 

CCA-related issues because they do not provide adequate safe harbors from the chilling effect of 

the Code’s “lobbying” restriction.  The first exception to the definition of “lobby” is limited to 

providing “factual answers about utility programs or tariffs” in response to “questions from a 

government agency.”48  This exception is of limited use because local governments may not ask 

a utility for its comments for numerous reasons, including because they are not aware that they 

have received incomplete or inaccurate information or that the utility could provide useful 

44  Declaration of J. Christopher Thompson ¶ 8. 
45  Id.; Declaration of Colin E. Cushnie ¶ 10. 
46  Declaration of J. Christopher Thompson ¶ 8; Declaration of Colin E. Cushnie ¶ 10. 
47  Declaration of J. Christopher Thompson ¶ 8. 
48  Code of Conduct Rule 1(b)(i).   

89



 
 

20 

 

information.  In addition, even in response to a question, the Joint Utilities are limited to 

providing information regarding “utility programs or tariffs.”  And the Code of Conduct also 

does not provide any guidance on what would constitute a “factual answer” that could qualify for 

this exception as opposed to a non-factual opinion that would not qualify.   

Similarly, the information that may be provided under the second exception to the 

definition of ‘lobby” is limited in scope: a utility may provide information regarding “[CCA] 

formation rules and processes.”49  Accordingly, this exception does not create a safe harbor that 

would allow the Joint Utilities to provide local officials with a more complete set of information 

relevant to decisions regarding CCA programs. 

Finally, the Code’s exemption for communications by an independent marketing division 

does not avoid the Code’s significant burden on the Joint Utilities’ communications with local 

government officials.  The Joint Utilities would need to endure the burdens associated with an 

independent marketing division or an affiliate in order to communicate with local governments, 

even though the risk that the Joint Utilities would be seeking to address is a customer-related 

risk, and not a shareholder risk.50  Nor are these burdens minor.  To the contrary, an independent 

marketing division would create significant financial and logistical burdens.  To speak to local 

officials, a utility would have to create the division, hire additional employees for the division, 

and maintain and operate additional office space.  The utility would also have to comply with the 

extensive regulations that apply to independent marketing divisions and affiliates.     

And even if the utility were to attempt to create an independent marketing division or 

affiliate, it would still obtain only a limited ability to communicate with local government 

officials.  Utility employees with the most knowledge and understanding of issues related to 

                                            
49  Code of Conduct Rule 1(b)(ii).   
50  CCA formation creates opportunities and risks for the customers that take service from the new CCA, 

and introduces re-entry and cost allocation risk for remaining bundled service customers.  Generally, 
the Joint Utilities do not have cost recovery risk for their approved contract resources, and therefore 
can focus on providing important information to help local governments make more informed CCA-
related decisions.  

90



21

CCAs and energy procurement contracts would remain unable to speak to local government 

officials or provide relevant information to the independent marketing division or affiliate. 

3. Modifying the Code of Conduct’s lobbying restrictions would still promote

the dissemination of useful information to local governments

In light of the benefits of allowing utilities to communicate with local governments 

regarding CCA programs, and taking into account the constitutional concerns raised by the 

Code’s lobbying restrictions, the Commission should eliminate the Code’s lobbying restrictions 

in their entirety.   

Absent a complete elimination of the lobbying restrictions, SCE and PG&E (but not 

SDG&E) submit that the Commission should clarify that these restrictions apply only to express 

advocacy against CCA programs.  As noted above, the Joint Utilities are concerned that the 

Code’s lobbying restrictions turn on whether a communication is “for the purpose of convincing” 

a local government not to participate in a CCA program.  A purpose-based test is inherently 

fraught with peril because of the subjectivity of such a test and the difficulty in discerning an 

entity’s state of mind.  Even where communications are factually accurate and helpful to the 

local government, a party could claim that the utility’s true motivation was to convince the 

locality not to participate in a CCA program.  Clarifying that the Code applies only to express 

advocacy would incrementally lessen this risk while still preventing a utility from advocating 

against CCA formation.51   

51  See e.g., Buckley v. Valeo, 424 U.S. 1, 77 (1976) (narrowly construing a statute that applied to 
expenditures of money for the purpose of influencing the nomination or election of candidates for 
federal office to apply only to “expenditures for communications that expressly advocate the election 
or defeat of a clearly identified candidate”); also Yamada v. Snipes, 786 F.3d 1182, 1188 (9th Cir. 
2015) (narrowly construing a similar state campaign finance statute to apply only to “communications 
or activities that constitute express advocacy or its functional equivalent”); also Wisconsin Right To 
Life, Inc. v. Barland, 751 F.3d 804, 833 (7th Cir. 2014) (narrowly interpreting a similar statute to 
apply only to “express advocacy” for or against a candidate). 

91



22

D. Utility Communications with the Press Regarding CCA Issues Are in the Public

Interest

The Code of Conduct does not prohibit the Joint Utilities from communicating with the

press regarding CCA-related issues.  There is no express provision in the Code that addresses 

such communications.52  Nor would such communications fall within the Code’s definition of 

“market” or “lobby.”  The definition of “market” covers only direct communications with 

customers, such as “letters, delivery of printed materials, phone calls, spoken word, emails, and 

advertising,” not communications with the press.53  The definition of “lobby” is similarly limited 

to communications with the “public” or with “public officials,” and is also limited to 

communications that have the purpose of “convincing a government agency not to participate in, 

or to withdraw from participation in, a [CCA] program.”54  A communication with the press 

cannot reasonably be construed as “lobbying,” regardless of its content or purpose.  Moreover, 

given the serious free speech issues at stake, the Code should not be construed to limit 

communications with the press absent an unmistakably clear statement to that effect, which does 

not exist.    

Nevertheless, the Joint Utilities are concerned that they could be accused of violating the 

Code of Conduct by communicating with the press regarding CCA-related issues.  Given the 

Code of Conduct’s expedited enforcement procedure, burdensome audit rules, and penalty 

provisions, the Joint Utilities seek confirmation that communications with the press are not 

covered by the Code of Conduct.    

Allowing the Joint Utilities to communicate with the press regarding CCA-related issues 

is in the public interest.  As noted above, CCA-related issues, particularly concerning formation, 

52  While nothing in the Code prohibits communications with the press, the Code’s marketing restrictions 
do restrict a utility’s ability to communicate with customers through paid advertising.  See Code of 
Conduct Rule 1(a).  This petition does not seek any change to that provision of the Code.  

53  Code of Conduct Rule 1(a).  
54  Code of Conduct Rule 1(b). 

92



 
 

23 

 

procurement, and the PCIA are complex.  These issues are also currently matters of significant 

public concern, and they are being examined and debated by the Legislature, before the 

Commission, and in local communities.  The Joint Utilities can help inform this debate with their 

perspective, which is based on decades of experience in California’s energy markets, and by 

providing more complete information regarding these issues.  By contrast, to the extent the Joint 

Utilities are unable to communicate with the press, the public debate on CCA-related issues may 

be informed by the unchallenged views of only some constituencies.  

E. The Requested Relief Is Necessary to Comply with the First Amendment55 

1. The Code of Conduct is subject to “strict scrutiny” under the First 

Amendment 

The Free Speech clause of the First Amendment to the United States Constitution, as 

incorporated against the states by the Fourteenth Amendment, “guarantee[s] that no State shall 

abridge the freedom of speech.”56  Because the Supreme Court has “rejected the argument” that a 

speaker’s “status as a regulated utility company lessens its right to be free from state regulation 

that burdens its speech,” the Joint Utilities are entitled to the full protection of the First 

Amendment.57   

                                            
55  To the Joint Utilities’ knowledge, the Commission has not previously considered whether the Code’s 

restrictions on lobbying or similar restrictions are consistent with the First Amendment.  As noted in 
footnote 21, above, in D.08-06-016, the Commission adopted a settlement between SJVPA and 
PG&E.  Although that settlement did address lobbying activities, it was primarily aimed at PG&E’s 
marketing activities.  The settlement did not require PG&E to engage in lobbying solely through an 
independent marketing division.  D.08-06-016 at 5-7.  And the settlement expressly did not prevent 
PG&E “from timely communicating with the city and county governments participating in SJVPA’s 
CCA program.”  Id. at 6. 

56  Consolidated Edison Co. of N.Y. v. Pub. Serv. Comm’n of N.Y., 447 U.S. 530, 534 (1980) (internal 
quotation marks and alterations omitted).   

57  Pacific Gas & Elec. Co. v. Pub. Utilities Comm’n of California (“PG&E I”), 475 U.S. 1, 17 n, 14 
(1986) (plurality opinion); see Consolidated Edison, 447 U.S. at 534 n.1; Pacific Gas & Elec. Co. v. 
Pub. Utilities Comm’n (“PG&E II”), 85 Cal. App. 4th 86, 93 (2000). 

93



24

Although the Code of Conduct permits lobbying and other speech by a utility’s 

independent marketing division, it is nonetheless subject to scrutiny under the First Amendment 

because it burdens the Joint Utilities’ ability to speak—“[i]t is of no moment that the [Code] does 

not impose a complete prohibition” on speech.58  Financial, logistical, or administrative burdens 

on speech are all sufficient to trigger First Amendment scrutiny.59  

In Citizens United, for example, the Supreme Court struck down certain campaign 

finance laws applicable to corporations as inconsistent with the First Amendment 

“notwithstanding the fact that a PAC [(a Political Action Committee)] created by a corporation 

can still speak.”60  The Supreme Court noted that the financial and logistical burdens associated 

with PACs would burden a corporation’s speech because PACs are “expensive to administer and 

subject to extensive regulations.”61  Like the campaign finance restrictions at issue in Citizens 

United, the Code of Conduct burdens the Joint Utilities’ ability to communicate.  Not unlike 

PACs, independent marketing divisions and affiliates create financial and logistical burdens.  

As noted above, to speak to local officials a utility would have to create the division, hire 

additional employees for the division, lease additional office space, and comply with the 

extensive regulations that apply to such divisions, or address the burdens associated with 

affiliates.  These burdens are especially acute given that the utility’s goal is to improve the 

quality of CCA-related decisions on behalf of all utility customers, including CCA customers. 

Not only is the Code of Conduct subject to scrutiny under the First Amendment, it is 

subject to “strict scrutiny”—the most searching standard of review available—because it 

regulates speech based on its content.  “Content-based laws—those that target speech based on 

58  United States v. Playboy Entm’t Grp., 529 U.S. 803, 812 (2000). 
59  See Citizens United v. Fed. Election Comm’n, 558 U.S. 310, 324 (2010); see, e.g., Watchtower Bible 

& Tract Soc'y of N.Y., Inc. v. Village of Stratton, 536 U.S. 150, 154 (2002) (requirement that 
canvassers obtain a permit was subject to First Amendment scrutiny, even though the permit was free 
and issued routinely); Simon & Schuster, Inc. v. Members of N.Y. State Crime Victims Bd., 502 U.S. 
105, 115 (1991) (requirement that publisher of book deposit money due to author in escrow account 
under certain conditions).  

60  Citizens United, 558 U.S. at 337.  
61  Id. 

94



25

its communicative content—are presumptively unconstitutional and may be justified only if the 

government proves that they are narrowly tailored to serve compelling state interests.”62  

A regulation is “content based” if it “applies to particular speech because of the topic discussed 

or the idea or message expressed.”63   

The Commission’s Code of Conduct is unquestionably a content-based restriction on the 

Joint Utilities’ communications.  Because the Code applies only to communications that “lobby 

against a community choice aggregation program,” it applies “different restrictions” based on the 

“topic discussed . . . or message expressed.”64  Communications lobbying for or against non-

CCA-related issues are not subject to the Code.  Nor are non-lobbying communications and non-

marketing communications subject to the Code.   

In addition, the Code of Conduct is subject to strict scrutiny for a second reason: it 

restricts the Joint Utilities’ ability to communicate regarding a matter of public concern.  

“[S]peech on matters of public concern is at the heart of the First Amendment’s protection.”65  

“The First Amendment reflects a profound national commitment to the principle that debate on 

public issues should be uninhibited, robust, and wide-open.”66  In Consolidated Edison, for 

example, a public utility’s bill inserts that discussed topics of public concern, such as “the 

benefits of nuclear power,” were accorded full protection under the First Amendment and a 

regulation prohibiting them was subject to strict scrutiny.67  Similarly, a court would accord full 

protection under the First Amendment to speech regarding the benefits, costs, and risks of CCA 

programs.   

62  Reed v. Town of Gilbert, 135 S. Ct. 2218, 2226 (2015).   
63  Id. at 2227. 
64  Id.   
65  Snyder v. Phelps, 562 U.S. 443, 451-52 (2011) (citation, internal quotation marks and alterations 

omitted).  
66  Id. at 452 (citation and internal quotation marks omitted).  
67  See Consolidated Edison, 447 U.S. at 532, 535, 540-41 (internal quotation marks omitted). 

95



 
 

26 

 

Because the Code of Conduct is subject to strict scrutiny, it can be upheld only if it is 

“narrowly tailored to serve compelling state interests.”68  As discussed below, the Code does not 

survive this demanding test.  

Finally, as relevant to the Joint Utilities’ communications with local government 

officials, the First Amendment protects not only speech, but also the right to “petition the 

Government for a redress of grievances.”  As the Supreme Court has described it, lobbying the 

government is a “fully protected” right under the First Amendment.69  The Supreme Court has 

explained that providing “information upon which government must act” is protected petitioning 

activity.70  Accordingly, the Joint Utilities’ communications with local government officials are 

protected not only by the Free Speech clause of the First Amendment, but also by the Right to 

Petition clause.   

2. The Code of Conduct is not narrowly tailored to serve a compelling 

government interest 

As discussed above, the Code of Conduct cannot be upheld unless it is narrowly tailored 

to serve a compelling government interest.71  At a minimum, for a regulation to meet this 

standard, “the curtailment of free speech must be actually necessary” to solve an “actual 

problem.”72  And the restriction must be the “least restrictive means to further” the government’s 

asserted interest.73  In describing this “demanding standard,” the Supreme Court has explained 
                                            
68  Reed, 135 S. Ct. at 2226.  Nor is the Code subject to a more relaxed level of scrutiny reserved for 

certain kinds of commercial speech.  Commercial speech is speech that “does no more than propose a 
commercial transaction.”  Hunt v. City of Los Angeles, 638 F.3d 703, 715 (9th Cir. 2011) (internal 
quotation marks omitted).  The Joint Utilities’ speech does “more than propose a commercial 
transaction” because it is directed at government officers in their policy-making capacity.  Instead of 
proposing a transaction with the government, the Joint Utilities’ speech provides information relevant 
to a policy choice that affects the residents and businesses in the government’s jurisdiction.  

69  F.T.C. v. Superior Court Trial Lawyers Ass’n 493 U.S. 411, 426 (1990). 
70  Eastern R.R. Presidents Conference v. Noerr Motor Freight, Inc., 365 U.S. 127, 139 (1961). 
71  Reed, 135 S. Ct. at 2226. 
72  Brown v. Entertainment Merchants Ass’n, 564 U.S. 786, 799 (2011). 
73  A.C.L.U. of Nevada v. City of Las Vegas, 466 F.3d 784, 792 (9th Cir. 2006) (internal quotation marks 

omitted); Sable Communications of California, Inc. v. FCC., 492 U.S. 115, 126 (1989).   

96



27

that it is “rare that a regulation restricting speech because of its content will ever be 

permissible.”74 

The Commission has noted that the Code of Conduct is designed to prevent utilities from 

using their “structural advantages” to influence decisions regarding CCA adoption.75  

These structural advantages are purported to be:  (1) the “inherent market power” that utilities 

have, including, (2) their “well-developed relationship with customers in their service 

territories,” (3) their “name recognition,” and (4) their “access to competitive customer 

information.”76  According to the Commission, by limiting utility marketing and lobbying 

activities the Code of Conduct will provide CCAs “with the opportunity to compete on a fair and 

equal basis” with investor-owned electric utilities.77  

The “structural advantages” identified by the Commission appear to relate solely to 

speech between utilities and their customers.  A utility’s alleged market power might give it 

certain marketing advantages, but those advantages – if they exist at all – would potentially 

affect its communications with customers, not its speech to government officials or the press.78  

Similarly, even assuming that a utility’s “well-developed relationship” with customers or its 

“name recognition” would give it an advantage in influencing customers selecting between the 

utility and a CCA, that consideration does not justify restricting its communications with 

government officials or the press.  Although access to customer information may allow a utility 

to better target its messages to customers, the Commission did not identify how this information 

would unduly affect the utility’s communications with local government officials or the press.   

Indeed, many local governments have significant resources and market power of their 

own.  For example, in addition to its regulatory powers, Los Angeles County manages a budget 

74  Brown, 564 U.S. at 799 (internal quotation marks omitted). 
75  D.12-12-036, at 8-9, 37. 
76  Id. (internal quotation marks omitted). 
77  Id. 
78  While local governments are, of course, customers of the utility, communications regarding CCA 

formation are directed to governments in their capacity as policymakers for their residents and 
businesses. 

97



28

of $25.44 billion.79  By contrast, Edison International, the parent holding company of SCE, had 

total revenues of $11.69 billion.80  Even assuming that the Joint Utilities have certain structural 

advantages, it is unclear how these advantages could overwhelm a local government’s 

independent decision-making abilities.   

In any event, neutralizing the Joint Utilities’ “structural advantages” is not a cognizable 

interest that can justify restrictions on the Joint Utilities’ speech.  The Supreme Court has 

squarely rejected the notion that government has a compelling interest in “leveling the playing 

field” in the context of free speech.81  As the Court has explained, “[t]he concept that 

government may restrict the speech of some elements of our society in order to enhance the 

relative voice of others is wholly foreign to the First Amendment.”82   

The Commission has also justified the Code of Conduct on the basis that “[i]t is 

reasonable and consistent with [§ 707] to require that marketing or lobbying against CCAs is 

supported by shareholder funds, not ratepayer funds.”83  This statement appears to be a reference 

to § 707(a)(5), which instructs the Commission to adopt any rules it determines to be necessary 

or advisable to “protect a ratepayer’s right to be free from forced speech.”   

But utility communications with local government officials or the press would not 

constitute forced speech for two reasons.  First, “[t]he United States Constitution protects 

individual rights only from government action, not from private action.”84  For purposes of 

constitutional analysis, government-regulated utilities like the Joint Utilities are generally treated 

79  http://budget.lacounty.gov/#!/year/default. 
80  Edison International and Southern California Edison, 2016 Annual Report at 1, available at 

https://www.edison.com/content/dam/eix/documents/" 
https://www.edison.com/content/dam/eix/documents/ investors/corporate-governance/2016-annual-
report.pdf. 

81  See Arizona Free Enter. Club’s Freedom Club PAC v. Bennett, 564 U.S. 721, 749 (2011) (internal 
quotation marks omitted).  

82  Citizens United, 558 U.S. at 350 (internal quotation marks and citation omitted). 
83  D.12-12-036 at 39. 
84  Single Moms, Inc. v. Montana Power Co., 331 F.3d 743, 746 (9th Cir. 2003).   

98



29

as private actors, not government actors.85  Accordingly, the United States Court of Appeals for 

the Ninth Circuit has held that an electric and natural gas utility did not violate customers’ First 

Amendment rights by lobbying for deregulation.86   

Second, even if the Joint Utilities’ speech were assumed to be state action, expenditures 

of money for speech that is “germane” to a utility’s mission would not infringe on a customer’s 

right to be free from forced speech.87  “Expenditures are ‘germane’ to an organization’s purpose 

where they ‘are necessarily or reasonably incurred for the purpose’ of the organization.”88  

Communicating with local governments or the press on CCA-related issues is germane to a 

utility’s organizational mission.  Such communications mitigate the risk of cost-shifting to a 

utility’s remaining bundled service customers, may involve questions about how to maintain the 

reliability of the statewide grid, and promote understanding of the relationship between the CCA 

and the utility.  Additionally, CCA customers continue to receive their electric distribution 

services from the utility, including metering and billing.  As such, CCA formation and operations 

involve operating concerns of the utility, and communicating regarding such concerns is 

therefore germane to the utility’s mission.  Indeed, issues regarding the procurement of 

electricity, including costs, supply mix, resource adequacy, and the like go to the very heart of 

what utilities do for their customers.  It is difficult to imagine any topic more “germane” to the 

mission of a utility.   

In any event, the Code of Conduct’s restrictions go well beyond regulating the source of 

funding for CCA-related speech.  In particular, the Code’s burdensome regulations regarding the 

use of information, employees, and facilities are not narrowly tailored to address any potential 

concern regarding the source of funding for CCA-related speech.  

85  See id.; Jackson v. Metro. Edison Co., 419 U.S. 345, 350-51 (1974). 
86  See Single Moms, 331 F.3d at 746.   
87  Braintree Elec. Light Dep’t v. F.E.R.C., 550 F.3d 6, 14 (D.C. Cir. 2008); see also Keller v. State Bar 

of California, 496 U.S. 1, 14 (1990). 
88  Braintree Elec. Light Dep’t, 550 F.3d at 14. 

99



30

F. This Petition for Modification Could Not Have Been Presented Within One Year of

the Effective Date of D.12-12-036

This Petition for Modification is being filed more than one year after the effective date of

D.12-12-036.  But this post-one-year filing is justified by significant changed circumstances.

When D.12-12-036 was adopted, relatively few localities were considering CCA formation.89  

Now, five years later, dozens of localities have recently considered or are considering adopting 

CCA programs.  As localities have begun to consider this option, the Joint Utilities have become 

aware that localities may not be receiving complete or accurate information regarding CCA 

formation.  These changed circumstances have convinced the Joint Utilities that they should 

communicate with local governments to ensure that they have more complete and accurate 

information relevant to their decisions on CCA formation and operations.  But, at the same time, 

the Joint Utilities have come to understand that, as a practical matter, the Code of Conduct 

effectively prohibits them from providing such information to local government officials.90 

Moreover, the Code of Conduct was the Commission’s first attempt to craft a 

comprehensive set of rules to satisfy § 707.  When first adopted, these rules were untested and 

their impact uncertain.  Indeed, the Commission phrased its understanding of the impact of these 

rules in tentative terms:  “[W]e believe that such a Code of Conduct should benefit customers by 

preserving their ability to make educated choices among authorized electric providers.”91  It is 

only natural that, over time, the effect of the Code of Conduct would become more certain and 

additional clarification or refinement would become necessary.92   

As shown above, this petition’s proposed refinements to the Code of Conduct are both 

narrow and necessary. 

89  Declaration of Colin E. Cushnie ¶ 4; Declaration of J. Christopher Thompson ¶ 3. 
90  Declaration of Colin E. Cushnie ¶¶ 4-10. 
91  D.12-12-036 at 6 (emphasis added). 
92  Additionally, it has recently become clear that the effects of the PCIA will become increasingly 

problematic as departing load increases, and that the Commission will need to address the current 
PCIA methodology, which it is currently doing in R.17-06-026. 

100



31

IV.  

PROPOSED SCHEDULE 

Many localities in the Joint Utilities’ service areas are currently in the process of 

considering forming or joining CCAs, including Long Beach, Huntington Beach, Laguna Beach, 

Palmdale, Murrieta, Wildomar, and Desert Hot Springs, in SCE’s service area; and Solana Beach 

in SDG&E’s service area.93  To ensure they have an opportunity to communicate with these 

localities before they make a final decision, the Joint Utilities respectfully request that the 

Commission take prompt action on this petition and set the following schedule: 

 Responses to Petition Due: March 1, 2018.94  

 The Joint Utilities’ Reply Due: March 12, 2018, if permission to file a reply is 

granted.95   

 Proposed Decision Issued: June 1, 2018.  

As required by Rule 16.4 (c) of the Commission’s Rules of Practice and Procedure, the 

Joint Utilities have served this petition on all parties to R.12-02-009, the proceeding that resulted 

in D.12-12-036.  The Joint Utilities have also served all parties to R.03-10-003 and R.17-06-026.  

93  Declaration of J. Christopher Thompson ¶ 4. 
94  Thirty days from the filing of this Petition, as required by Rule 16.4 (f) of the Commission’s Rules of 

Practice and Procedure. 
95  Ten days from the date Responses to this Petition are due, as set forth in Rule 16.4 (g) of the 

Commission’s Rules of Practice and Procedure. 

101



32

Respectfully submitted, 

JANET S. COMBS 
FADIA RAFEEDIE KHOURY 
HENRY WEISSMANN 
KURUVILLA J. OLASA 

   /s/ Janet S. Combs 
By: Janet S. Combs 

Attorneys for 
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY 

STACY VAN GOOR 
E. GREGORY BARNES

   /s/ Stacy Van Goor 
By: Stacy Van Goor 

Attorneys for  
SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY 

RANDALL J. LITTENEKER 

   /s/ Randall J. Litteneker 
By: Randall J. Litteneker 

Attorney for  
PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY 

Dated:   January 30, 2018 

102



EXHIBIT A 

Proposed Revisions to D.12-12-036 

103



A-1

PROPOSED REVISIONS TO D.12-12-036 

8.1 Rules of Conduct for Electrical Corporations Relative to Community Choice 

Aggregation Programs 

1) The following definitions apply for the purposes of these rules:
a) “Market” means communicate with customers, whether in oral,

electronic, or written form, including but not limited to letters,
delivery of printed materials, phone calls, spoken word, emails, 
and advertising (including on the Internet, radio, and television), 
regarding the electrical corporation’s and community choice 
aggregators’ energy supply services and rates.  Marketing under 
this definition does not include the following: 

i) Communications provided by the electrical corporation
throughout all of its service territory to its retail electricity
customers that do not reference community choice
aggregation programs.

ii) Communications that are part of a specific program that is
authorized or approved by the California Public Utilities
Commission (CPUC), including but not limited to customer
energy efficiency, demand response, SmartMeterTM, and
renewable energy rebate, or tariffed programs such as the
California Solar Initiative and other similar CPUC-approved
or authorized programs.  (See Decision (D.) 08-06-016,
Appendix A.

iii) Provision of factual answers about utility programs or tariffs,
including but not limited to rate analyses, in answer to the
questions of individual customers.

b) “Lobby” means to communicate whether in oral, electronic, or
written form, including but not limited to letters, delivery of printed
materials, phone calls, spoken word, emails, and advertising
(including on the Internet, radio, and television), with public
officials or the public or any portion of the public for the purpose of
convincing a government agency not to participate in, or to withdraw
from participation in, a community choice aggregation program.

104



A-2

(Cf. D.08-06-016, Appendix A.)1  Lobbying under this definition 
does not include  

i) Provision of factual answers about utility programs or tariffs,
including but not limited to rate analyses, in answer to
questions from a government agency or its representative.

ii) Provision of information to potential Community Choice
Aggregators related to Community Choice Aggregation
program formation rules and processes.

c) b) “Promotional or political advertising” means promotional or
political advertising as defined in 16 U.S.C. Sec. 2625(h).

d) c) "Competitively sensitive information" means non-public
information and data specific to a utility customer which the utility
acquired or developed in the course of its provision of utility 
services.  This includes, without limitation, information about 
which customers have or have not chosen to opt out of community 
choice aggregation service.  (See D.97-12-088, App. A, Part I.D.) 

2) No electrical corporation shall market or lobby against a community
choice aggregation program, except through an independent marketing
division that is funded exclusively by the electrical corporation's
shareholders and that is functionally and physically separate from the
electrical corporation's ratepayer-funded divisions.2  (See Pub. Util.
Code § 707(a)(1).)

3) [No Change]

4) [No Change]

5) [No Change]

6) [No Change]

7) [No Change]

8) [No Change]

1  The language from D.08-06-016, Appendix A has been modified to cover the conduct of electrical 
corporations relative to consideration and formation of community choice aggregation programs, as 
required by Cal. Pub. Util. Code § 707(a).  All statutory references are to the California Public 
Utilities Code unless otherwise stated. 

2   In the case of a holding company that owns two or more regulated utility entities (e.g., Sempra 
Energy), one regulated utility cannot market or lobby against a CCA in the service area of the other 
utility, except as provided for in this paragraph (e.g., through an independent marketing division 
funded exclusively by shareholders and separate from ratepayer-funded divisions). 

105



 

A-3 

9) [No Change] 

10) [No Change] 

11) [No Change] 

12) [No Change] 

13) As a general principle, an electrical corporation may share with its 
independent marketing division joint corporate oversight, governance, 
support systems and support personnel; provided that support personnel 
shall not include any persons who are themselves involved in marketing 
or lobbying.  Any shared support shall be priced, reported and 
conducted in accordance with applicable Commission pricing and 
reporting requirements.  As a general principle, such joint utilization 
shall not allow or provide a means for the transfer of competitively 
sensitive information from the electrical corporation to the independent 
marketing division, create the opportunity for preferential treatment or 
unfair competitive advantage, lead to customer confusion, or create 
significant opportunities for cross-subsidization of the independent 
marketing division.  (See D.97-12-088, App. A, Part V.E.) 

14) [No Change] 

15) [No Change] 

16) [No Change] 

17) [No Change] 

18) [No Change]  

19) [No Change] 

20) [No Change] 

21) No later than March 31, 2013, each electrical corporation that intends to 
market or lobby against a CCA shall submit a compliance plan 
demonstrating to the Commission that there are adequate procedures in 
place that will preclude the sharing of information with its independent 
marketing division that is prohibited by these rules, and is in all other 
ways in compliance with these rules.  The electrical corporation shall 
submit its compliance plan as a Tier 1 advice letter to the Commission's 
Energy Division and serve it on the parties to this proceeding.  The 
electrical corporation’s compliance plan shall be in effect between the 
submission and Commission disposition of the advice letter. 

a) An electrical corporation shall submit a revised compliance plan 
thereafter by Tier 2 advice letter served on all parties to this 

106



A-4

proceeding whenever there is a proposed change in the compliance 
plan for any reason.  Energy Division may reject the Tier 2 advice 
letter and require resubmission as a Tier 3 advice letter if Energy 
Division believes the change requires an additional level of review. 

b) An electrical corporation that does not intend to lobby or market
against any community choice aggregation program shall file a
Tier 1 advice letter no later than March 31, 2013, stating that it
does not intend to engage in any such lobbying or marketing.

(i) If such an electrical corporation thereafter decides that it
wishes to lobby or market against any community choice
aggregation program, it shall not do so until it has filed and
received approval of a compliance plan as described above,
with its compliance plan filed as a Tier 2 advice letter with
Energy Division.  (See D.97-12-088, App. A, Part VI.A.)

c) Any CCA alleging that an electrical corporation has 1) violated the
terms of its filed compliance plan or 2) has engaged in lobbying
and/or marketing after filing an advice letter stating that it does not
intend to conduct such activities, may file a complaint under the
expedited complaint procedure authorized in § 366.2(c)(11).

22) [No Change]

8.2 Rules Regarding Enforcement Procedures 

[No Change]

107



EXHIBIT B 

Copy of CCEA’s September 25, 2017 Letter 

108



Equitable Energy Choice for Californians

109



inherent market power

letter
spirit

non

See 

  /s/ Mark Bozigian    

110



111



Tell the CPUC you believe all energy consumers should share equitably in 
the cost of investments in clean energy and other resources 

California is a leader in clean energy and environmental climate change goals. We are on track to meet our 
mandated goal of 50% renewable energy by 2030, thanks to the leadership of our state’s elected officials 
and regulators, and in large part to the long-term investments in renewable energy made by customers of 
the state’s investor-owned utilities. These investments helped kick-start renewable energy technologies to 
make them far more affordable and accessible today than when the legislature first mandated utilities 
purchase increasing amounts of clean energy.

However, the way people buy energy is changing and more customers are buying power from sources 
other than their utility. If we are to continue California’s progress in meeting our clean energy and 
environmental goals, we must ensure that all customers continue to contribute equitably in the costs of 
clean energy and other resources purchased on their behalf. 

Current law requires that no customer be required to pay for power purchased for other customers. 
However, the mechanism established to protect customers is not working. As a result, some are paying 
more than they should. To address this problem, the CPUC recently opened a formal proceeding to review 
the mechanism often referred to as the Power Charge Indifference Adjustment or PCIA.  

As part of this announcement, the CPUC acknowledged that: 

•  “Investor-owned utilities and Community Choice Aggregators both have stated that the current cost
allocation is inequitable.”     

• “The rise in California customers served by Community Choice Aggregators makes the cost
allocation more important to customer bills.” 

• “…stakeholders have identified cost allocation issues as the most urgent topic in electric retail choice
in California.”   

Urge the CPUC to create rules that ensure all customers equitably share in the 
cost of clean power 

The CPUC needs to hear from diverse constituencies that want to preserve customer choice, while 
ensuring all customers equitably contribute to meeting our renewable energy and climate action goals. 
Please consider signing on to the attached letter so we can tell the CPUC: 

Current laws to protect customers from paying for power investments made on behalf of others are 
not working. 

It has been estimated that some customers who now receive power through an alternative energy 
provider may on average only pay roughly 65% of the cost of clean energy that was purchased on 
their behalf.   
As a result, some customers who do not use an alternative energy provider could end up paying 
roughly $150 extra per year to pay for power purchased for others.  
This is not sustainable. In all cases, as more alternative energy providers form, there are going to 
be fewer remaining utility customers left paying an increasing cost for power purchased for others. 

Fact Sheet 

112



The CPUC must establish rules to ensure all customers share equitably in the costs of renewable 
and other energy. 

To ensure that the move to more customer choice is both sustainable and equitable, the CPUC 
must reform the current mechanism, including the PCIA, to ensure all customers share equitably in 
the costs of the long-term investments in renewable and other resources that were purchased on 
their behalf when they were a utility customer. 
That means all customers – whether they move to an alternative power provider or stay with the 
utility – will share equitably for past purchases made on their behalf, and no customer shall be left 
paying for power purchased for others. 
We all benefit from the clean energy investments that have been made to improve our air quality 
and environment, so no customers should be forced to pay more than their fair share. 

113



 

 

 

EXHIBIT C 

Supporting Declarations 

114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



Item 6.D 

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Technical Advisory Committee 

Staff Report

Subject: International City / County Management Association Activities Update 

Contact: AJ Wilson, California Senior Advisor, ajwcm@aol.com, (760) 723-8623 

Date: March 15, 2018 

The purpose of this item is to provide the Committee of International City / County Management Association 
(ICMA) activities. 

Requested Action: 

1. Receive and file.

ICMA 

Manager Career Support:  There has been an ongoing effort in ICMA top expand the support services 
available to members of the organization.  Attached is a report which reflect those efforts (Attachment 1). 

Annual Conference:  ICMA will introduce new regional conferences as an opportunity for Managers and 
Assistants to participate in a program closer to home.  This year’s West Coast Regional Conference will be 
held May 2 – 4, 2018, at the Skamania Lodge in Stevenson, Washington, held in conjunction with a regular 
meeting of the Northwest Managers from the states of Oregon and Washington, and will offer a relaxed 
atmosphere with a modestly sized attendance. 

League of California Cities 

League of California Cities City Managers Department:  Pension Reform – The annual meeting of the City 
Managers Department of the League of California Cities was held in Newport Beach on January 31, 2018, 
through February 2, 2018.  A major point of emphasis was Pension Reform with representatives of the 
professional staff of PERS, along with the Director of the California Department of Finance, providing a 
presentation.  There was also the release of the results of a survey of California cities (approximately 200 
responded).  It reaffirms the difficult financial picture facing California Cities with the planned reduction in 
annual investment return from 7.5% to 7% over the next 5 years.  And finally, PERS has reduced the 
amortizing schedule from 30 years to 20 years. 

One of the encouraging revelations was the apparent determination of Governor Brown to further address the 
fiscal crisis facing cities recognizing that the fiscal burden for cities is 200% of that facing the State of 
California.  The Governor personally prepared a brief for the California Supreme Court seeking to have the so- 
called California Rule relaxed in situations where continuation of the level of benefits for Classic Employees 
would threaten the stability of the pension system in a city.  The League of California Cities is also having a 
brief prepared in support of the elimination of the California Rule. 

City Managers Department Annual Work Program:  The Executive Committee of the City Managers 
Department met on January 31, 2018.  A major focus of the meeting was updates on the implementation of the 

125

mailto:ajwcm@aol.com


2017-2018 Work Plan.  A copy of the Work Plan is attached for your information (Attachment 2). 

Senior Advisor Support 

As your Senior Advisor, Mr. Wilson is available for personal discussions, resource identification, and general 
briefings for your employees who may be ICMA members or MMASC members.  Please contact Mr. Wilson at 
(714) 323-9116 or ajwcm@aol.com.

Prior Action: 

October 19, 2017: The WRCOG Technical Advisory Committee received and filed. 

Fiscal Impact: 

This item is for informational purposes only; therefore, there is no fiscal impact. 

Attachments: 

1. ICMA Career Guides.
2. City Managers Department Work Plan.

126

mailto:ajwcm@aol.com


Item 6.D 
International City / County 

Management Association Activities 
Update 

Attachment 1 
ICMA Career Guides

127



128



 
129



130



Item 6.D 
International City / County 

Management Association Activities 
Update 

Attachment 2 
City Managers Department Work 

Plan

131



132



City Managers Department 
2017-18 Work Plan  

1. Push for Reasonable and Sustainable Pension Reform (Bruce Channing, Laguna
Hills; Anton Dahlerbruch, Board Member; Kurt Wilson, President-elect; Eric Figueroa,
At-Large)

i. Through meaningful reform, develop plans that have long-term
sustainable costs resulting from changes to benefit formulas for all
members.

ii. Advocate for more contract flexibility for contracting cities.
iii. Seek clarification on several interpretations of PEPRA that may be

harmful to city operations.
iv. Enact reforms that still allow retirees to still perform some limited

services essential to cities with a need.
v. Developing a communication plan for city managers and elected

officials.

2. Support California’s City Managers (Mark Alexander, CM La Canada Flintridge;
Valerie Barone, CM Concord; Matt Bronson, CM Grover Beach; Teri Killgore, ICM
Vallejo; Peter Castro, ATCM Indian Wells)

• Continue to promote and implement strategies outlined in the “Challenges and
Strategies: Maximizing Success for City and County Managers in California”

i. Continue and expand presentations at League and affiliate
conferences

ii. Support and expand the reach of pilot projects:
1. “Joys and Challenges” segments at Area Group manager

meetings
2. “Buddy System” to welcome and assist new City Managers
3. Development of a “Peer Team” to provide outreach to

managers in distress.
4. Development of “talking points” (in conjunction with ILG or other

groups) six times per year on issues of importance for elected
officials that specifically focus on the Council-Manager
relationship.  Talking points would be provided to all regional
managers and shared at league division outings.

• Highlight and promote educational and motivational opportunities for
Managers

1400 K Street, Suite 400 • Sacramento, California 95814 
Phone: 916.658.8200 Fax: 916.658.8240 

www.cacities.org 

133



• Continue to integrate efforts of Cal-ICMA and CCMF to make sure they are
complimentary and promote such efforts.

3. Motivate, Celebrate and Challenge Department Members (Reeva Feldman,
VP/CCMF Rep)

i. Provide regular communications to members of the department
through a monthly email message.

ii. Challenge Managers to represent the profession and their communities
well with commitment, focus and passion.  Develop a program that
encourages Managers to “check-in” with others if encouragement or
correction is needed prior to there being a professional issue.

4. Continue Building on Our Relationship with the League Executive Director,
Senior Staff, and the Board of Directors  (Jim Lewis, President; and Kurt Wilson,
President-elect, Anton Dahlerbruch, Board Member)

• Continued commitment to support the Board’s goals.
• Create an efficient ways for representatives to report to the Department.

5. Establish a working group of City Managers and League staff to enhance
Outreach Efforts of California Cities that Successfully Results in Policies
Promoting Local Control and the Long-term Sustainability of Cities (Pat West,
CM Long Beach; Eric Figueroa, At-Large; Debra Garcia, MSD Pismo Beach; Jorge
Garcia, ATCM Santa Ana, mmcDave Mullinax, Regional Representative)

2017-2018 Department Officers 

President  –   Jim Lewis, City Manager, Pismo Beach 
President Elect  – Kurt Wilson, City Manager, Stockton  
Vice President –  Reva Feldman, City Manager, Malibu 
Immediate Past President –  Dan Keen, City Manager, Vallejo 
Department Director* – Tony Dahlerbruch, City Manager, Palos Verdes Estates 

At-Large Representatives 
Southern CA under 100,000 Population – Mark Alexander, City Manager, La Canada 
Flintridge 
Southern CA over 100,000 Population – Pat West, City Manager, Long Beach 
Northern CA under 100,000 Population – Eric Figueroa, Asst. City Manager, San 
Ramon 
Northern CA over 100,000 Population – Valerie Barone, City Manager, Concord 

Terms are for one year, ending in September, except the director and at-large 
representatives, who serve two-year terms. 

134



Item 6.E 

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Technical Advisory Committee 

Staff Report

Subject: Experience Regional Innovation Center Feasibility Analysis Update  

Contact: Andrea Howard, Senior Analyst, ahoward@wrcog.us, (951) 405-6751 

Date: March 15, 2018 

The purpose of this item is to provide an update on the Feasibility Analysis of a potential innovation center, 
Experience, which would provide a host of community resources, promote sustainable practices, and 
showcase the assets and capabilities of the subregion. 

Requested Action: 

1. Receive and file.

Background 

Western Riverside County is one of the fastest growing subregions in the State of California and the United 
States.  During past WRCOG visioning efforts, subregional leaders identified six interrelated components 
critically important to achieving a premier quality of life in Western Riverside County, and incorporated these 
into the WRCOG Economic Development & Sustainability Framework (the Framework), which serves as a 
guide to grow strategically and achieve a vibrant and livable community.  The six Framework goal areas 
pertain to:  1) Economic Development; 2) Water and Wastewater; 3) Education; 4) Health; 5) Transportation; 
and 6) Energy and the Environment.  

In 2016, staff introduced the concept of Experience, envisioned as a vibrant regional center with a variety of 
visitor attractions that could also serve as a sustainability demonstration center, innovation hub, business 
incubator, and more.  The aim of Experience is to showcase the assets and capabilities of inland southern 
California while serving community needs and advancing the Framework goal areas.  Experience would be 
designed to draw audiences for a variety of purposes by including such elements as an education center, 
community farm, water efficient garden, walking loop, amphitheater, farm-to-fork café, and other public assets.  
Once at Experience, visitors would be exposed to best practices in water and energy, emerging technology, 
employment prospects, and more.  Experience would borrow inspiration from similar concepts from across the 
globe including, but not limited to: 

• Los Angeles Cleantech Incubator (LACI) – Los Angeles, CA
• The Frontier Project – Rancho Cucamonga, CA
• Southern California Edison Energy Education Center – Irwindale, CA
• Alegria Farms – Irvine, CA

Feasibility Analysis 

On October 2, 2017, the Executive Committee authorized staff to enter into a contract not to exceed $249,823, 
with PlaceWorks consultants to perform a comprehensive Feasibility Analysis of the Experience concept.  The 
Analysis scope includes thorough research of relevant models, a demand analysis for the center and program 
elements, analysis of up-to four potential sites, analysis of governance options and partnership opportunities, 

135

mailto:ahoward@wrcog.us


financial analysis, and a final Feasibility Analysis with recommendation(s).  Additionally, the Analysis would 
review potential funding partners and mechanisms to ensure a viable implementation plan for Experience, 
should it be feasible. 

Staff and consultants held an internal kick-off meeting on October 16, 2017, to discuss the goals and visions, 
as well as potential sites to include in the Analysis, and the formation of an advisory Steering Committee.  The 
Steering Committee is scheduled to convene six times during the course of the Analysis to weigh in on the 
process and findings through July 2018, when the Analysis is scheduled to conclude.  The Steering Committee 
is composed of members from the Executive Committee, who volunteered to serve in this role, in response to 
an email solicitation to all members.  Additionally, staff invited a variety of stakeholders, including member 
agency staff, utility partners, and university representatives, to participate on the Steering Committee.   

Steering Committee Meeting #1 

On Monday, January 22, 2018, the Steering Committee convened its first meeting.  The meeting began with an 
introduction to the Experience concept and review of some of the relevant models for an idea of the variety of 
programming features others have instituted in the areas of education, community services, research, and 
economic development.  Attendees then engaged in a discussion of the goals for Experience, building from the 
list staff and consultants drafted at the kick-off meeting.  Meeting notes and presentation slides are provided as 
Attachment 1. 

Steering Committee Meeting #2 

The second Experience Steering Committee convened on Monday, February 26, 2018, in Rancho 
Cucamonga.  Three presenters from regional models shared their experiences from the Lyle Center at Cal 
Poly Pomona, the Los Angeles Cleantech Incubator, and the Cucamonga Valley Water District’s Frontier 
Project.  Attendees asked the presenters questions to identify relevant lessons to apply to Experience.  
Meeting notes and presentation slides are included as Attachment 2. 

Steering Committee Meeting Schedule 

The Steering Committee will convene next on March 19, 2018, to discuss collaborative opportunities with the 
region’s educational partners, refine the mission of Experience, and select the program elements to be 
included in the analysis.  The list below summarizes the topics and provides dates for each of the remaining 
Steering Committee meetings.   

March 19, 2018: Meeting #3, Selection of Program Elements for Analysis 
May 21, 2018:  Meeting #4, Site assessment and demand analysis 
June 18, 2018:  Meeting #5, Alternative governance, operations, and partnerships 
July 23, 2018:  Meeting #6, Final recommendations 

Staff will provide regular updates to WRCOG Committees for the duration of the Analysis.  

Prior Action: 

February 14, 2018: The Administration & Finance Committee received and filed. 

Fiscal Impact: 

This item is for informational purposes only; therefore there is no fiscal impact. 

Attachments: 

1. Steering Committee Meeting #1 Notes and Presentation Slides.
2. Steering Committee Meeting #2 Notes and Presentation Slides.

136



Item 6.E 
Experience Regional Innovation 

Center Feasibility Analysis Update 

Attachment 1 
Steering Committee Meeting #1 
Notes and Presentation Slides

137



138



1

Feasibility Study for EXPERIENCE - 
A Regional Innovation Center 

Steering Committee Meeting #1 Summary
January 22, 2018 | 11:00 AM - 1:00 PM

Project Contact: Andrea Howard, Senior Analyst, ahoward@wrcog.us, (951) 405-6751

Steering Committee:
Executive Committee Members: Debbie Franklin, City of Banning; Adam Rush, City of Eastvale; Laura Roughton, City 
of Jurupa Valley; Kelly Seyarto, City of Murrieta; Rusty Bailey, City of Riverside; Kevin Bash, City of Norco; Dr. White, 
Riverside County Superintendent of Schools

Member Agency Staff: Grace Williams, City of Perris; Lea Deesing, City of Riverside; Sherry Shimoshock, City of 
Riverside; Matt Peters, City of Temecula; Jolene Walsh, Eastern Municipal Water District (EMWD); Danielle Coates, 
EMWD; Melanie EMWD
Regional Stakeholders: Joanna Chang, Southern California Edison; Jeff Lawler, Southern California Gas Company 
(SoCalGas); Ana Aceves, SoCalGas; Alexandra Orozco, University of California, Riverside (UCR); Nicole Davis, UCR

Staff and Consultants: Rick Bishop, WRCOG; Jennifer Ward, WRCOG; Tyler Masters, WRCOG; Andrea Howard, WR-
COG; Cynthia Mejia, WRCOG; Amber Bolden, WRCOG; Huyen Bui, WRCOG; Alexa Washburn, National CORE; Karen 
Gulley, PlaceWorks; Scott Ashlock, PlaceWorks; Eric Carbonnier, HMC Architects

Experience - Origin and Current Ideas: 
In 2010, WRCOG adopted the Sustainability Framework, which recognized six interrelated goal areas for achieving a 
high quality of life and regional economic growth: transportation, water and waste water, energy and environment, 
economic development, health, and education.  The concept of Experience is a physical manifestation of the Frame-
work that would contain various elements that advance the Framework Goals. 

To achieve this goal, WRCOG envisions that Experience would draw audiences for a variety of purposes by including 
such elements as an education center, community farm, water efficient garden, walking loop, amphitheater, farm-
to-fork café, and other public assets.  Once at Experience, visitors would be exposed to best practices in water and 
energy, emerging technology, employment prospects, and more.  

139



2

Purpose of this Study - Future Path for EXPERIENCE:
On October 2, 2017, WRCOG’s Executive Committee approved a contract with PlaceWorks consultants to perform a 
Feasibility Analysis (the Analysis).  The Analysis will explore the viability of bringing Experience to Western Riverside 
County.  The analysis will begin with a review of relevant models to identify the program elements that would be 
desired for Experience.  PlaceWorks will perform an opportunity and constraints analysis of the potential host sites 
and develop a demand analysis for the center and develop a set of options for the potential governance structure.  
Finally, the analysis components will be assessed together to determine overall feasibility. 

Role of the Steering Committee:
The Steering Committee will provide valuable insights and feedback at each step of the Analysis.  The meetings 
have been strategically scheduled to coincide with major milestones, and participants will be encouraged to provide 
valuable information to shape the direction and conclusion of the Analysis. 

Timeline:
The Analysis will span ten months, beginning in October 2017 and concluding in July 2018.  The full timeline is listed 
in the Meeting 1 Presentation slides. 

Background on Other Relevant Models:
PlaceWorks presented several relevant models, providing a spectrum of ideas for potential elements to include in 
the Experience analysis, from examples across the County.  These relevant models are listed in the Table of Relevant 
Models.  Three of the models were also featured in a short compilation video played during the meeting, which can 
be viewed here.

Goal Setting by the Committee:
Initial working goals for Experience were shared with the Committee as a starting point for discussion.  Over the 
course of an hour, members provided a variety of ideas and desires for what EXPERIENCE could be and how it could 
function.  Below are the Initial Working Goals with comments incorporated, followed by a summary of the addition-
al goals born from the discussion.

Initial Working Goals: EXPERIENCE should…
1. Benefit all WRCOG organizations and the communities served
2. Be tied to WRCOG’s mission
3. Support WRCOG’s Economic Development and Sustainability Framework
4. Not resemble a monument, but a place that engages, educates and motivates people
5. Be relevant to what’s important to the region – a sustained public benefit
6. Be financially feasible from construction to operations and maintenance overtime
7. Have a high-level of performance for program elements and the facilities, which should be tracked and

evaluated
8. Provide multiple reasons to visit through a wide variety of cohesive activities that result in returning visitors
9. Be innovative, cutting-edge, and provide a rotation of forward-thinking displays, events, and activities
10. Incorporate best practices for water and energy efficiency, sustainable building design, and business

strategy
11. Empower the community to adopt techniques/take action

140



3

12.	 Provide visitors with a unique experience that encapsulates the region
13.	 Be embraced by both the public and private sector – encouraging partnerships and collaboration

Committee Discussion:  EXPERIENCE should…
1.	 Provide economic development opportunities for individuals and businesses 

•	 Prepare people for jobs in the subregion
•	 Be attractive to businesses (to locate there or partner with)
•	 Be a central place to access information/resources (for companies considering moving to River-

side or for start-up companies)
2.	 Not be a Monument

•	 It should not just showcase what WRCOG has done
•	 It must be relevant over time
•	 The building design should reflect the energy/resource conserving technologies    and tell a story 

(function over form)
3.	 Be accessible by all modes of transportation (e.g., car, bus, train, pedestrians, cyclists) and all segments of 

the population (low income, rural/urban, non-English speaking, multiple ages, etc.)
4.	 Tell the story of Western Riverside County by showcasing the region’s current assets/successes.  This 

should also include promoting the vision for Western Riverside County through visual simulations or other 
techniques.  

•	 Showcase uniqueness of region (what it has to offer) and tap into international opportunities to 
showcase (sister-cities)

•	 Include futuristic “look” at trends Riverside County will likely experience, how these trends may 
change the region, and how we can prepare

•	 Incorporate museum features w/revolving exhibits – see Catalina Island 
•	 Include space for each jurisdiction/partner to have exhibit
•	 Promote region – every nook should tell a story
•	 Showcase best practices that the region wants to see happen w/ new development
•	 Paint the story of sustainability in Riverside County – for new businesses
•	 Have a way to bring in new partners
•	 Share success stories – WRCOG and others, showcase start-ups
•	 Riverside County is a series of PLACES – tie them together with the EXPERIENCE concept

5.	 Compliment UC Riverside and Cal Poly Pomona sustainability and regenerative studies research (agricultural 
living labs, solar/micro grids)

6.	 Be accessible to everyone in the community – be affordable and open to the public
7.	 Accommodate large and small audiences
8.	 Provide interactive educational opportunities for all ages 

•	 Tactile
•	 Education for children 
•	 SoCalGas – see demo in Downey: education on kitchen technology
•	 “Inspiration center” – youth (tech playground), improve on Discovery Science Center model
•	 Experience Water, Experience Health, Experience Education, etc. – based on Framework plan, 

could be located throughout

141



4

• See Discovery Cube – Sylmar
9. Serve as a centralized resource and information center for the region

• Central place for accessing information – utility rebates, info on WRCOG partners, non-profit
groups, community health, start-up companies, resource center

• Include liaison services – permitting, accounting, legal

Committee Input on the Mission for EXPERIENCE:
Following a thorough discussion of goals, attendees were introduced to four mission statements from relevant mod-
els to initiate a first discussion on establishing a mission for Experience.  Below is a summary of the discussion. 

1. To build a regenerative future, EXPERIENCE must:
• Be Proactive
• Educate
• Familiarize
• Promote
• Encourage
• Inspire
• Connect

2. Make our motivation clear

142



5

G
rap

h
ic M

eetin
g
 R

eco
rd

in
g

143



F
e

a
sib

ility
 S

tu
d

y
 fo

r 
E
X

P
E
R

IE
N

C
E
 –

A
 R

e
g

io
n

a
l 

In
n

o
v
a

tio
n

 C
e

n
te

r

S
te

e
rin

g
 C

o
m

m
itte

e
M

e
e

tin
g

 #
1

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
2

, 2
0

1
8

144



•
In

tro
d

u
ctio

n
s

•
EX

P
ER

IEN
C

E –
O

rigin
 an

d
 C

u
rren

t Id
eas

•
P

u
rp

o
se o

f th
is Stu

d
y –

Fu
tu

re Path
 fo

r
EX

P
ER

IEN
C

E

•
R

o
le o

f th
e Steerin

g C
o

m
m

ittee

•
Tim

elin
e

•
B

ackgro
u

n
d

 o
n

 O
th

er R
elevan

t M
o

d
els

•
G

o
al Settin

g b
y th

e C
o

m
m

ittee

Th
e Sp

rin
g

s P
reserve, La

s V
eg

a
s

C
o

sta
l R

o
o

ts Fa
rm

, En
cin

ita
s

To
d

a
y

’s A
g

e
n

d
a

145



•
W

R
C

O
G

 Staff
•

R
ick B

ish
o

p
•

Jen
n

ifer W
ard

•
C

h
ris G

ray
•

A
n

d
rea H

o
w

ard

•
Team

 C
o

llab
o

rato
rs 

•
A

lexa W
ash

b
u

rn
, N

atio
n

al C
o

re
•

K
aren

 G
u

lley, P
laceW

o
rks

•
Sco

tt A
sh

lo
ck, P

laceW
o

rks
•

Eric C
arb

o
n

n
ier, H

M
C

 A
rch

itects
•

Eera
B

ab
tiw

ale
, H

M
C

 A
rch

itects

In
tro

d
u

c
tio

n
s

146



•
Steerin

g C
o

m
m

ittee M
e

m
b

ers

•
W

R
C

O
G

 Execu
tive C

o
m

m
ittee

•
In

vited
 G

u
ests/A

d
viso

rs

In
tro

d
u

c
tio

n
s

147



Y
e

ste
rd

a
y

: S
u

sta
in

a
b

ility
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 

148



A
 R

egio
n

al In
n

o
vatio

n
 C

en
ter

To
d

a
y

: Th
e

 “E
X

P
E
R

IE
N

C
E
”
 C

o
n

c
e

p
t

149



•
D

efin
e m

issio
n

/go
als o

f EX
P

ER
IEN

C
E

•
C

o
n

cep
tu

ally d
efin

e p
ro

gram
 an

d
 b

u
ild

in
g

elem
en

ts

•
Evalu

ate feasib
ility b

ased
 o

n
 fo

u
r altern

ative
sites

•
Id

en
tify p

o
ten

tial fin
an

cin
g an

d
 p

artn
ersh

ip
arran

gem
en

ts

Lo
s A

n
g

eles C
lea

n
tech

 In
cu

b
a

to
r –

P
a

rtn
ers w

ith
 LA

D
W

P

P
u

rp
o

se
 o

f th
e

 S
tu

d
y

150



•
P

ro
vid

e in
p

u
t, id

eas, an
d

 feed
b

ack to
 team

•
M

eetin
g #1

 –
Learn

 ab
o

u
t o

th
er “cen

ters” an
d

estab
lish

 go
als fo

r EX
P

ER
IEN

C
E

•
M

eetin
g #2

 –
Q

&
A

 w
ith

 o
th

er o
p

erato
rs

•
M

eetin
g #3

 –
Select p

ro
gram

 elem
en

ts to
 evalu

ate

•
M

eetin
g #4

 –
Site assessm

en
t an

d
 d

em
an

d
 an

alysis

•
M

eetin
g #5

 –
A

ltern
ative go

vern
an

ce, o
p

eratio
n

s,
an

d
 p

artn
ersh

ip
s

•
M

eetin
g #6

 –
Fin

al reco
m

m
en

d
atio

n
s

Th
e Sp

rin
g

s P
reserve –

C
reek R

esto
ra

tio
n

R
o

le
 o

f th
e

 S
te

e
rin

g
 C

o
m

m
itte

e

151



O
ct.

2
0

1
7

Jan
.

2
0

1
8

#1
 –

Jan
. 2

2

Fe
b

.
2

0
1

8

#2
 –

Fe
b

. 2
6

M
ar.

2
0

1
8

#3
 –

M
ar. 1

9

M
ay-Ju

n
.

2
0

1
8

#4
 –

M
ay 2

1
#5

 –
Ju

n
. 1

8

Ju
ly-Se

p
t.

2
0

1
8

#6
 –

Ju
ly 2

3

N
o

te: #1
 rep

resen
ts Steerin

g
 C

o
m

m
ittee M

eetin
g

S
c

h
e

d
u

le

152



•
Id

en
tified

 exam
p

les (refer to
 sp

read
sh

eet
h

an
d

o
u

t)

•
O

th
ers to

 co
n

sid
er?  O

th
er in

fo
rm

atio
n

 to
gath

er?

•
Exam

p
les are gro

u
p

ed
 b

y p
u

rp
o

se:

Ed
u

catio
n

al/C
o

m
m

u
n

ity Servin
g

R
esearch

 

Eco
n

o
m

ic D
evelo

p
m

en
t Fo

cu
sed

•
O

verview
 o

f p
ro

gram
s

Syca
m

o
re C

reek In
terp

retive C
en

ter, Tem
esca

l V
a

lley

Th
e Sp

rin
g

s P
reserve –

C
h

ild
ren

’s g
a

rd
en

R
e

le
v

a
n

t M
o

d
e

ls

153



R
iverb

ed
 Fa

rm
, 

A
n

a
h

eim
 –

H
yd

ro
p

o
n

ics 
d

em
o

n
stra

tio
n

, 
fo

o
d

 b
a

n
ks 

Th
e Fro

n
tier 

P
ro

ject, R
a

n
ch

o
 

C
u

ca
m

o
n

g
a

 –
D

em
o

n
stra

tio
n

 o
f 

w
a

ter a
n

d
 en

erg
y 

co
n

serva
tio

n
 

En
erg

y Ed
u

ca
tio

n
 C

en
ter, 

Irw
in

d
a

le –
cla

sses, 
w

o
rksh

o
p

s fo
r p

u
b

lic

A
llia

n
ce C

en
ter, 

D
en

ver –
Sp

a
ce to

 
co

n
ven

e a
n

d
 

co
n

n
ect 

o
rg

a
n

iza
tio

n
s a

n
d

 
co

m
m

u
n

ity 
lea

d
ers

E
d

u
c

a
tio

n
a

l/C
o

m
m

u
n

ity
 S

e
rv

in
g

 M
o

d
e

ls

154



Th
e Sp

rin
g

s 
P

reserve –
Fa

rm
 

to
 ta

b
le d

in
in

g Q
u

a
il H

ill, Irvin
e –

C
h

ild
ren

’s g
a

rd
en

Syca
m

o
re C

reek 
In

terp
retive C

en
ter –

Yo
u

th
 

scien
ce exp

lo
ra

tio
n

Q
u

a
il H

ill –
In

terp
retive tra

il

E
d

u
c

a
tio

n
a

l/C
o

m
m

u
n

ity
 S

e
rv

in
g

 M
o

d
e

ls

155



Th
e Lyle C

en
ter –

P
a

ssive h
ea

tin
g

 
a

n
d

 co
o

lin
g

 
resea

rch

Th
e Lyle C

en
ter fo

r 
R

eg
en

era
tive Stu

d
ies, C

a
l P

o
ly 

P
o

m
o

n
a

 –
g

reen
 ro

o
f co

o
lin

g
 

resea
rch

A
leg

ria
 Fresh

 
Fa

rm
 -

V
ertica

l 
fa

rm
in

g
 resea

rch

R
e

se
a

rc
h

 M
o

d
e

ls

156



P
o

rtla
n

d
 

In
cu

b
a

to
r 

Exp
erim

en
t –

C
o

-w
o

rkin
g

 
sp

a
ce fo

r sta
rt-

u
p

s

N
et Zero

 P
lu

s 
Electrica

l Tra
in

in
g

 
In

stitu
te, Lo

s 
A

n
g

eles –
H

ig
h

 
Tech

 B
u

ild
in

g
 

d
em

o
n

stra
tio

n
s 

a
n

d
 tra

in
in

g

Lo
s A

n
g

eles 
C

lea
n

tech
 

In
cu

b
a

to
r (LA

C
I) –

A
ccelera

tes th
e 

co
m

m
ercia

liza
tio

n
 

o
f clea

n
 

tech
n

o
lo

g
ies a

n
d

 
th

e su
ccess o

f sta
rt-

u
p

 b
u

sin
esses 

D
a

vid
 B

ro
w

er 
C

en
ter, B

erkeley –
H

o
sts 3

0
 n

o
n

-
p

ro
fit 

o
rg

a
n

iza
tio

n
s re 

en
viro

n
m

en
ta

l 
ch

a
llen

g
es

E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t M
o

d
e

ls

157



V
id

e
o

158



•
In

p
u

t o
n

 In
itial W

o
rkin

g G
o

als

•
D

evelo
p

 W
o

rkin
g M

issio
n

 Statem
en

t

R
iverb

ed
 Farm

 M
issio

n
: To

 em
p

o
w

er a
n

d
 

ed
u

ca
te th

e co
m

m
u

n
ity o

n
 u

sin
g

 resp
o

n
sib

le 
a

g
ricu

ltu
ra

l m
eth

o
d

s.

Lyle C
en

ter:  To
 co

nven
e d

iverse g
ro

u
p

s 
co

m
m

itted
 to

 ca
ta

lyzin
g

 p
ro

-enviro
n

m
en

ta
l 

ch
a

n
g

e b
y m

a
tch

in
g

 tech
n

o
lo

g
y w

ith
 n

eed
.

Po
rtlan

d
 In

cu
b

ato
r M

issio
n

:  To
 serve a

s a
 

cu
ra

ted
 co

-w
o

rkin
g

 sp
a

ce, a
 co

m
m

u
n

ity even
t 

sp
a

ce, a
 sta

rtu
p

 a
ccelera

to
r, a

 fla
sh

p
o

in
t fo

r 
co

rp
o

ra
te in

n
o

va
tio

n
, a

n
d

 a
 h

o
m

e-a
w

a
y-fro

m
-

h
o

m
e fo

r sta
rtu

p
 typ

es.

R
iversid

e-C
o

ro
n

a R
eso

u
rce C

o
n

servatio
n

 
D

istrict M
issio

n
: To

 en
co

u
ra

g
e resid

en
ts to

 
p

ra
ctice n

a
tu

ra
l reso

u
rce stew

a
rd

sh
ip

 a
t 

h
o

m
e, w

o
rk, a

n
d

 co
m

m
u

n
ity.

S
te

e
rin

g
 C

o
m

m
itte

e
 D

isc
u

ssio
n

159



•
Feb

ru
ary 2

6
, 2

0
1

8
 @

 Th
e Fro

n
tier P

ro
ject

•
Q

&
A

 w
ith

 rep
resen

tatives fro
m

:  Th
e Lyle

C
en

ter, Th
e Fro

n
tier P

ro
ject, an

d
 th

e Lo
s

A
n

geles C
lean

tech
 In

cu
b

ato
r (LA

C
I)

•
To

u
r o

f Fro
n

tier P
ro

ject fo
llo

w
in

g th
e m

eetin
g

La
 K

retz
LA

C
I In

n
o

va
tio

n
 C

a
m

p
u

s, Lo
s A

n
g

eles

Th
e Lyle C

en
ter fo

r R
eg

en
era

tive Stu
d

ies, C
a

l P
o

ly P
o

m
o

n
a

N
e

x
t M

e
e

tin
g

160



Item 6.E 
Experience Regional Innovation 

Center Feasibility Analysis Update 

Attachment 2 
Steering Committee Meeting #2 
Notes and Presentation Slides

161



162



Project Contact: Andrea Howard, Senior Analyst, ahoward@wrcog.us, (951) 405-6751 

Steering Committee: 
Executive Committee Members: Debbie Franklin, City of Banning; Adam Rush, City of Eastvale; Laura Roughton, City of 
Jurupa Valley; Kelly Seyarto, City of Murrieta; Rusty Bailey, City of Riverside; Kevin Bash, City of Norco; Ron Sullivan, 
Eastern Municipal Water District; Dr. White, Riverside County Superintendent of Schools 

Member Agency Staff: Clara Miramontes, City of Perris; Grace Williams, City of Perris; Lea Deesing, City of Riverside; 
Sherry Shimoshock, City of Riverside; Luke Watson, City of Temeulca; Matt Peters, City of Temecula; Jolene Walsh, 
Eastern Municipal Water District (EMWD); Danielle Coates, EMWD; Melanie EMWD 

Regional Stakeholders: Joanna Chang, Southern California Edison; Jeff Lawler, Southern California Gas Company 
(SoCalGas); Ana Aceves, SoCalGas; Jennifer Vaugn, SoCalGas; Alexandra Orozco, University of California, Riverside (UCR); 
Nicole Davis, UCR 

Staff and Consultants: Rick Bishop, WRCOG; Jennifer Ward, WRCOG; Andrea Howard, WRCOG; Huyen Bui, WRCOG; 
Alexa Washburn, National CORE; Karen Gulley, PlaceWorks; Eric Carbonnier, HMC Architects 

Advisors: Dr. Kyle Brown, Lyle Center for Regenerative Studies; Mike Swords, Los Angeles Cleantech Incubator (LACI); 
Kristeen Farlow, Frontier Project 

Experience – Concept and Origin:  
WRCOG envisions that Experience would draw audiences for a variety of purposes by including such elements as an 
education center, community farm, water efficient garden, walking loop, amphitheater, farm-to-fork café, and other 
public assets.  Once at Experience, visitors would be exposed to best practices in water and energy, emerging 
technology, employment prospects, and more.   

In 2010, WRCOG adopted the Sustainability Framework, which recognized six interrelated goal areas for achieving a high 
quality of life and regional economic growth: transportation, water and waste water, energy and environment, 

163



economic development, health, and education.  Experience would be a physical space to explore and grow the 

subregion’s work to advance the Framework Goals. 

Purpose of this Study - Future Path for Experience: 

On October 2, 2017, WRCOG’s Executive Committee approved a contract with PlaceWorks consultants to perform a 

Feasibility Analysis (the Analysis).  The Analysis will explore the viability of bringing Experience to Western Riverside 

County, by refining the projects goals and conducting a review of relevant models to identify the program elements that 

would be desired for Experience, performing an opportunities and constrains analysis of the potential host sites, 

developing a demand analysis for the center and a set of options for the potential governance structure, and finally, 

assessing the analysis components together to determine overall feasibility. 

Role of the Steering Committee: 

The Steering Committee will provide valuable insights and feedback at each step of the Analysis.  The meetings have been 

strategically scheduled to coincide with major milestones, and participants will be encouraged to provide valuable 

information to shape the direction and conclusion of the Analysis.  

Timeline: 

The Analysis will span ten months, beginning in October 2017 and concluding in July 2018.  The full timeline is listed in the 

Meeting 1 Presentation slides.  

Meeting #1 Review: 

The Steering Committee met for the first time on January 22, 2017.  At the meeting, attendees received a thorough 

introduction to the Experience concept; learned of relevant models across the globe, from which Experience could draw 

inspiration and knowledge; discussed goals for Experience.  Among the goals discussed, attendees expressed that 

Experience should by synergistic with WRCOG and the surrounding community (including k-12 education, colleges and 

universities, and businesses); Experience should provide region-wide economic and social benefits, and spur economic 

growth, especially by fostering economic opportunity; and Experience should tell the story of Western Riverside County—

what the subregion has to offer and where it going.  Finally, the Committee initiated a discussion to draft the Mission for 

Experience.  

Model Site Representative Presentations: 

Representatives from three Southern California models: the Lyle Center for Regenerative Studies at Cal Poly Pomona, the 

Los Angeles Cleantech Incubator (LACI), and the Cucamonga Valley Water Districts’ Frontier Project, presented an 

overview of their programs and fielded questions from attendees regarding logistics and operations.   

These models provided a good sampling of the diversity that exists among these centers.  The Lyle Center was an early 

example of sustainable development and living, modeling practices which later informed the LEED certification process.  It 

is built on a 16-acre campus at Cal Poly Pomona and is an affiliate of the University, designed with the mission to make a 

“collective impact toward a sustainable future.”  The Lyle Center meets its goals largely through student and faculty 

164



driven work to provide education and demonstrations, perform research, and conduct community outreach. The Center 

receives approximately 57% of the $550,000 annual operating expense from State allocation, and the remaining 43% from 

grants, endowment, and individual donations. 

LACI is an entrepreneurial incubator located at the cutting-edge, 60,000 square foot La Kretz Innovation Campus, owned 

by Los Angeles Department of Water and Power (LADWP).  LACI is an independent nonprofit born out of a Public Private 

Partnership with the City of LA and LADWP.  It operates under the mission to create an inclusive green economy for the 

City and LA region.  Since 2011, LACI has served more than 70 start-ups, created more than 2,000 jobs, generated $214 M 

in revenue and generated $335 M in economic benefit for the City.   

The Frontier Project was developed out of a need for the CVWD for more office space and a desire to create an additional 

space to demonstrate water efficient best practices to the community by creating a regional destination.  Opened in 2009, 

the 14,000 square foot building has office space, a technology gallery, conference space, demonstration kitchen, green 

roof, landscape demonstration, and is LEED Platinum.  The Frontier project hosts regular meetings and events and is home 

to the Water Works Association. 

Of particular note, the speakers provided these insights: 

 Given the chance to change the course of development for the Lyle Center, Dr. Brown reported that he would

give greater focus to areas where a significant impact could be made.  .  In recent years they have shifted their

focus on working with the community, particularly Pomona Unified.

 Dr. Brown also noted the challenges of being a part of the university: 1) grants received have to flow through

various departments which adds an additional layer or bureaucracy; and 2) they struggle to be entrepreneurial.

 Representatives from both LACI and the Frontier project reported that their event and meeting spaces, and LACI’s

co-working space cannot accommodate the demand they see in terms of physical size.    They recommended

capacity somewhere between 300 – 400 people.

 Mr. Swords shared that while the La Kretz Innovation Campus is a significant asset, the majority of the

entrepreneurs they host report that the greatest benefit of working with LACI is the opportunity to work with the

Executives in Residence.  Additionally, Mike shared that prior to the opening of La Kretz, LACI operated as an

incubator for four years and was named the #3 incubator in the world according to University Business

Incubators, emphasizing that the programming drove the success of LACI.

 Mr. Swords also noted that the success of LACI was in part a function of strategic partnerships with the Mayor’s

Office, County Office, LA Department of Water & Power (LADWP), State of California, Federal Government, Port

of Los Angeles, Metro, Metropolitan Water District (MWD), Southern California Edison (SCE), Financial institutions

(JP Morgan, Wells Fargo), and Universities (UCLA, USC, Caltech, Cal State Northridge), JPL, Los Angeles County

Economic Development Corporation (LAEDC), LA Chamber of Commerce, LA Business Council (LABC), and

Industry partners.

 In contrast, Ms. Farlow shared that the Frontier Project struggled to meet its funding targets because it did not

have a clearly defined mission and purpose at its onset, while it set-out to be an educational resource, that was

not specific and compelling enough to attract supporters.

165



 Representative from each Center noted staff size: The Lyle Center has a staff of 3 not including faculty, LACI 30,

and Frontier 1. This is relevant in relationship to regional impact and Center success.

 All three speakers acknowledged the challenge of any building or grounds staying relevant in terms of the

demonstration technology being displayed.  The advice from LACI was to have a broader mission, such as

inventing and building hardware which by definition adapts overtime.  Dr. Brown noted that the Lyle Center was

built on the principles of regeneration, not on solutions, and therefore is more timeless.

The meeting slides, including speaker slides, are included as an attachment to this summary. 

166



F
e

a
sib

ility
 S

tu
d

y
 fo

r 
E
X

P
E
R

IE
N

C
E
 –

A
 R

e
g

io
n

a
l 

In
n

o
v

a
tio

n
 C

e
n

te
r

S
te

e
rin

g
 C

o
m

m
itte

e
M

e
e

tin
g

 #
2

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
6

, 2
0

1
8

167



•
In

tro
d

u
ctio

n
 to

 EX
P

ER
IEN

C
E

•
Sp

eaker P
resen

tatio
n

s an
d

 Q
&

A
D

r. B
ro

w
n

 -
Lyle

 C
en

ter
M

ike Sw
o

rd
s -

LA
C

I
K

ristee
n

Farlo
w

 -
Fro

n
tier

•
O

p
en

 Fo
ru

m
•

C
o

n
clu

d
in

g R
em

arks
•

Fro
n

tier P
ro

ject To
u

r

EX
P

ER
IEN

C
E Steerin

g
 C

o
m

m
ittee M

eetin
g

 #1

To
d

a
y

’s A
g

e
n

d
a

168



Y
e

ste
rd

a
y

: S
u

sta
in

a
b

ility
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 

169



A
 R

egio
n

al In
n

o
vatio

n
 C

en
ter

To
d

a
y

: Th
e

 “
E
X

P
E
R

IE
N

C
E
”
 C

o
n

c
e

p
t

170



•
D

efin
e m

issio
n

/go
als o

f EX
P

ER
IEN

C
E

•
C

o
n

cep
tu

ally d
efin

e p
ro

gram
 an

d
 b

u
ild

in
g

elem
en

ts

•
Evalu

ate feasib
ility b

ased
 o

n
 fo

u
r altern

ative
sites

•
Id

en
tify p

o
ten

tial fin
an

cin
g an

d
 p

artn
ersh

ip
arran

gem
en

ts

Lo
s A

n
g

eles C
lea

n
tech

 In
cu

b
a

to
r –

P
a

rtn
ers w

ith
 LA

D
W

P

P
u

rp
o

se
 o

f th
e

 S
tu

d
y

171



•
P

ro
vid

e in
p

u
t, id

eas, an
d

 feed
b

ack to
 team

•
M

eetin
g #1

 –
Learn

 ab
o

u
t o

th
er “cen

ters” an
d

 
estab

lish
 go

als fo
r EX

P
ER

IEN
C

E 

•
M

eetin
g #2

 –
Q

&
A

 w
ith

 o
th

er o
p

erato
rs 

•
M

eetin
g #3

 –
Select p

ro
gram

 elem
en

ts to
 evalu

ate

•
M

eetin
g #4

 –
Site assessm

en
t an

d
 d

em
an

d
 an

alysis

•
M

eetin
g #5

 –
A

ltern
ative go

vern
an

ce, o
p

eratio
n

s, 
an

d
 p

artn
ersh

ip
s

•
M

eetin
g #6

 –
Fin

al reco
m

m
en

d
atio

n
s

Th
e Sp

rin
g

s P
reserve –

C
reek R

esto
ra

tio
n

R
o

le
 o

f th
e

 S
te

e
rin

g
 C

o
m

m
itte

e

172



173

file:///C:/Users/ecarbonnier/Desktop/WRCOG Meeting 2/EXPERIENCE First Meeting.mp4


Lyle C
en

ter fo
r 

R
egen

erative Stu
d

ies

S
p

e
a

k
e

r P
re

se
n

ta
tio

n
s a

n
d

 Q
&

A

Lo
s A

n
geles C

lean
tech

 
In

cu
b

ato
r (LA

C
I)

Fro
n

tier P
ro

ject

174



Kyle D
. B

ro
w

n
, P

h
.D

., A
SLA

Lyle C
en

ter fo
r R

egen
erative Stu

d
ies

175



A
 C

o
lle

ctive
 Im

p
a
ct To

w
a
rd

 a
 S

u
sta

in
a
b
le

 F
u
tu

re
 S

in
ce

 1
9
9
4

176



P
illars o

f Lyle C
en

ter M
issio

n

Ed
u
catio

n

R
esearch

D
em

o
n
stratio

n

O
u
treach

177



178



179



180



181



A
 C

o
lle

ctive
 Im

p
a
ct To

w
a
rd

 a
 S

u
sta

in
a
b
le

 F
u
tu

re
 S

in
ce

 1
9
9
4

182



M
ike Sw

o
rd

s, V
P

 G
o

vern
m

en
t R

elatio
n

s

Lo
s A

n
geles C

lean
tech

 In
cu

b
ato

r (LA
C

I)

183



184



185



186



H
isto

ry

•
P

P
P

 Fo
u

n
d

ed
 b

y C
ity o

f LA
 in

 O
cto

b
er 2

0
1

1

•
C

ity’s p
rim

ary o
b

jective: To
 revitalize in

d
u

strial co
re th

ro
u

gh

th
e creatio

n
 o

f a clean
tech

clu
ster = “C

lean
tech

 C
o

rrid
o

r”

•
In

d
ep

en
d

e
n

t n
o

n
-p

ro
fit, ru

n
 b

y en
trep

ren
e

u
rs, p

artn
e

rin
g

w
/LA

D
W

P
 an

d
 th

e C
ity o

f Lo
s A

n
gele

s

•
La K

retz
In

n
o

vatio
n

 C
am

p
u

s: 6
0

,0
0

0
sf (3

0
,0

0
0

 fo
r LA

C
I +

3
0

,0
0

0
 fo

r lab
s/d

em
o

n
stratio

n
 sp

ace
/p

ro
to

typ
in

g sp
ace

 +

LA
D

W
P

 o
w

n
ed

187



K
ey Stake

h
o

ld
e

rs

•
C

ity o
f LA

 M
ayo

r’s O
ffice

•
LA

 D
ep

artm
en

t o
f W

ater &
 Po

w
er (LA

D
W

P
)

•
U

C
LA

, U
SC

, C
altech

, JP
L, C

al State N
o

rth
rid

ge (C
SU

N
)

•
Lo

s A
n

gele
s C

o
u

n
ty Eco

n
o

m
ic D

evelo
p

m
en

t C
o

rp
o

ratio
n

 (LA
ED

C
),

LA
 C

h
am

b
er o

f C
o

m
m

erce, LA
 B

u
sin

ess C
o

u
n

cil (LA
B

C
)

•
Lo

s A
n

gele
s C

o
u

n
ty

•
State o

f C
alifo

rn
ia

•
Fed

eral G
o

vern
m

e
n

t

•
Po

rt o
f Lo

s A
n

gele
s, M

etro
, M

etro
p

o
litan

 W
ater D

istrict (M
W

D
),

So
u

th
ern

 C
alifo

rn
ia Ed

iso
n

 (SC
E)

•
In

d
u

stry p
artn

ers

•
Fin

an
cial in

stitu
tio

n
s (JP

 M
o

rgan
, W

ells Fargo
)

188



S
o

u
rc

e
s

 o
f F

u
n

d
in

g

•
C

ity fu
n

d
in

g

•
State fu

n
d

in
g

•
Fed

e
ral fu

n
d

in
g

•
C

o
rp

o
rate sp

o
n

so
rsh

ip

•
C

o
n

tract fo
r h

ire

•
P

h
ilan

th
ro

p
y

•
Even

ts

•
Ten

an
t fee

s

•
Eq

u
ity stake in

 co
m

p
an

ies

189



Exam
p

le
s o

f C
le

an
 Te

ch
n

o
lo

gie
s in

 th
e

 LA
C

I P
o

rtfo
lio

•
En

ergy efficien
cy

•
En

e
rgy sto

rage

•
H

o
m

e en
e

rgy m
an

agem
e

n
t

•
O

n
lin

e so
lar m

arketp
lace

•
Efficie

n
t ligh

tin
g

•
A

d
van

ced
 tran

sp
o

rtatio
n

•
G

o
o

d
s m

o
vem

e
n

t

•
W

ater leak d
etectio

n

•
Ele

ctro
n

ic w
aste recyclin

g

•
Su

stain
ab

le
 co

n
su

m
er go

o
d

s

•
C

o
n

tro
lled

 en
viro

n
m

en
t agricu

ltu
re

190



T
H

E
 L

A
 K

R
E

T
Z

 IN
N

O
V

A
T

IO
N

 C
A

M
P

U
S

6
0

,0
0

0
 S

q
. ft. –

In
c

u
b

a
to

r, L
a

b
s

, P
ro

to
ty

p
in

g
, L

e
a

rn
in

g

191



La K
retz

In
n

o
vatio

n
 C

am
p

u
s

•
3

.2
 acre fo

o
tp

rin
t

•
6

0
,0

0
0

sf u
n

d
er ro

o
f / 3

0
,0

0
0

sf fo
r LA

C
I

•
LA

C
I = 2

3
0

 d
esks/1

0
0

+ co
m

p
an

ies/o
rgan

izatio
n

s

•
3

D
 p

rin
t sh

o
p

, w
ater jet, ro

b
o

tics lab
, w

et lab
, w

eld
in

g sh
o

p
,

ele
ctro

n
ics lab

, en
e

rgy efficie
n

cy lab

•
Train

in
g cen

ter (4
0

 &
 3

2
 p

erso
n

 classro
o

m
s)

•
Tran

sp
o

rtatio
n

 h
u

b

•
B

u
ild

in
g w

ill h
o

u
se a m

icro
-grid

/1
8

0
K

W
 so

lar farm
, o

n
e o

f a
kin

d
, U

V
 grey w

ater system

•
LA

D
W

P
 testin

g an
d

 certificatio
n

 lab

•
Sm

art H
o

m
e d

em
o

n
stratio

n
 area

192



P
artn

e
rs

193



K
risteen

Farlo
w

, M
PA

 -
C

o
m

m
u

n
icatio

n
s &

 O
u

treach
 M

an
ager

Fro
n

tier P
ro

ject

194



F
ro

n
tie

r P
ro

je
c
t B

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
 a

n
d
 H

isto
ry


R
e
g
io

n
a
l g

ro
w

th
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 o

p
p
o
rtu

n
itie

s fo
r 

d
e
m

o
n
stra

tio
n


N

e
e
d
 fo

r o
ffic

e
 sp

a
c
e
 fo

r sta
ff


D

e
sire

 to
 d

e
m

o
n
stra

te
 w

a
te

r e
ffic

ie
n
c
y
 to

 th
e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ity


C
re

a
te

 a
 d

e
stin

a
tio

n
 in

 th
e
 re

g
io

n


C
u
c
a
m

o
n
g
a
 V

a
lle

y
 W

a
te

r D
istric

t e
sta

b
lish

e
d
 a

 

n
o
n
-p

ro
fit fo

u
n
d
a
tio

n
 to

 le
a
d
 th

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

195



th
e
 F

ro
n
tie

r P
ro

je
c
t


O

p
e
n
e
d
 N

o
v. 7

, 2
0
0
9


A
 1

4
,0

0
0
 sq

u
a
re

 fo
o
t

b
u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 a

 o
n
e
-a

c
re

 site


D

e
m

o
n
stra

tio
n
 la

n
d
sc

a
p
e
s


O

ffic
e
 sp

a
c
e
, te

c
h
n
o
lo

g
y

g
a
lle

ry, c
o
n
fe

re
n
c
e

fa
c
ilitie

s, d
e
m

o
n
stra

tio
n

k
itc

h
e
n
, g

re
e
n
 ro

o
f


L
E
E
D

®
P
la

tin
u
m

 fro
m

 U
.S

.

G
re

e
n
 B

u
ild

in
g
 C

o
u
n
c
il

196



E
d
u
c
a
tio

n
a
l R

e
so

u
rc

e
 C

e
n
te

r


M

e
e
tin

g
 sp

o
t fo

r re
g
io

n
a
l tra

in
in

g
 in

w
a
te

r, e
le

c
tric

ity, a
n
d
 su

sta
in

a
b
le

 d
e
sig

n
.


C
o
n
n
e
c
tio

n
 to

 lo
c
a
l c

o
lle

g
e
s a

n
d

u
n
iv

e
rsitie

s.


C
o
n
n
e
c
tio

n
 to

 h
ig

h
 sc

h
o
o
l stu

d
e
n
ts.


L
a
n
d
sc

a
p
e
 D

e
m

o
n
stra

tio
n
s.


L
o
w

-w
a
te

r u
se

 e
x
a
m

p
le

s o
f a

p
p
lia

n
c
e
s a

n
d

fix
tu

re
s.


R
e
sid

e
n
tia

l tra
in

in
g
s, sp

e
c
ia

l e
v
e
n
ts, a

n
d

to
u
rs.


O

v
e
r 1

0
,0

0
0
 v

isito
rs in

 th
e
 first y

e
a
r!

197



O
n
g
o
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

in
g


To

u
rs


A
n
n
u
a
l E

a
rth

 D
a
y
 C

e
le

b
ra

tio
n


M

o
n
th

ly
 S

o
u
th

e
rn

 C
a
lifo

rn
ia

 E
d
iso

n

W
o
rk

sh
o
p
s


W

e
e
k
ly

 A
m

e
ric

a
n
 W

a
te

r W
o
rk

s A
sso

c
ia

tio
n

W
o
rk

sh
o
p
s


C
V
W

D
 W

o
rk

sh
o
p
s a

n
d
 C

la
sse

s


O

th
e
r re

g
io

n
a
l c

la
sse

s a
n
d
 tra

in
in

g
s


C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

a
rtn

e
rs a

n
d
 sp

o
n
so

rs

198



O
p

e
n

 F
o

ru
m

199



200



Item 6.F 
 

Western Riverside Council of Governments 

Technical Advisory Committee 
 

Staff Report 
 
 

Subject: PACE Programs Activities Update 
 
Contact: Casey Dailey, Director of Energy & Environmental Programs, cdailey@wrcog.us,         

(951) 405-6720 
 
Date: March 15, 2018 
 
 
The purpose of this item is to update the Committee on the WRCOG PACE Programs and origination fees 
adjustments via an updated Master Bond Purchase Agreement and the amendment to the Professional 
Service Agreement with David Taussig & Associates.  
 
Requested Action: 
  
1. Receive and File. 
 
 
WRCOG’s PACE Programs provide financing to property owners to implement energy saving, renewable 
energy, and water conserving improvements to their homes and businesses.  Improvements must be 
permanently fixed to the property and must meet certain criteria to be eligible for financing.  Financing is paid 
back through a lien placed on the property tax bill.  The HERO Program was initiated in December 2011 and 
has been expanded (an effort called “California HERO”) to allow for jurisdictions throughout the state to join 
WRCOG’s Program and allow property owners in these jurisdictions to participate.  WRCOG now offers 
CaliforniaFIRST, Greenworks, Spruce PACE, and PACE Funding as additional PACE Programs under the 
WRCOG PACE umbrella. 
 
Overall PACE Program Update 
 
The following table provides a summary of all residential projects that have been completed under the 
residential WRCOG PACE Programs through March 7, 2018: 
 
 

PACE Program Projects 
Completed 

Total Project 
Value Product Type Installed 

WRCOG HERO 25,914 $512,003,552 
HVAC: 29.2%; Solar: 31.2%; Windows / Doors: 16.5%;  

Roofing: 4.9%; Landscape: 7.9% 

California HERO 59,964 $1,291,550,466 
HVAC: 28.4%; Solar: 31.2%; Windows / Doors: 14.0%;  

Roofing: 12.1%; Landscape: 5.8% 

CaliforniaFIRST 122 $3,841,910 
HVAC: 14.1%; Solar: 45.0%; Windows / Doors: 15.2%;  

Roofing: 12.5%; Landscape: 7.5% 

PACE Funding 17 $416,140 HVAC: 41.18%; Solar: 35.30%; Windows / Doors: 11.76%;  
Roofing: 5.88%; Landscape: 0.0% 

Total: 86,017 $1,807,812,039  
 

201

mailto:cdailey@wrcog.us


Currently, there are 375 jurisdictions outside the WRCOG and San Bernardino Council of Governments’ 
subregions that have adopted Resolutions of Participation for the California HERO Program. 
 
To date, the WRCOG HERO Program has approved over 41,000 applications for over $1.8 billion.  The 
following table provides a summary of the total estimated economic and environmental impacts for projects 
completed in both the WRCOG and the California HERO Programs to date: 
 

Economic and Environmental Impacts Calculations 
KW Hours Saved – Annually 980 GWh 
GHG Reductions – Annually 196,918 tons 
Gallons Saved – Annually 524 Million 
$ Saved – Annually $101 Million 
Projected Annual Economic Impact $3 Billon 
Projected Annual Job Creation/Retention 16,216 Jobs 

 
Bond Reserve Fund and Master Bond Purchase Agreement   
 
On March 5, 2018, the Executive Committee approved the 1st Amendment to the Master Bond Purchase 
Agreement to increase the bond reserve allocation of the one-time administrative fee to 0.25% to ensure that 
the bond holders would remain whole in case of any high delinquency amounts and that WRCOG would not 
need to cover those potential amounts. 
 
The Master Bond Purchase Agreement between WRCOG and Renovate America establishes the parameters 
around the purchasing of bonds by Renovate America or its designee.  Previously, the HERO Program 
received revenue from a one-time assessment administrative fee on each project (similar to closing costs) of 
4.99%.  The one-time administrative fee supports Program administration and is split amongst the HERO 
Team, which includes Best & Krieger (BB&K), David Taussig & Associates (DTA), Public Financial 
Management (PFM), Renovate America, WRCOG, and the reserve for bond holders.  This fee is what is 
utilized by WRCOG to staff Programs, with any remaining net revenues allocated by the Executive Committee 
to Agency reserves, to member jurisdictions for various projects, the Fellowship Program, and for other 
regional project development (such as the Streetlight Program and Community Choice Aggregation feasibility 
and implementation). 
 
The bond reserve is held by Deutsche Bank, the Program Trustee, and is used to cover any shortfalls to the 
bond holder that results from a property owner not paying their annual assessment.  Due to the total volume of 
HERO assessments put onto the tax roll on an annual basis, PFM, WRCOG’s Financial Advisor, determined 
that the current bond reserve allocation (0.075%) was not adequate to cover a large amount of delinquencies, 
and that the bond reserves allocation needs to be increased to 0.25%.  This change increases the 4.99% one-
time administrative fee to 5.17%.  For comparison, other PACE provider fees range from 4.99% to 6.4%.  PFM 
conducts a regular review of the bond reserve and, throughout the life of the Program, the bond reserve 
allocation has been adjusted to provide sufficient coverage for the bond holders.  Previously, any changes in 
the bond reserve or the administrative fee was covered by Renovate America.  Due to the decrease in new 
assessments, Renovate America is no longer in a position to absorb an increase of 0.175%.  In other terms, 
the increase in the Administrative Fee equates to an increase of $36.00 to a homeowner with an average 
assessment of $20,000.   
 
Annual Administrative Fees  
 
On March 5, 2018, the Executive Committee approved the 2nd amendment to the DTA Agreement and added 
$15 to the annual Administrative Fee to increase the Administrative account that ensures the HERO Team has 
the ability to adequately service assessments over the next 25 years.  This increase brings the total Annual 
Assessment Administrative Fee to $40. 
 
Currently, an Annual Assessment Administrative Fee of $25 is collected with each PACE assessment payment 
and covers the costs for placing the assessment onto the tax roll each year by DTA, Deutsche Bank, and the 

202



various counties.  The Annual Assessment Administrative Fee is split between DTA, Deutsche Bank and the 
counties.  During PFM’s regular review of Program costs, it was determined that an increase of $15 was 
needed: $10 is needed to cover actual costs for DTA, and $5 will be used to increase the Administrative 
account in order to prepare the annual assessment levy for HERO assessments (a 25-year obligation for some 
assessments) in a worst-case scenario where the HERO Program dissolved.  Increasing the Administrative 
account by $5 provides sufficient funds to ensure that BB&K, DTA, and the counties would be adequately 
covered.   
 
SB 2 Impacts 
 
On September 29, 2017, Senate Bill 2 (SB 2) was chaptered into law, creating a permanent source of funding 
for affordable housing by imposing fees of up to $225 on certain real-estate transactions.  When SB 2 was 
originally proposed, it was thought that PACE recordings would not be subject to the increased fees.  However, 
as the law is currently being interpreted and applied by County Recorder Offices, PACE assessments are 
subject to the fees.   
 
When a property owner enters into an assessment with WRCOG, the property owner pays the recording costs 
(as outlined in their financing documents).  On March 6, 2018, WRCOG implemented an increase to the 
recording amount from $75.00 to $150.00 to address the additional costs imposed by SB 2, which is for 
recording the Notice of Assessment and Payment of Contractual Assessment Required.  
 
Staff and the PACE Team believe there needs to be a legislative remedy that would exempt PACE 
assessments from the provisions of SB 2.  WRCOG staff was directed by the Administration & Finance 
Committee to work with PACE Program interests and partners to pursue legislation that would exempt PACE-
related real estate transactions from the provisions of SB 2.  There are currently a couple of legislative bills that 
were introduced that may be a vehicle to have the PACE recording fees exempted from SB 2.  Staff is working 
with its Providers, as well as legal counsel, to pursue these avenues. 
 
 
Prior Actions: 
 
March 5, 2018: The Executive Committee 1) received WRCOG PACE Program Summary; 2) supported 

the Administration & Finance Committee’s recommendation to approve the 1st 
Amendment to the Master Bond Purchase Agreement between WRCOG and Renovate 
America to increase the bond reserve amount from 0.075% to 0.25%; 3) supported the 
Administration & Finance Committee’s recommendation to approve the 2nd Amendment 
to the Professional Services Agreement between WRCOG and David Taussig & 
Associates to modify their compensation from $10 to $20 to cover their costs of doing 
business; 4) adopted WRCOG Resolution Number 06-18; A Resolution of the Executive 
Committee of the Western Riverside Council of Governments Postponing a Public 
Hearing for the City of Pleasanton; and 5) adopted amended WRCOG Resolution 
Number 03-18; A Resolution of the Executive Committee of the Western Riverside 
Council of Governments confirming modification of the California HERO Program Report 
so as to expand the Program area within which contractual assessments may be offered. 

 
February 14, 2018: The Administration & Finance Committee 1) recommended that the Executive 

Committee approve the 1st Amendment to Master Bond Purchase Agreement between 
WRCOG and Renovate America; 2) recommended that the Executive Committee 
approve the 2nd Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement between WRCOG 
and David Taussig & Associates; and 3) directed the WRCOG Executive Director to seek 
a legislative exemption from SB 2 on imposed fees for PACE real estate transactions. 

 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
The SB 2 and Administrative Fee increases are both pass-thru items to offset costs; however, the one-time 
Administrative Fee increase from 4.99% to 5.17% is to increase the amount allocated to the PACE 

203



Administrative Fund, held by Deutsche Bank. 
 
Attachment: 
 
None. 
 
 

204



Item 6.G 
 

Western Riverside Council of Governments 

Technical Advisory Committee 
 

Staff Report 
 
 

Subject: Potential Full Consolidation of RCHCA Staff and Operations with WRCOG 
 
Contact: Rick Bishop, Executive Director, rbishop@wrcog.us, (951) 405-6701 

 
Date:  March 15, 2018 
 
 
The purpose of this item is to provide an update on the status of the management services arrangement for 
the Riverside County Habitat Conservation Agency (RCHCA) between the County of Riverside and WRCOG 
and to request direction for staff to work with the County and the RCHCA Board of Directors toward a complete 
transition of RCHCA staff and full operation of RCHCA to WRCOG, and return with necessary documents and 
agreements for review and consideration by RCHCA, WRCOG, and the County of Riverside.  
 
Requested Action: 
 
1. Receive and file. 
 
 
Background 
 
The RCHCA was formed in 1990 under a Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) for the acquisition, administration, 
operation, and maintenance of land and facilities for ecosystem conservation and habitat reserves for the 
Stephens’ Kangaroo Rat (SKR) and other listed, candidate-threatened, or endangered species.  
 
The RCHCA JPA was formed pursuant to the government code of the State of California for joint exercise of 
powers common to public agencies.  The JPA recognizes that RCHCA is a public agency separate from the 
parties or member agencies.  The JPA sets forth numerous powers of RCHCA in carrying out its purposes, 
including the power to make and enter into contracts and to employ agency and employees.  The JPA also 
allows the RCHCA Board of Directors to decide where the Agency is housed.  In the early years, RCHCA was 
a program under WRCOG.  In the late 1990s, RCHCA was placed under the County for departmental 
consolidation. 
 
In November 2015, the Administration & Finance Committee and Executive Committee reviewed a proposal 
from RCHCA to transition management and administration of RCHCA to WRCOG.  The RCHCA Executive 
Director was retiring and discussions centered on whether a transition could result in cost savings and reduced 
bureaucracy via “consolidation” and an institutional agreement among WRCOG, RCHCA, and the County.  
After consultation with WRCOG staff and legal counsel, the Executive Committee directed staff and legal 
counsel from all agencies to move ahead in preparing the necessary agreements to facilitate the transfer. 
  
In December 2015, the Executive Committee and RCHCA’s Board of Directors approved a five-year 
Agreement between WRCOG and RCHCA that transferred the duties of administration and management of 
RCHCA activities to WRCOG.  Under the Agreement, WRCOG’s Executive Director serves as the General 
Manager / Executive Director of RCHCA and general duties include administering, coordinating, and 
supervising the activities of RCHCA as set forth in RCHCA’s JPA.   
 
RCHCA employees are well versed in the day-to-day operations of the Agency.  RCHCA management staff has 
continued operations of the Agency and have assisted in making the transition seamless and without difficulty. 

205

mailto:rbishop@wrcog.us


The services provided by WRCOG for oversight of the administrative activities of RCHCA have proven to be 
successful.  RCHCA has realized significant cost savings from implementation of the management services 
contract, essentially through the elimination of the RCHCA Executive Director position.  
 
Discussion of Personnel and Operational Arrangement  
 
RCHCA staff remain as County employees under the current Agreement with the County of Riverside for 
Human Resource services.  This arrangement allowed time for the transfer to be evaluated and to ensure that 
the management services consolidation was efficient and successful.  It also provided time for RCHCA staff to 
become familiar with WRCOG’s organizational and operational practices.   
 
With all of the success of this arrangement there are still practical inefficiencies that need attention.  The 
Executive Director of WRCOG administers the administrative functions of the RCHCA; however, under the 
Agreement between the RCHCA and the County, RCHCA employees operate under two different 
administrations (WRCOG and the County).  This dual arrangement has created some organizational 
challenges, particularly in the area of personnel.   
 
Because RCHCA employees are County employees, it creates difficulty for the Executive Director, in that the 
Executive Director does not have authority over the County employees at the same level as occurs with 
WRCOG.  As such, the Executive Director is required to obtain approval from the County Board of Supervisors 
for any personnel-related decisions pertaining to existing RCHCA employees.  Work schedules can vary 
between the Agencies, and employees in the two different Agencies adhere to different personnel policies and 
procedures.  One RCHCA employee is covered under a Memorandum of Understanding with the Labor 
International Union.  New RCHCA hires have been hired as WRCOG employees, the result of which is that the 
RCHCA itself is staffed with employees from both WRCOG and the County.   
 
WRCOG maintains its own financial and information technology systems; however, RCHCA’s financial system 
is under the Auditor Controller of the County and is maintained separately.  This is creating some unnecessary 
duplication of effort hinders WRCOG’s ability to provide financial quality controls that it does for WRCOG, 
which runs counter to the goals of creating more efficiencies from the management services arrangement.  In 
addition, the current arrangement creates unnecessary financial burdens on RCHCA because it has to 
reimburse other County departments for services that are duplicative.  Finally, RCHCA staff do not receive 
County updates related to employee relations or policies because WRCOG is not under the County’s email 
system. 
 
Staff believes that complete consolidation of management activities and staffing will create a succinct Agency 
under one umbrella and address the issues raised above RCHCA staff are aware and fully supportive of the 
consolidation.  RCHCA staff are aware that a consolidation under WRCOG would require employment 
separation from the County.  RCHCA staff have also been informed of WRCOG’s hiring practices and 
personnel policies.  WRCOG will diligently review employment contracts with RCHCA staff and work to ensure 
that RCHCA staff are informed.  WRCOG participates in the CalPERS retirement system so RCHCA 
employees would simply transfer their contributions without financial impact.  WRCOG staff has also discussed 
the full consolidation with County staff and all are moving in the same direction. 
 
Fiscal Impacts to WRCOG 
  
RCHCA is financially stable and operates under a separate budget.  RCHCA compensates WRCOG for all 
costs related to administration of the Agency, pursuant to the management services arrangement.  Under a full 
consolidation, RCHCA will operate as a program under WRCOG.  The structure will not create any additional 
financial burden on WRCOG, as RCHCA will continue to pay both its current budgeted expenditures, as well as 
future retirement costs such as pension and healthcare. 
 
Future RCHCA budgets will include expenditure line items for both lease payments to WRCOG and overhead.  
The overhead will cover accounting costs to pay RCHCA’s bills and employee payroll.  Even after these 
payments to WRCOG, it is anticipated that RCHCA will have excess revenues each year of approximately 
$300K, which will be transferred into their reserve fund.  It is anticipated that the financial reserves for RCHCA 

206



will double to approximately $6M after 10 years.  
  
Next Steps 
 
The Executive Director met previously with representatives from the County to discuss the County’s position on 
the possibility of amending the current agreement to provide more flexibility to the general language of the 
agreement.  Both parties tentatively agreed that rather than amend the agreement it would be more feasible 
that RCHCA fully consolidate under WRCOG.   The Executive Director will continue to meet with appropriate 
County staff to review draft documents and make sure that any full transition is seamless.    
 
On March 14, staff will be seeking direction from the Administrative & Finance Committee to move forward and 
to continue to meet with WRCOG, RCHCA and County interests to develop the necessary documents to 
implement this proposal.  The steps to initiate the consolidation are: 
 
1. The Management Services Agreement between RCHCA and WRCOG will be amended to include 

employee staffing services and financial oversight.  This amendment will require approval by the WRCOG 
Executive Committee and the RCHCA Board of Directors.  

 
2. The Treasurer for RCHCA is the County Auditor Controller.  RCHCA’s JPA will be amended to assign a new 

Treasurer for RCHCA.  This will require approval by RCHCA member agencies.  
 
3. The RCHCA Chairperson will transmit correspondence to the County requesting termination of the staffing 

agreement between RCHCA and the County Department of Human Resources.  No Board action is 
required.  

 
Final agreements will be presented to the WRCOG Executive Committee and the RCHCA Board of Directors.  
The goal is to have the process completed and all agreements in place by July 1, 2018. 
 
 
Prior Action: 
  
None. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
This item is for informational purposes only; therefore, there is no fiscal impact. 
 
Attachment: 
 
1. Management Services Agreement between WRCOG and RCHCA. 
 
 

207



 

 

 

208



 

Item 6.G 
Potential Full Consolidation of 

RCHCA Staff and Operations with 
WRCOG 

Attachment 1 
Management Services Agreement 

between WRCOG and RCHCA 

209



 

 

 

210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



Item 6.H 
 

Western Riverside Council of Governments 

Technical Advisory Committee 
 

Staff Report 
 
 

Subject: Continued Membership of the Riverside County Superintendent of Schools on WRCOG 
 
Contact: Rick Bishop, Executive Director, rbishop@wrcog.us, (951) 405-6701 
 
Date: March 15, 2018 
 
 
The purpose of this item is to recommend approval of the MOU between WRCOG and the Riverside County 
Superintendent of Schools providing for the Superintendent to continue serving as an ex-officio representative 
to the Executive Committee.  
 
Requested Action: 
 
1. Approve a one-year extension to the MOU between WRCOG and the Riverside County Superintendent 

of Schools for the Superintendent to serve as an ex-officio member of the Executive Committee. 
 
 
Background 
 
WRCOG has a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the Riverside County Superintendent of Schools 
for an advisory, ex-officio membership on the Executive Committee.  The MOU provides for the Executive 
Committee to review the participation arrangement and expand the membership beyond ex-officio status.  
Alternatively, ex-officio membership would continue on an annual basis as authorized by a letter extending 
MOU by written agreement, to be executed by both parties.  The Executive Director is authorized to execute 
said letter. 
 
The Executive Director and the Riverside County Superintendent of Schools have discussed the ex-officio 
arrangement and are proposing to the Executive Committee that the current arrangement as articulated in the 
MOU be extended for another year.  Attached is a draft MOU extension letter to be executed by both parties, 
upon approval by the Executive Committee. 
 
 
Prior Action: 
 
December 5, 2016: The Executive Committee approved a one-year extension to the MOU between WRCOG 

and the Riverside County Superintendent of Schools for the Superintendent to serve as 
an ex-officio member of the Executive Committee. 

 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
The Riverside County Superintendent of Schools pays annual dues to WRCOG in the amount of $17,000, 
which is budgeted in the General Fund and recorded as revenue. 
 
Attachment: 
 
1. Letter Extending MOU by Written Agreement. 
 
 221

mailto:rbishop@wrcog.us


 

 

 

222



 

Item 6.H 
Continued Membership of the 

Riverside County Superintendent of 
Schools on WRCOG 

Attachment 1 
Letter Extending MOU by Written 

Agreement 

223



 

 

 

224



225



 

 

 

226



Item 7.A 
 

Western Riverside Council of Governments 

Technical Advisory Committee 
 

Staff Report 
 
 

Subject: Alternative Compliance Program Activities Update 
 
Contact: Christopher Tzeng, Program Manager, ctzeng@wrcog.us, (951) 405-6710 
 
Date: March 15, 2018 
 
 
The purpose of this item is to provide the Committee an update on the development of a proposed, voluntary 
Alternative Compliance Program (ACP).  The ACP would create a voluntary opportunity for alternative 
compliance with updated Municipal Separate Stormwater Sewer System (MS4) permit requirements, which 
might otherwise be cost prohibitive for many developments.  Funding for ACP activities are included in 
WRCOG’s adopted Fiscal Year 2017/2018 Budget under the Transportation Department.   
 
Requested Action: 
 
1. Receive and file. 
 
 
Stormwater management is a complex issue and the MS4 permit is the primary mechanism to regulate 
stormwater.  New regulations have required Regional Water Quality Control Boards (RWQCB) to update their 
MS4 permits to require additional stormwater treatment measures when new development occurs.  These 
regulations may increase cost and the need for more land, thus negatively affecting the feasibility of new 
development.  As a result, RWQCBs may enable programs that assist in complying with these new regulations.  
In 2016, WRCOG completed a study to understand the feasibility of a program in the Southwest area of the 
region.  WRCOG is interested in providing local jurisdictions a framework so that they are able to implement a 
program if they so choose – the framework would be a voluntary program.   
 
Update on WRCOG Efforts to Address Stormwater Requirements 
 
In 2016, WRCOG convened a team of consultants and stormwater experts to study stormwater management 
issues in the subregion.  Over the past year, WRCOG staff and its consultant team met regularly with a 
technical working group convened to explore the feasibility of developing an ACP.  During these meetings, it 
was determined that: 
 
• There is a high level of interest in an ACP for the WRCOG subregion by a variety of stakeholders. 
• WRCOG is ideally suited to establish and administer a program, in partnership with other agencies such as 

Riverside County Flood Control and Water Conservation District and the various RWQCBs. 
• An ACP is within the realm of WRCOG’s current JPA. 
• An ACP should be structured as a voluntary program, under which jurisdictions and property owners 

choose to participate in the regional program or address stormwater issues individually.  
• WRCOG staff is approaching the ACP as an “Alternative Compliance Framework” for jurisdictions to 

consider.  The Framework will give jurisdictions an approach to follow if they so choose to participate in an 
ACP. 

• The focus should currently be on a Program within the San Diego RWQCB region (County of Riverside, 
Cities of Murrieta, Temecula, and Wildomar) because the San Diego RWQCB currently allows this type of 
program in its MS4 permit.  More information below.  
o The Santa Ana RWQCB MS4 permit has not been released.  

227

mailto:ctzeng@wrcog.us


WRCOG met with management from both RWQCBs – San Diego and Santa Ana – that cover the subregion.  
WRCOG discussed the potential ACP and gathered input on how best to move forward.  Both RWQCBs 
supported the concept and encouraged WRCOG to include RWQCB staff as development of the ACP moves 
forward.   
 
Since the WRCOG subregion lies within different RWQCB areas, the team is approaching ACP development 
differently.  The San Diego RWQCB indicated in its MS4 permit that an ACP can meet the new MS4 
requirements, but provided additional details on what an ACP must include.  The MS4 permit for Santa Ana 
RWQCB region is currently on hold, so it is not certain if an ACP is eligible, however, WRCOG staff will 
continue working with Santa Ana RWQCB staff to enable that option in the MS4 permit. 
 
ACP Guidance Manual for San Diego RWQCB Region 
 
The team is drafting an ACP Guidance Manual which will include information pertinent to ACP components, 
such as document recording, credit / deficit recording, collecting fee-in-lieu and annual fees, and assuring 
ongoing maintenance and compliance.  The team will look into the ACP credit process – how the ACP will 
track, record, and/or sell credits, etc.  WRCOG will reach out to member jurisdictions in the San Diego RWQCB 
region to request any potential projects currently planning or constructing to pilot a credit-generating exercise.  
This exercise will provide interested cities and stakeholders concrete examples of how an ACP will be 
executed.  Staff will present results to the WRCOG Committee structure for information and approval, when 
necessary. 
 
The Program does not change any processes that a development project must pursue through the Water 
Quality Management Plan (WQMP).  Any project developed by an applicant or a public entity will still complete 
a WQMP and go through the review process required by the municipal jurisdiction and other permit agencies.  
The team is working to ensure there is no duplicative work if an applicant or public entity decides to participate 
in the Program.  The team found there might be some overlap in required documents and engineering 
calculations, so the team provided suggested edits to both Riverside County Flood Control and Water 
Conservation District and the County of Riverside for inclusion in their comments on the WQMP process to the 
San Diego RWQCB.  
 
Program Development in Santa Ana RWQCB Region 
 
The team is now moving forward to examine potential options for implementing an ACP in the Santa Ana 
region.  Tasks for this approach include:  
 
• Program Project Identification 

o Steps will include identifying potential project locations, developing technical parameters for storm 
water benefits, developing watershed opportunities and constraints, developing construction approach 
and cost impacts, identifying regulatory constraints and environmental approach, and, finally, 
determining top three project locations 

 
• Program Development  

o Steps will include developing Framework with benefits analysis, preparing summary report and 
collaborating with the Santa Ana RWQCB and resource agencies on pilot projects 

 
• Program Implementation 

o Steps will include developing implementation strategy with project partners (local agencies, regulatory 
agency, NGOs, stakeholders), designing development and environmental review, and developing 
finance plan for construction and operation & maintenance 

 
The team will provide frequent updates to the WRCOG Committees on an as necessary basis so they are 
informed of ACP developments specific to this work, as a majority of WRCOG member agencies lie within the 
Santa Ana RWQCB area. 
 
 

228



Prior Action: 
 
September 15, 2016: The Technical Advisory Committee received and filed. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
Activities for the Alternative Compliance Program are included in the Agency’s adopted Fiscal Year 2017/2018 
Budget under the Transportation Department.  At this time, WRCOG is not requesting that any member agency 
provide direct funding for this effort beyond any staff time currently allocated.  
 
Attachment: 
 
None.  

 
 

229



 

 

 

230



Item 7.B 
 

Western Riverside Council of Governments 

Technical Advisory Committee 
 

Staff Report 
 
 

Subject: Santa Ana Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) Permit Compliance Program 
Update 

 
Contact: Edwin Quinonez, Chief, Watershed Protection Division, Riverside County Flood Control 

and Water Conservation District, eequinon@rivco.org, (951) 955-1273 
 
Date: March 15, 2018 
 
 
The purpose of this item is to provide a presentation from the Watershed Protection Division of the Riverside 
County Flood Control and Water Conservation District regarding the status of National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) Programs within the Santa Ana 
Region of Riverside County.   
 
Requested Action: 
 
1. Receive and file. 
 
 
Background 
 
The cities and County of Riverside, as well as the Riverside County Flood Control and Water Conservation 
District and Coachella Valley Water District (Permittees), are jointly regulated by NPDES MS4 Permits issued 
by the Santa Ana, Colorado and San Diego Regional Water Quality Control Boards.  These permits, issued 
pursuant to the federal Clean Water Act, are designed to protect local lakes, rivers and streams from pollution 
(such as sediment, oils, grease, fertilizers, animal and human waste, trash and dissolved metals) associated 
with urban land use. The NPDES MS4 Permits specifically regulate discharges of storm water and non-storm 
water (e.g. irrigation runoff) from the storm drain system owned and operated by the Permittees.  The NPDES 
MS4 Permits require Permittees to take action to regulate business and new developments, as well as residential 
areas and Permittee facilities (e.g. maintenance yards, parks, etc.) so as to minimize the potential for pollutants  
to be mobilized by runoff and conveyed through the storm drain system to local lakes, rivers and streams. 
Enhanced programs are required to address waterbodies that may be impaired by pollutants in urban runoff. 
 
Discussion 
 
The Santa Ana NPDES MS4 Permit requires City Managers for Beaumont, Calimesa, Canyon Lake, Corona, 
Eastvale, Hemet, Jurupa Valley, Lake Elsinore, Menifee, Moreno Valley, Norco, Perris, Riverside and San 
Jacinto, as well as the County Executive Officer to meet at least twice annually to discuss Santa Ana NPDES 
MS4 compliance programs.  These meetings are integrated into the WRCOG TAC meetings for the 
convenience of the City Managers and Executive Officer.  
 
This agenda item will convene the first meeting for Fiscal Year 2017-2018.  Each City Manager, or their 
designated alternate, must attend at least one of two meetings.   
 
The Presentation will address: 
 
1) The status of Canyon Lake and the Middle Santa Ana River, as well as Current Program Development; 

231

mailto:eequinon@rivco.org


2) The status of other NPDES MS4 Permit Program elements, including the status of the three MS4 Permits 
in the County; 

3) Regulatory Audit Activity; 
4) Details on Trash Management Regulations; and 
5) Status of the Unfunded Mandates Test Claims. 
 
 
Prior Action: 
 
October 19, 2017: The Technical Advisory Committee received report. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
This item is for informational purposes only; therefore, there is no fiscal impact. 
 
Attachment: 
 
1. Stormwater Permits Program Update PowerPoint. 
 
 

232



 

Item 7.B 
Santa Ana Municipal Separate Storm 

Sewer System (MS4) Permit 
Compliance Program Update 

Attachment 1 
Stormwater Permits Program Update 

PowerPoint 

233



 

 

 

234



3/9/2018

1

rcwatershed.org

Stormwater Permits	
Program	Update

March	15,	2018

Edwin	Quinonez,	P.E.
Chief,	Watershed	Protection	Division
Riverside	County	Flood	Control	
and	Water	Conservation	District

rcwatershed.org
Outline

 NPDES	Permits
Municipal	Stormwater Permits

 Countywide	Water	Quality	Programs

Waterbody	Specific	Programs

 Permit	Status

 Regulatory	Audit	Activity

 Regulations	For	Trash	Management

 Unfunded	Mandates	Claims

 Questions

2

235



3/9/2018

2

rcwatershed.org
NPDES	Permits

 The	Clean	Water	Act	
prohibits	the	discharge	
of	"pollutants"	through	a	
"point	source"	into	a	
"water	of	the	United	
States"	unless	
authorized	by	a	National	
Pollutant	Discharge	
Elimination	System	
(NPDES)	permit.

3

rcwatershed.org
Regional	Board	Boundaries	
in	Riverside	County	

4

Permit R8 2010-0033 
as amended Permit R7-2013-0011

Permit R9-2013-0001
as amended

236



3/9/2018

3

rcwatershed.org
Countywide	Programs	– Source	Control5

Code	Enforcement Municipal	Housekeeping

Education/Outreach

New	Development	Controls

Infrastructure	Maintenance Business	Inspection	Programs

rcwatershed.org
Water	Body	Specific	Programs6

Lake	Elsinore/Canyon	Lake
Excessive	Nutrients

• Lake	Elsinore—Aeration	System
• Canyon	Lake	Alum	Treatment	twice	a	

year
• TMDL	Revision

Santa	Ana	River
Excessive	bacterial	indicators

• Evaluating	bacterial	sources

Santa	Margarita	River/Lagoon
Excessive	Nutrients

• Alternative	TMDL	Workgroup
• WQIP	Completion

237



3/9/2018

4

rcwatershed.org
Current	Program	Development

Alternative	Compliance	For	Land	Development

WRCOG	funded/led	initiative

Creation	of	stormwater credit	trading	program	to	enable	
off‐site	compliance	in‐lieu	of	on‐site	mitigation	for	project	
proponents

Ongoing

7

rcwatershed.org
Permit	Status

 Santa	Ana	MS4	Permit	– Expired	January	29,	2015	(Administrative	
extension)
 Delayed	due	to	Unfunded	Mandates	claims

 Regional	MS4	Permit	(Santa	Margarita)	– Expires	June	27,	2018
 Application	For	Next	Permit	(Report	Of	Waste	Discharge)	– Submittal	on	
1/7/18

 Whitewater	River	MS4	Permit	– Expires	June	19,	2018
 Application	For	Next	Permit	(Report	Of	Waste	Discharge)	– Submittal	on	
12/27/18

8

238



3/9/2018

5

rcwatershed.org
Regulatory	Audit	Activity

 Middle	Santa	Ana	River	Permittees
 Bacteria	Indicators	Program	(Comprehensive	Bacteria	Reduction	

Program)	– 3/22/2018

 City	of	Beaumont
 Industrial	Facility	Program	– 3/27,29/2017

 City	of	Corona	
 New	Development	Program	‐11/15,16&17/2017

 Homeless	Response	Evaluation	– 12/19/2017

 City	of	Eastvale
 Homeless	Response	Evaluation	– 1/22/2018

 City	of	Riverside
 New	Development	Program	‐9/19	&	20/2017

 Homeless	Response	Evaluation	– 1/31/2018

 City	of	Indian	Wells
 Pending

9

rcwatershed.org
Trash	Management	Regulations

 Applies	to	all	surface	water	
of	the	State

 Prohibits	the	discharge	
of	trash	to	surface	
waters	of	the	State

 Two	compliance	track	
alternatives:

 Compliance	schedule:	10	
years	and	10%	installation	
per	year	commencing	in	late	
2018

10

239



3/9/2018

6

rcwatershed.org
Unfunded	Mandates	Claims

A	"Test	claim"	means	the	first	claim	filed	with	the	Commission	alleging	that	a	
particular	statute	or	executive	order	imposes	costs	mandated	by	the	state.	

 Sixteen	Pending	Test	Claims	(12/13/17)	At	Commission	On	State	Mandates:		14	are	
MS4	Permit	Claims.

 11‐TC‐03	– R9‐2010‐0016	(County	Of	Riverside,	RCFC&WCD,	Murrieta,	Temecula	
and	Wildomar)	scheduled	for	9/28/18.

 10‐TC‐07	– R8‐2010‐0033	(County	Of	Riverside,	RCFC&WCD,	Beaumont,	Corona,	
Hemet,	LE,	Moreno	Valley,	Perris	and	San	Jacinto)	scheduled	for	3/22/19

 09‐TC‐03	– R8‐2009‐0030	(Orange	County)	3/23/18

11

rcwatershed.org

Questions?

12

240



Item 7.C 
 

Western Riverside Council of Governments 

Technical Advisory Committee 
 

Staff Report 
 
 

Subject: Regional Streetlight Program Activities Update 
 
Contact: Tyler Masters, Program Manager, tmasters@wrcog.us, (951) 405-6732 
 
Date: March 15, 2018 
 
 
The purpose of this item is to update the Committee on the Western Riverside County Streetlight acquisition 
process and to provide a recommendation for the Committee’s consideration for LED fixture selection. 
 
Requested Action: 
 
1. Receive and file. 
 
 
WRCOG’s Regional Streetlight Program will assist member jurisdictions with the acquisition and retrofit of their 
Southern California Edison (SCE)-owned and operated streetlights.  The Program has three phases: 1) 
streetlight inventory; 2) procurement and retrofitting of streetlights; and 3) ongoing operations and 
maintenance.  A major objective of the Program is to provide cost savings to participating member jurisdictions. 
 
Background 
 
At the direction of the Executive Committee, WRCOG developed a Regional Streetlight Program that will allow 
jurisdictions (and Community Service Districts) to purchase streetlights within their boundaries that are 
currently owned and operated by SCE.  Once the streetlights are owned by the member jurisdiction, the lamps 
will be retrofitted to Light Emitting Diode (LED) technology to provide more economical operations (i.e., lower 
maintenance costs and reduced energy use).  Local control of the streetlight system provides jurisdictions with 
opportunities for future revenue generation such as digital-ready networks and telecommunications and 
information technology strategies. 
 
The Program seeks to provide cost-efficiencies for local jurisdictions through the purchase, retrofit, and 
maintenance of streetlights within jurisdictional boundaries, without the need of additional jurisdictional 
resources.  As a regional Program, WRCOG is working with participating jurisdictions to move through the 
acquisition process, develop financing recommendations, develop and update regional and community-specific 
streetlight standards, and implement a regional operations & maintenance (O&M) agreement that will enhance 
the level of service for that aspect of the Program. 
 
Regional Streetlight Acquisition Update 
 
11 jurisdictions (listed below) have moved forward and signed Purchase and Sales Agreements to acquire 
current SCE-owned streetlights within their jurisdictional boundaries.  Collectively, these account for nearly 
48,000 streetlights within Western Riverside County.  Once each Agreement is signed by the jurisdiction, SCE 
will transmit the Agreement to the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) for review and approval.   
 
In 2017, three jurisdictions’ (Cities of Eastvale, Murrieta, and Temecula) Streetlight applications entered the 
CPUC’s review process.  The Cities of Eastvale (on 12/8/17) and Murrieta (on 10/10/17) received CPUC 
approval on their applications.  The City of Temecula will receive their approval in the first or second quarter of 

241

mailto:tmasters@wrcog.us


2018 (the City goes through a longer approval process because it has an acquisition cost of over $5 million 
that requires a formal filing process within the CPUC).  
 
In February and early March 2018, SCE filed the Cities of Hemet, Lake Elsinore, Moreno Valley, Perris, San 
Jacinto, Wildomar, and Jurupa Community Services District’s (JCSD) streetlight applications for review at the 
CPUC.   
 
Once the applications are approved, staff will coordinate with jurisdictional staff to initiate the next step of the 
Program, which includes approval of Program participation and the streetlight transition process from SCE and 
closing of the financing. 
 
Acquisition process schedule:  In early 2017, all 11 jurisdictions took action and approved of their Purchase 
and Sales Agreement for Streetlight acquisition.  This agreement included the terms and acquisition price for 
the sale of the streetlights for each jurisdiction.  In June 2017, SCE presented participating cities with a first, 
and only, amendment to its Purchase and Sales Agreements, which included two changes to the original 
agreement.  The first is a minor change in the overall price of the streetlight systems to include the additional 
depreciation of the streetlight systems from the original 2015/2016 valuation.  The second includes an increase 
in the transition cost, from $30.00 per pole to $32.15 per pole.  The transition cost component of the 
Agreement includes the time and materials that SCE’s contractor will take during the acquisition and transition 
process when converting a streetlight from SCE-ownership to jurisdictional-ownership.  The Cities of Perris, 
San Jacinto, and Wildomar, and JCSD did not receive an amendment to their Purchase and Sales Agreement 
because the updated transition cost was already included in their Agreement. 
   
The table below provides the status for each jurisdiction participating in the Program and is subject to change 
as SCE and CPUC progress through the approval processes.  WRCOG staff will continue to update the 
progress as jurisdictions reach each milestone. 
 

  

City approves 
agreement to 

purchase 
streetlights 

City 
approves 

amendment 
to PSA 

SCE 
executes 

agreement 

SCE 
sends 

to 
CPUC 

CPUC 
approves 
streetlight 
transfer 

 
City approves 

program 
participation 

Eastvale 4/12/2017 7/25/17   12/8/2017  
Hemet 3/14/2017 9/11/2017    Est. Q2 2018  
JCSD 3/13/2017 N/A    Est. Q2 2018   
Lake Elsinore 1/24/2017 8/17/2017     Est. Q2 2018  
Menifee 2/15/2017 In process       
Moreno Valley 3/21/2017 10/16/17   Est. Q2 2018   
Murrieta 3/7/2017 7/11/17    9/29/2017 12/19/2017 
Perris 3/28/2017 N/A    Est. Q2 2018   
San Jacinto 3/28/2017 N/A    Est. Q2 2018  12/19/2017 
Temecula 2/28/2017 5/30/17   Est. Q2 2018  
Wildomar 3/8/2017 N/A    Est. Q2 2018   

 
Streetlight Request for Quotation (RFQ) – LED Fixture Selection  
 
On September 21, 2017, WRCOG released an RFQ to solicit suppliers interested in providing WRCOG’s 
member jurisdictions with LED lights for the replacement of jurisdiction-owned streetlights, which is a primary 
goal of the Program. 
 
On December 21, 2017, the RFQ closed and WRCOG staff received proposals from 11 different lighting 
vendors.  Staff formed an Evaluation Committee consisting of WRCOG’s financial consultant (PFM), O&M 
contractor (Siemens), and interested jurisdictions involved in the Program.   
 

242



On January 16, 2018, the Evaluation Committee met to review the proposed LED lighting fixtures and 
determine the best qualified fixture(s) for the subregion’s street lighting needs.  Staff provided an update on the 
findings from the Evaluation Committee at the January 18, 2018, Technical Advisory Committee meeting.   
 
On February 26, 2018, the Evaluation Committee met again to review the results of the lighting analysis and to 
identify the preferred lighting fixture that will be implemented as part of the Program.  The lighting analysis 
consisted of evaluating the wattage / energy efficiency output, cost comparison, and reference checks on the 
proposals.  During the working group, jurisdictional staff presented to the following items be taken into account 
for selection:  
 
1. Incentive / rebate potential – Jurisdictions would like to select a fixture that is Design Light Consortium 

(DLC) approved. As part of the rebate process, SCE will only provide rebates on lighting fixtures that are 
DLC qualified. This is the standard practice that is used for rebate processing.  

2. Lighting analysis – Jurisdictions would like to select a fixture that is that does not emit too much light 
pollution or scatters the lighting into unnecessary coverage such as resident’s yards. 

3. Project cost – Jurisdictions would like to select a fixture that is the most energy efficient yet will continue to 
be cost effective for the region as a whole. 
 

The Evaluation Committee narrowed down the selection to the top two proposers.  Before a final 
recommendation is made, the Evaluation Committee requested WRCOG to compile comparative information of 
the two top proposals (pricing, wattage, light output, optics, warranty, and other key qualifications).  Staff will 
report the final information to the Evaluation Committee and will seek a recommendation by March 7, 2018.  
Staff will present the findings and final recommendation by the Evaluation Committee to WRCOG’s 
Administration & Finance Committee and Technical Advisory Committee in March; the final recommendation is 
anticipated to be considered by the Executive Committee in April 2018.  
 
 
Prior Action:  
 
March 5, 2018: The Executive Committee received and filed. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
This item is for informational purposes only; therefore there is no fiscal impact. 
 
Attachment: 
 
None. 
 
 

243



 

 

 

244



Item 7.D 
 

Western Riverside Council of Governments 

Technical Advisory Committee 
 

Staff Report 
 
 

Subject: Public Service Fellowship Activities Update 
 
Contact: Cynthia Mejia, Staff Analyst, cmejia@wrcog.us, (951) 405-6752 
 
Date: March 15, 2018 
 
 
The purpose of this item is to provide an update on the second and third rounds of the Public Service 
Fellowship. 
 
Requested Action: 
 
1. Receive and file. 
 
 
In partnership with higher education institutions, WRCOG developed and launched a Public Service Fellowship 
Program that provides local university graduates with career opportunities within local governments and 
agencies in a way that is mutually beneficial to both the Fellow and the Agency.  
 
Background 
 
In February 2016, the Executive Committee approved the creation of a one-year pilot Public Service 
Fellowship Program, to be administered by WRCOG in Western Riverside County, in partnership with the 
University of California, Riverside (UCR), California Baptist University (CBU), and, as of 2018, California State 
University, San Bernardino (CSUSB).  The goal of the Program is to retain local students to fulfill the 
subregion’s needs for a robust public sector workforce and to combat the often-mentioned “brain drain” that 
Riverside County experiences when local students graduate but then leave the region to seek full-time 
employment elsewhere.  The Program is geared towards students graduating from UCR, CBU and CSUSB to 
engage them in career opportunities with local governments and agencies in a way that is mutually beneficial 
to both the Fellows and the agency. 
 
WRCOG is responsible for general Program administration and oversight, maintaining employment of the 
Fellows, soliciting interest from local government agencies, serving as the liaison between member agencies 
and the universities, providing Program funding, and coordinating payment of Fellowship stipends.  UCR, CBU, 
and CSUSB are responsible for soliciting interest from students, reviewing applications and conducting 
interviews, recommending local government agency placements, and communicating regularly with Fellows.  
They all also provide ongoing training to Fellows on career readiness and other theoretical topics during 
regular Networking Sessions to support Fellows’ hands-on work experience.  A representative from each 
University serves as an “advisor” to answer questions from the Fellows or host agencies, monitor the Fellows’ 
performance, handle HR-related issues or complaints in collaboration with WRCOG, and provide needed 
support to ensure that the Fellowship placement is successful. 
 
Program Update 
 
Round I spanned from July 2016 through March 2017 and placed 17 Fellows in member agencies.  To staff’s 
knowledge to-date, nearly all alumni Fellows are gainfully employed, with at least eight working for public 

245

mailto:cmejia@wrcog.us


agencies in Riverside County.  Based on the widespread success of Round I and remaining funding, WRCOG 
launched a second round of the Fellowship Program from July 2017 to March 2018, with 19 Fellows (11 from 
UCR and eight from CBU) placed in WRCOG member jurisdictions.   
 
Round II Fellows are now in the last month of the Program and are preparing to close out any work they have 
completed at their host agencies.  As part of the regular monthly sessions hosted by WRCOG, Round II 
Fellows have undergone a resume and interviewing skills workshop and have also heard from several 
professionals in the local public sector to gain valuable tips for entering and/or excelling in the workforce.  
Several Fellows have already been hired by member agencies or are in the process of securing employment 
locally. 
 
All TAC members and member agency staff who supervised and/or worked with WRCOG’s Public Service 
Fellows are invited to attend a completion ceremony luncheon on Thursday, April 19, 2018 at 11:30 a.m. 
(immediately following the April TAC meeting), to be held at the Grier Pavilion, 7th Floor, Riverside City Hall. 
 
Round III 
 
Staff recently launched the application for the next round, which may be found on WRCOG’s website under the 
Fellowship Program tab.  Applications for the next round is due March 16, 2018.  Staff has also sent member 
agencies an Interest Form where member agencies can specifically request a Fellow for the 2018-2019 
Program year.  
 
Below is a list of important dates for Round III of the Fellowship Program:  
 
January 20, 2018: Round III Fellowship Application goes live.  
 
March 16, 2018: Fellowship Applications due from potential candidates.  
 
March 30, 2018: Member Agency Interest Forms Due from host jurisdictions. 
 
April – May 2018: WRCOG and universities review applications.  
 
June 2018: Member agencies receive candidate applications, interview candidates and placements 

are finalized.  
 
July 2018 – March 2019: Fellows work in member agencies. 
 
 
Prior Action: 
 
November 6, 2017: The Executive Committee 1) allocated $300,000 from Agency carryover funds for the 

remainder of the Public Service Fellowship, Round II; and 2) allocated $400,000 from 
Agency carryover funds for the continuation of the Public Service Fellowship, with Round 
III commencing in January 2018. 

 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
Activities for the Fellowship Program are included in the Agency’s adopted FY 2017/2018 Budget under the 
Government Relations Department. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
This item is for informational purposes only; therefore, there is no fiscal impact. 
 
Attachments: 
 
1. Fellow Feature in March 2018 eCommunicator. 
2. Member Agency Interest Form. 

246



 

Item 7.D 
Public Service Fellowship Activities 

Update 

Attachment 1 
Fellow Feature in March 2018 

eCommunicator 

247



 

 

 

248



Fellow Feature: Spotlight on
​County Supervisorial Fellows!

Left: Kianna Maldonado (far left) with County of Riverside, District 5 Supervisor Marion Ashley's staff.

Right: Sarah Rodriguez with County of Riverside, District 3 Supervisor Chuck Washington.

The Public Service Fellowship Program, launched in 2016, aims to retain local talent to
fulfill the subregion’s needs for a strong public sector workforce and to combat the often-
mentioned “brain drain” that occurs when local students graduate and then leave the
region to seek full-time employment elsewhere. The Fellowship is made possible with the
help of our educational partners, University of California, Riverside and California Baptist
University - and starting in 2018, California State University, San Bernardino. The Program
has been widely praised for cultivating exceptionally talented Fellow cohorts and
addressing pressing needs in our member agencies to build capacity. In its pilot round, the
Fellowship placed 14 Fellows in member agencies. Last year, the Program grew to include
19 Fellows. In its upcoming third round, the Fellowship will place up to 25 Fellows in
WRCOG member agencies.

This month the WRCOG Public Service Fellowship is pleased to feature three Fellows
working in County of Riverside Supervisor Offices: Chika Ojukwu (District One), Sarah
Rodriguez (District Three), and Kianna Maldonado (District Five).

249

http://wrcog.us/132/Calendar


Chika Ojukwu (second from right) with County of Riverside, District 1 Supervisor Kevin Jeffries and his staff.

Sarah Rodriguez works with the Third Supervisorial District and
assists with office functions, research, and local community
events. She attributes her open-mindedness and enthusiasm for
the office to her experience from the beginning stating, “This
Fellowship has been the opportunity of a lifetime. I can't begin to
put a value on the experience I have gained, the projects I have
completed, and the friends I have made.” Supervisor Chuck
Washington expressed that, “This Program began with a great

concept that flourished into a fantastic program. I can't image that we could have gotten
anyone more exceptional for our team than Sarah.”

Kianna Maldonado works with the Fifth Supervisorial District
and assists County staff with event support, planning, and public
relations. Her direct supervisor, Katrina Cline, expressed, “This is
our first year with the WRCOG Fellowship Program. Our Fellow,
Kianna, has learned perspective on legislation and local
government. She has shown great potential, professionalism,
enthusiasm and public relations.” Kianna stated, “nothing has
made me feel more prepared for a career in public service than
working for Supervisor Marion Ashley’s Office and his Fifth

District team through the WRCOG Fellowship Program. I have learned how to adapt
quickly to the fast-paced and changing environment of an elected official’s office, while
simultaneously understanding the detail, teamwork and the effort it takes to proudly and
respectfully serve a growing community.”

Chika Ojukwu works with the First Supervisorial District and
focuses on legislative matters and research on homelessness.
She also engages with local small businesses through grand
openings and public outreach on behalf of Supervisor Kevin
Jeffries. She recently reviewed the Fellowship with positive
remarks expressing, “My fellowship has really provided an
upfront and hands-on look into how things are achieved
within the local government. I am thankful for the opportunity

250



to see how public policy affects the lives of the community.” Kerstin Justus, her supervisor,
added, “Chika has been a very valuable addition to our office. We have treated her as a
full staff member, assigning her policy research, and attending a variety of meetings on the
Supervisor’s behalf, and working as part of the team on a number of special events. I think
she would agree that this has been far beyond the stereotypical filing, copying, and letter
opening experience so many interns and fellows encounter in other programs.”

Contact Cynthia Mejia

Partnership with SCE and SoCal Gas helps
cities set example for achieving energy

efficiency
The Western Riverside Energy Partnership (WREP) is
comprised of Southern California Edison (SCE),
Southern California Gas Company (SoCal Gas),
WRCOG, and 14 member jurisdictions in Western
Riverside County whose goal is to implement energy
retrofits in municipal facilities and provide sustainable
best practices to residents. WREP jurisdictions are
taking the challenge seriously. Out of 166 energy
programs in California, the California Public Utilities
Commission (CPUC) ranked WREP as the sixth best
partnership in the state for overall efficiency and
cost-effectiveness. In 2017, the Cities of Canyon Lake, Norco, Perris, Temecula, and
Wildomar were recognized by SCE and SoCal Gas for exemplary gains in becoming more
energy efficient. In total, these five cities saved over 1.9 million kWh in municipal energy
savings by implementing measures such as interior / exterior lighting, occupancy sensors,
and energy efficient pumping upgrades in their municipally-owned facilities.   

WREP closed 2017 with its successful 4th Annual Holiday Lights & Energy Efficiency Kit
Giveaway Program, providing over 900 strings of LED holiday lights and 80 energy
efficiency kits to over 450 households in Western Riverside County.

Contact Anthony Segura

Regional transportation fee helps road
improvements keep pace with growth

The Transportation Uniform Mitigation Fee (TUMF) Program is a regional development
impact fee program designed to provide transportation and transit infrastructure that
mitigates the impact of new growth in Western Riverside County. Fees are paid from new
development occurring in each of the subregion’s jurisdictions and are used to help keep
drivers and the economy moving. Since the Program commenced in 2003, TUMF has

251

mailto:cmejia@wrcog.us
mailto:asegura@wrcog.us


 

 

 

252



 

Item 7.D 
Public Service Fellowship Activities 

Update 

Attachment 2 
Member Agency Interest Form 

253



 

 

 

254



WRCOG 
Public Service Fellowship Program (2018-2019) 

Member Agency Interest Form 
 

Please submit completed forms to cmejia@wrcog.us by March 30, 2018. 
 

I. Program Overview 
 
In February 2016, WRCOG launched a Public Service Fellowship Program in 
partnership with the University of California, Riverside (UCR) and California Baptist 
University (CBU) and in 2018 added California State San Bernardino (CSUSB) to the 
Program.  The goal of this Program is to retain local students to fulfill the subregion’s 
need for a robust public sector workforce and to combat the often-mentioned “brain 
drain” that Riverside County experiences when local students graduate but then leave 
the region to seek full-time employment elsewhere.  The Fellowship Program is geared 
towards students from UCR, CBU and CSUSB—to engage young professionals in 
career opportunities with local governments and agencies in a way that is mutually 
beneficial to both the Fellows and the agency. 
 
WRCOG is responsible for general Program operation and oversight, administering 
employment of the Fellows, soliciting interest from local government agencies, serving 
as the liaison between member agencies and the universities, providing Program 
funding, and coordinating payment of Fellowship stipends.  UCR, CBU and CSUSB are 
responsible for soliciting interest from students, reviewing applications and conducting 
interviews, and recommending local government and agency placements.  WRCOG, 
UCR, CBU and CSUSB also provide ongoing training to Fellows on career readiness 
and other theoretical topics during regular Networking Sessions to support their hands-
on work experience.  A representative from each university serves as an “advisor” to 
answer questions from the Fellows or host agencies, monitor the Fellows’ performance, 
handle HR-related issues or complaints in collaboration with WRCOG, and provide 
needed support to ensure that the Fellowship placement is successful. 
 

II. Jurisdiction/Agency Information 
 
Agency Name: _________________________________________________________ 
Contact Name: _________________________________________________________ 
Title: _________________________________________________________________ 
Phone Number: _________________________________________________________ 
Email Address: _________________________________________________________ 
Address: ______________________________________________________________ 
 
Are you able and willing to provide direct oversight of the Fellow in 2018/2019? 
 
Yes: ___ 
No: ___ 
 

255

mailto:cmejia@wrcog.us


If no, who will be responsible for supervising the Fellow? 
 
Name: ________________________________________________________________ 
Title: _________________________________________________________________ 
Email: ________________________________________________________________ 
Phone: _______________________________________________________________ 
 

III. Fellow Information 
 

A. Select the preferred area of study/education background(s) you would like the 
Fellow to have (please check all that apply): 

 
Public Policy: ___ 
Public Health: ___ 
Economics: ___ 
Engineering: ___ 
Urban Planning: ___ 
Environmental Science: ___ 
Other: ___________________________________________________________ 

 
B. Preferred level of educational attainment of Fellow (please check one): 

 
Bachelor’s degree in process: ___ 
Bachelors’ degree: ___ 
Master’s degree in process: ___ 
Master’s degree: ___ 
 

C. How many hours per week would the Fellow be needed? 
 

Up to 15 hours/week: ___ 
Up to 30 hours/week: ___ 

 
D. Please list goals and activities your agency would like the Fellow to work on in 

2018/2019: 
 

1. ______________________________________________________________ 
 

2. ______________________________________________________________ 
 

3. ______________________________________________________________ 
 

4. ______________________________________________________________ 
 

5. ______________________________________________________________ 
 

256



E. Do you want to participate in the Fellow interview process or do you want the 
Fellowship Program Administrators to make a placement selection on your 
behalf? (please check one) 
 

 Participate in interview process: ___ 
Receive fellow placement: ___ 
Unsure at this time: ___ 

 
IV. Other Comments 

 
Please leave any other commends or feedback on the Public Service Fellowship you 
would like WRCOG staff to be aware of prior to placing the Round III Fellows. 
 
 
 
 
 

V. Interest Form Submission and Program Contact Information 
 
Please submit interest forms to Cynthia Mejia at cmejia@wrcog.us by Friday, March 30, 
2018. 
 
For questions please contact: 
 
Jennifer Ward 
Director of Government Relations  
WRCOG 
(951) 405-6750 
jward@wrcog.us 

Cynthia Mejia 
Staff Analyst 
WRCOG 
(951) 405-6752 
cmejia@wrcog.us 

 
 
(2018-2019) Round III Program Timeline:   
 
January 20, 2018: Round III Fellowship Application Goes Live  
 
March 16, 2018: Fellowship Applications Due from Potential Candidates  
 
March 30, 2018: Member Agency Interest Forms Due from Host Jurisdictions  
 
April – May: WRCOG and Universities review applications  
 
June:  Member agencies receive candidate applications, interview candidates and 
placements are finalized.  
 
July- March: Confirmed Fellows work in member agencies. 

257

mailto:cmejia@wrcog.us
mailto:jward@wrcog.us


 

 

 

258



Item 7.E 
 

Western Riverside Council of Governments 

Technical Advisory Committee 
 

Staff Report 
 
 

Subject: BEYOND Program Update and Project Spotlight – Cancer Treatment Task Force 
 
Contact: Andrea Howard, Senior Analyst, ahoward@wrcog.us, (951) 405-6751 
 
Date: March 15, 2018 
 
 
The purpose of this item is to provide members of the Committee an update on the BEYOND Framework 
Fund Program and highlight the Round II funded Southwest Riverside County Regional Cancer Treatment 
Task Force project.  
 
Requested Action: 
 
1. Receive and file. 
 
 
The BEYOND Framework Fund Program is designed to enable member agencies to develop and implement 
plans and programs aimed at improving quality of life in Western Riverside County by addressing the goal 
areas outlined in WRCOG’s Economic Development and Sustainability Framework.   
 
BEYOND Program Overview 
 
Piloted in Fiscal Year (FY) 2015/2016, the BEYOND Framework Fund supports development and 
implementation of local projects aligned with the six goal areas outlined in WRCOG’s Economic Development 
and Sustainability Framework:  economy, health, education, energy & environment, water & waste water, and 
transportation.  To date, the Executive Committee has allocated a total of $4.1 million through two rounds of 
funding.  Round I of BEYOND is funded through FY 2015/2016 Agency carryover funds, while Round II is 
funded through FY 2016/2017 Agency carryover funds. 
 
BEYOND Round I Status:  Round I provided $1.8 million to member jurisdictions, allocated according to a 
population-based formula in a single funding stream.  Thirty-two projects were funded under Round I and, as of 
this writing, twenty projects have been completed, nine projects have requested extensions, and three projects 
have been approved as multi-year efforts; the Water Task Force project, funded jointly by EMWD and WMWD, 
and one project each from the Cities of Riverside and Temecula, which are combining Round I and Round II 
funding for the same project.  Attachment 1 includes a summary of each Round I project and identifies which 
projects are complete.   
 
BEYOND Round II Status:  Round II is operating three funding streams: 1) BEYOND Core, a central category 
of funding allocating $2.05 million to WRCOG member agencies using a population-based formula; 2) 
BEYOND Team, a competitive fund for collaborative projects between multiple member agencies; and 3) 
BEYOND Health, a competitive fund for public health promoting projects.  Through these three funding 
streams, Round II is funding 51 projects.  Though Round II projects just kicked-off in early summer 2017, one 
project, the Regional Cancer Treatment Task Force Task Force Project, concluded in January 2018.  A 
summary of each Round II project, noting which projects are complete, is provided as Attachment 2. 
 
 
 

259

mailto:ahoward@wrcog.us


Regional Cancer Treatment Task Force Project 
 
The Regional Cancer Treatment Task Force is a strategic effort, convened in 2016, to identify opportunities to 
support the region’s cancer patients by reducing their need to travel outside of the area for treatment.  The 
Task Force is comprised of staff from participating jurisdictions – the Cities of Lake Elsinore, Menifee, Murrieta, 
Temecula, and the County of Riverside – physicians, public health professionals, and community members.  
WRCOG’s BEYOND Framework Fund is providing $62,000 to support the Task Force through allocations 
made on behalf of the Cities of Lake Elsinore ($10,000), Menifee ($6,000), Murrieta ($6,000), Temecula 
($20,000), and the County of Riverside, Third District ($20,000).   
 
The Task Force convened to explore the limitations to providing premier cancer treatment in the region and 
address these limitations through coalition building and strategic community planning.  To organize the effort, 
the Task Force contracted with Health Assessment and Research for Communities (HARC), a nonprofit 
research organization, to facilitate meetings and Task Force logistics and conduct a robust community Cancer 
Care Needs Assessment. 
 
HARC surveyed 600 cancer patients / survivors and their caregivers, and healthcare providers who work in 
cancer prevention or treatment, and the results of this Cancer Care Needs Assessment are available 
at https://temeculaca.gov/DocumentCenter/Home/View/4547.  The 107-page document includes an analysis of 
all information collected and concludes with a series of recommendations, which include local hospitals forming 
cancer care centers and seeking accreditation; bringing more clinical trial opportunities to the region; working 
to attract, retain, and grow our own providers; communicating available resources to the community at large; 
and developing a foundation to defray patient costs.  Attachment 3 provides a graphic overview of the Cancer 
Care Needs Assessment process and findings.  
 
Over the past year, the Task Force convened bi-monthly meetings focusing on a variety of topics, ranging from 
legislative issues to recruiting talent and resources, and guiding the development, implementation, and 
analysis of the Cancer Care Needs Assessment.  The Task Force developed next steps to address five 
primary problems identified by the Assessment, the problems and associated steps are summarized in 
Attachment 4. 
 
On January 18, 2018, the Task Force convened what was scheduled to be its final meeting and elected to 
continue to hold regular meetings and continue working on the identified next steps.  Amber Bolden, WRCOG’s 
Public Service Fellow, served as the staff representative to the Task Force, and WRCOG staff will continue to 
work with the Task Force as their efforts progress, seek opportunities to provide assistance, and regularly 
provide updates to the WRCOG Committees. 
 
 
Prior Actions:  
 
March 5, 2018: The Executive Committee received and filed. 
 
February 14, 2018: The Administration & Finance Committee received and filed. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
This item is for informational purposes only; therefore, there is no fiscal impact. 
 
Attachments: 
 
1. BEYOND Round I – Project Summaries. 
2. BEYOND Round II – Project Summaries. 
3. Cancer Care Needs Assessment Infographic. 
4. Task Force Next Steps. 

260

https://temeculaca.gov/DocumentCenter/Home/View/4547


 

Item 7.E 
BEYOND Program Update and 

Project Spotlight – Cancer Treatment 
Task Force 

Attachment 1 
BEYOND Round I – Project 

Summaries 

261



 

 

 

262



City / 
Agency 

Project Name Framework 
Goal(s) 
Supported 

Project Description 

City of 
Banning 

Park Facilities 
Improvements 
 

Health 
 

The City of Banning has been approved to leverage BEYOND money as matching funds to finance 
an expansion and facilities update of Lions Park. If no match is available, they have proposed using 
the funds for smaller park facilities updates.  Status: Completed 

City of 
Calimesa 

Clean Energy 
Vehicles for 
Calimesa 

Energy & 
Environment 

The City of Calimesa is utilizing BEYOND funding as a match with AQMD AB 2766 funds to replace 
two vehicles in the City's hybrid/electric fleet.  Status: Completed 

City of 
Canyon 
Lake 

Canyon Lake 
Water 
Monitoring 

Water 
The City of Canyon Lake is dedicating BEYOND funds to facilitate more frequent water testing of the 
Lake as necessitated by anticipated increases of run-off from El Nino storms.  Status: Completed 

Economic 
Development 

Economic 
Dev. 

The City of Canyon Lake is spurring economic development by posting monument signs, performing 
website maintenance, and completing land analysis for future development.  Status: Completed 

City of 
Corona 

Corona 
Innovation 
Center 

Economic 
Dev., Energy 
& 
Environment 

The City of Corona is utilizing BEYOND funds to support improvements to a previously underutilized 
facility for use as a business development center. 

City of 
Eastvale 

SRTS: Radar 
Display Signs 

Health, 
Transportation 

The City of Eastvale is utilizing BEYOND funds to support its Safe Routes to School campaign 
through the purchase and installation of 12 radar speed display signs.  Status: Completed 

City of 
Hemet 

Downtown 
Specific Plan 

Economic 
Dev. 
 

The City of Hemet is applying BEYOND funds, in conjunction with a SCAG planning grant, to 
support development of the City's updated Specific Plan and related documents. 

City of 
Jurupa 
Valley 

Farmer's Market Health, 
Energy & 
Environment 

The City of Jurupa Valley's Farmers' Market BEYOND project is utilizing funds to make requisite 
updates to the City's zoning code to allow for a Farmers' Market and will also support the 
establishment of the Farmer's Market.  Status: Completed 

Healthy Jurupa 
Valley Support Health 

The City of Jurupa Valley's Healthy Jurupa Valley BEYOND project funds are supporting the 
initiative's five action teams which work to promote and implement healthy living initiatives in the city.  
Status: Completed  

Pedestrian and 
Bicycle Mobility 
Improvements 

Health, 
Transportation 

The City of Jurupa Valley's Pedestrian and Bicycle Mobility Improvements BEYOND project will 
dedicate funds to identify city arterials appropriate for walking and biking corridors. Funds will then 
be used to install appropriate signage and perform necessary walkway upgrades. 

Chamber of 
Commerce 
Partnership 

Economic 
Dev. 

The City of Jurupa Valley's Chamber of Commerce BEYOND project is supporting an initiative to 
build a partnership with the Chamber of Commerce and to develop educational programs that will 
promote the City's economic vitality.  Status: Completed 

263



City / 
Agency 

Project Name Goal 
Area(s) 
Supported 

Project Description 

City of 
Lake 
Elsinore 

Rosetta Canyon 
Park - Artificial 
Turf 

Economic 
Dev., Health, 
Water 

The City of Lake Elsinore is devoting BEYOND funds to finance a portion of the City's artificial turf 
installation at Rosetta Canyon Community Park which will include five softball/baseball fields, and 
one soccer/football field.  Status: Completed 

City of 
Menifee 

Citywide 
Branding Effort - 
An Economic 
Driver 

Economic 
Dev. 

The City of Menifee is dedicating BEYOND funds to support a two-stage economic development 
project beginning with a comprehensive evaluation of the City's economic environment, Stakeholder 
attitudes and perceptions, to inform the second stage development of a citywide branding effort. 

City of 
Moreno 
Valley 

Community 
Enhancement 
Program 

Economic 
Dev. Water, 
Health, 
Transportation 

The City of Moreno Valley is dividing funds between 12 initiatives including a water station 
installation, materials and supplies support for three Safe Routes to School events, the replacement 
of 38 computers at the employment resource center, and bike rack installations. 

City of 
Murrieta 

Murrieta Energy 
Efficiency 
Project 

Energy & 
Environment 

The City of Murrieta is utilizing BEYOND funds to finance energy improvement projects identified 
utilizing an energy audit under the direction of the Energy Network and the Western Riverside 
Energy Partnership (WREP).  Status: Completed 

City of 
Norco 

Two-Pronged 
Economic 
Development 
Marketing 
Strategy 

Economic 
Dev. 

The City of Norco is utilizing BEYOND funds to support a two-pronged branding effort highlighting 
Norco as a dynamic business, and friendly environment; and hospitable destination of choice 
focusing on equine and related attractions.  Status: Completed 

City of 
Perris 

Gateway 
Enhancement 
Signage 
Program 

Economic 
Dev. 

The City of Perris is dedicating a portion of the City's BEYOND allocation to support the Gateway 
Enhancement Signage program--an effort to overcome perception challenges faced by the city and 
to optimize economic opportunities by installing a series of entry, way finding, and branding signs 
throughout the City's gateway streets and places of interest.  Status: Completed 

Green City 
Farm Program Health 

The City of Perris is dedicating a portion of its BEYOND allocation to fund the Green City Farm 
project which will develop a Community Garden Demonstration Center exhibiting best practices in 
water-wise gardening, and healthy living opportunities.  Status: Completed 

City of 
Riverside 

Marketplace 
SPOT + TOD 

Transportation
, Health, 
Energy & 
Environment 

The City of Riverside is using BEYOND monies to fund a SPOT+TOD project which is a community-
based development plan and policy framework that will plan for a pedestrian bridge from Metrolink to 
downtown and development of the Metrolink area as a node of activity. Multi-Year Project 

264



City / 
Agency 

Project Name Goal 
Area(s) 
Supported 

Project Description 

City of 
San 
Jacinto 

Healthy San 
Jacinto 

Health 

The City of San Jacinto is leveraging BEYOND funding to meet a portion of its required match for its 
Strategic Growth Council Sustainable Communities Grant, which is funding the development of a 
comprehensive downtown specific plan.  BEYOND funds will be specifically dedicated to the 
development of a Healthy San Jacinto Coalition which will mobilize community efforts around 
creating a healthy and sustainable community. 

City of 
Temecula 

Global Citizens 
Special needs 
Vocation 
Training (Teen 
Job Readiness)  

Economic 
Dev., Energy 
& 
Environment, 
Education 

The City of Temecula is dedicating a portion of its BEYOND allocation to support the Global Citizens 
Teens with Special Needs program which provides jobs readiness training for adults with special 
needs.  This project includes a comprehensive curriculum training participants for jobs in the 
viticulture and hospitality industries.  Status: Completed 

Emergency 
Management - 
Video Vignette 

Health 

The City of Temecula is requesting to dedicate a portion of its BEYOND allocation to support the 
production of a video vignette which will educate the public about best practices for local emergency 
preparedness efforts before, during, and after a catastrophic event.  Status: Completed 

TVE2 Stem and 
Youth 
Enrichment  

Energy & 
Environment, 
Health, Water, 
Education 

The City of Temecula is dedicating a portion of its BEYOND allocation to support the TVE2 Stem 
and Youth Enrichment Program. BEYOND funds are being used to purchase 25 computer stations 
for the Junior Women's STEM Program , Future Physician Leaders , and Youth Legal Program.  
Status: Completed 

Grow Temecula 
Valley 

Economic 
Dev. Health, 
Energy & 
Environment 

The City of Temecula is dedicating a portion of its BEYOND allocation to support the Grow 
Temecula Valley project's effort to promote buying local food and to highlight the region for tourists.  
Status: Completed 

Sixth Street 
Sidewalk 
Improvements 

Transportation 
Health 

The City of Temecula is dedicating a portion of its BEYOND allocation to support the Sixth Street 
Sidewalk Improvements project to regrade the sidewalks and install rolled curbs, promoting mobility 
for all abilities. 

City of 
Wildomar 

Website 
Improvements 
Project 

Economic 
Dev. 

The City of Wildomar is making improvements to the City website and updating its server to enhance 
the user interface for business owners and developers utilizing online permitting capabilities and 
optimized website capabilities. 

RCOE 

RCOE 
Foundation 
Scholars 
Program 

Education 

With BEYOND funds and an $85,000 grant from SCE, the Riverside County Superintendent of 
Schools' RCOE Foundation awarded scholarships to "opportunity youth"/ at-risk students enrolled in 
RCOE programs such as Alternative Education, Court and Community Schools, County Foster 
Youth programs, and Riverside County Education Academy students.  Student scholarships are 
anticipated to range between $2,500 and $5,000 per student.  Status: Completed 

265



City / 
Agency 

Project Name Goal 
Area(s) 
Supported 

Description 

Riverside 
County 

District Level 
Projects - 

The County is splitting Round I and II funding between Districts 1, 2, 3, and 5 for a total of 
$72,164.08 each.  These projects will be approved on a rolling basis and will be on the Round II 
project schedule. 

Riverside 
University 
Health System - 
Public Health: 
Healthy 
Development 
Checklist  

Health 

The County has allotted $25,000 of its allocation to the Department of Public Health to support 
development of a “Healthy Development Checklist” that will serve as a tool for planners to make 
recommendations to improve County of Riverside’s residents’ health through community design.  
Status: Completed 

Eastern 
Municipal 
Water 
District 

Diamond Valley 
Lake & Skinner 
Lake Trails 

Water, 
Transportatio, 
Health 

Eastern Municipal Water District is engaging Fehr & Peers to develop up to five project description 
sheets and photo simulations for Diamond Valley Lake & Lake Skinner trails or related active 
transportation facilities which will describe proposed active transportation routes, route segments, or 
intersections. Multi-year project 

Western 
Municipal 
Water 
District 

Customer 
Handbook: 
Using Water 
Efficiently in the 
Landscape  

Water 

WMWD will dedicate funds to support the creation of a water wise Landscaping web-based 
handbook with engaging written content, photos, links, and embedded videos. WMWD anticipates 
water savings of 7,240 acre feet and greater per year.  Status: Completed 

Morongo 
Band of 
Mission 
Indians 

Dial-A-Ride 
Expansion Transportation 

The Morongo Band of Mission Indians is utilizing BEYOND funding to purchase an additional vehicle 
and fund a new full-time employee to operate an expanded Dial-A-Ride route to support 
transportation to jobs, medical services, education centers and other needs.  

EMWD / 
WMWD 

Water Task 
Force Water 

Eastern Municipal Water District and Western Municipal Water District have each dedicated a 
portion of their BEYOND allocation to fund the ongoing operation of the Water Task Force which 
may help to cover administrative costs, guest speaker expenses, marketing and meeting expenses. 
Multi-year project 

 

266



 

Item 7.E 
BEYOND Program Update and 

Project Spotlight – Cancer Treatment 
Task Force 

Attachment 2 
BEYOND Round II – Project 

Summaries 

267



 

 

 

268



Jurisdiction  Project Name   Framework Goal(s)  Project Summary 

Banning  Lions Park Expansion   Health  

The City of Banning is allocating BEYOND Round II Core funding and additional 
funding from BEYOND Health toward design and park improvements for Lions Park.  
The park is currently 9.12 acres consisting of 3 baseball fields, snack bar, and a 
playground. The City is working to expand the park to include an additional 7.46 
acres, to be used for two multi-purpose fields. Round I funding was applied to a 
portion of the cost of the requisite CEQA analysis for the park.  Additional funding is 
anticipated to come from the County EDA and the City's Park fund.  

Calimesa  Creekside Park Fitness 
Facilities   Health  

The City of Calimesa is allocating BEYOND Core and Health funding toward 
transforming Creekside Park into a Fitness Park by installing park grade fitness 
equipment stations.  The installation will require relocation of existing fencing 
material to expand the park area; installation of rubberized safety surface around 
each fitness station; replacing existing benches, trash cans, and picnic tables to 
accommodate and encourage increased park usage. 

Canyon Lake 

 Railroad Canyon Road 
Mobility Improvement 
Project  

 Transportation, 
Health  

The City of Canyon Lake is allocating a portion of BEYOND funding toward the 
installation of pole-mounted radar speed signs. The project is in response to high 
auto speeds along Railroad Canyon Road, which connects to Lake Elsinore (west) and 
Menifee (east) where speed limits are both higher than Canyon Lake. 

 Goetz Road 
Monument Project  

 Economic 
Development  

The City of Canyon Lake is allocation BEYOND funding to branding and establishing its 
identity as a municipality amongst its neighboring cities. The City is utilizing a portion 
of BEYOND funds for a city monument at the entry point along Goetz Road, adjacent 
to Menifee's Audie Murphy Ranch residential development project. 

 City Website   Economic 
Development  

The City of Canyon Lake is allocating a portion of BEYOND funding to perform the 
annual website update to ensure the site continues to help inform, promote, and 
describe the City to website visitors. 

Corona 

 Corona Innovation 
Center  

 Economic 
Development  

The City of Corona is allocating BEYOND Core Round II funding to continue work on 
the BEYOND RI funded Corona Innovation Center.  RII funds will support physical 
upgrades and ADA renovations to the economic development resource center. 

Corona Health Element Health 

The City of Corona is allocating BEYOND Core funding to add a Healthy Communities 
Component to their General Plan document. As part of the update, the city will be 
evaluating existing health conditions, constraints to improving health outcomes, and 
identifying opportunities to improve the overall health of the community.  

Eastvale  Bus Shelters & 
Appurtenances   Transportation  

The City of Eastvale is allocation BEYOND Core funding toward the installation of 
overhead bus shelters, benches, and/or a trash container at its more than 30 bus 
stops along Route 2 and Route 29. 

269



Jurisdiction  Project Name   Framework Goal(s)  Project Summary 

Hemet Pending  Pending Pending 

Jurupa Valley 

 JV Chamber of 
Commerce  

 Economic 
Development  

The City of Jurupa Valley is utilizing a portion of its BEYOND Core Round II funding to 
continue developing its partnership with the Jurupa Valley Chamber, focusing on 
business retention and small business development. 

 Farmers Market   Energy and 
Environment, Health  

The City of Jurupa Valley is utilizing a portion of its BEYOND Core Round II funding to 
support the continued operation and enhancement of the JV Farmers Market 
through market expansion and establishment of an ongoing marketing campaign.  

 Marketing/Branding 
Program  

 Economic 
Development  

The City of Jurupa Valley is utilizing a portion of its BEYOND Core funding to initiate a 
city-wide branding program to include development of a City brochure and other 
informational marketing. 

 Radar Display Signs   Transportation, 
Health  

The City of Jurupa Valley is utilizing a portion of its BEYOND Core funding to install up 
to 6 solar powered radar speed signs to enhance safety awareness of motorists when 
approaching school zones. 

 Rubidoux Walking 
Corridor  

 Transportation, 
Health  

The City of Jurupa Valley is utilizing a portion of its BEYOND Core Round II funding 
and additional funding through BEYOND Health, for enhancements to the Rubidoux 
Walking Corridor, established through BEYOND RI funds.  Funding will go toward 
construction of informational kiosks at each end of the corridor, enhancement of the 
Edible Path to School, and installation of murals.  

Lake Elsinore 

 Healthy LE Program   Health  

The City of Lake Elsinore is allocating a portion of its BEYOND Core funding to support 
the Healthy LE Program.  A majority of funding will be directed to hiring a part-time 
Graduate Student intern to support program activities.  Additional funds will go 
toward project materials and event programming. 

 Fit-Trails Equipment   Health  

The City of Lake Elsinore is allocating a portion of its BEYOND Core, plus additional 
BEYOND Health funding, to install fitness equipment stations at four parks 
throughout the city. The four parks were selected based on current activity and 
utilization levels, varied user types, disbursement of locations throughout the city, 
and existing walking path infrastructure. 

270



Jurisdiction  Project Name   Framework Goal(s)  Project Summary 

Menifee 

 Communicating 
Menifee's Brand!  

 Economic 
Development  

The City of Menifee is allocating a portion of its BEYOND Core Round II funding to 
build off of the RI Re-branding project to develop a marketing communication plan to 
include creating an independent economic development website and developing 
marketing materials.  

 Menifee Homeless 
Taskforce  

 Economic 
Development, 
Health  

The City of Menifee is allocating a portion of its BEYOND Core funding to the 
Southwest Homeless Alliance Coalition, specifically for creating and printing 
marketing materials associated with the Coalition.  

Moreno Valley 
Community 
Enhancement Program 
II 

Health, Energy & 
Environment, 
Transportation 

The City of Moreno Valley is utilizing BEYOND Core and Health funding for a multi-
faceted project to promote active transportation, community engagement, and 
enhanced quality of life through ten tasks: (1) Community Cleanup Event, (2) 
Cyclocross Race, (3) Ride MoVal Community Bicycle Race, (4) 5K walk / Pet Adoption 
Fair Events, (5) Healthy Moreno Valley student campaign, (6) Juan Batista de Anza 
Trail raised crossing / SB821 Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities from Bay Avenue to 
Cottonwood Street, (7) Mini-Round About Demonstration, (8) existing conditions 
Health Impact Assessment, (9) Community Health Element to General Plan, and (10) 
Exercise Equipment along Juan Bautista De Anza Trail.  

Murrieta 

Economic 
Development Site 
Selector Website 

Economic 
Development 

The City of Murrieta is utilizing a portion of BEYOND Core funds to develop a website 
in coordination with the Chamber of Commerce to provide comprehensive 
information to help new, expanding, and relocating businesses find the optimal 
location for success with the City of Murrieta.  The website will utilize GIS software, 
real estate, demographic, workforce, and industry data to create this tool. 

HVAC Replacement at 
Murrieta Innovation 
Center 

Energy and 
Environment 

The City of Murrieta is utilizing a portion of BEYOND Core funds to replace 11 aging 
HVAC units and install new Title 24 compliant units.  Round I funding had been 
programmed for this, but was reprogrammed for upgrades to the Police and Fire 
Department HVAC units. 

Norco 

Ensuring Safety 
Through Feedback 
Signs 
Status: Completed 

Education, Health, 
Transportation 

The City of Norco is utilizing BEYOND Core funding to purchase, install, and program 
12-15 permanent speed feedback signs.  Status: Completed 

Party Pardners Health  
The City of Norco is utilizing BEYOND Health funds to support the Party Pardners 
Program which provides activities for developmentally disabled adults eighteen and 
over, including dancing, wii games, arts and crafts, and social events.    

271



Jurisdiction  Project Name   Framework Goal(s)  Project Summary 

Perris 

Well One Health 

With funding from BEYOND Core and Health, the City of Perris, in partnership with 
Loma Linda University Dental School, and Lake Perris SDA Church, are organizing a bi-
monthly dental clinic to serve the community to be integrated into an existing 
community medical and mental health clinic. Perris residents are granted first priority 
for appointments, but walk-ins from all areas are welcome. Funds will buy equipment 
and supplies.  The clinic will be largely staff by volunteers, including volunteer dental 
students and professors. 

Perris green City 
Farm/HealthyCommun
ity50 

Health, Education, 
Energy & 
Environment 

Perris was one of 50 awardees for the national HealthyCommunity50 Challenge, to 
compete to develop practical, evidence-based strategies to improve measurable 
health outcomes and promote health and wellness, equity and social interaction.  
Perris' strategy focuses on healthy food access and is seeking funding to expand its 
network of community gardens.  Funds will focus on developing a goal of 31 gardens. 

Riverside 

The Marketplace TOD 
& Mobility Hub Specific 
Plan Update 

Economic 
Development, 
Transportation 

The City of Riverside is combing its Round I and Round II funding allocation for 
development of a Marketplace TOD & Mobility Hub Specific Plan in the area around 
the Downtown Metrolink Station.  With BEYOND funds, the City will prepare a two 
phased plan to (1) develop a baseline infrastructure opportunities and constraints 
plan, and (2) create an implementable Mobility Hub Specific Plan.  The City seeks to 
collaborate with RTA to plan for the area.  

Green Action Plan Energy and 
Environment, Health 

The City of Riverside is using BEYOND Health funding to further the City’s Green 
Action Plan, which is a tool to strengthen the integration between healthy 
communities and resource conservation goals.  With BEYOND funding, the City plans 
to strengthen cross-sectoral collaborations and integrate the plan with the 
Sustainability Tools for Assessing and Rating Communities (STAR) system. 

San Jacinto San Jacinto General 
Plan Update 2040 

Economic 
Development 

The City of San Jacinto is using BEYOND funds to offset City costs for the update of 
the City’s General Plan.  Included are updates to the City’s existing 7 elements and 
will add elements for Economic Development, Air Quality, and Environmental Justice.  
The plan will also incorporate Sustainability and Community Design into all elements.  

Temecula 

Temecula Youth 
Project Construct 

Economic 
Development, 
Education 

The City of Temecula is utilizing a portion of its BEYOND Core funding to create the 
Temecula Youth Construct project which aims to bridge the gap between educational 
attainment and vocational skills and offer an avenue, for students who do not attend 
college, to gain skills that will allow them to be successful within the community.  

Emergency 
Management System Health 

The City of Temecula is utilizing a portion of its BEYOND Core funding to host a one-
day regional Emergency Management Summit, for the purpose of convening regional 
first responders, emergency managers, elected officials, businesses, and the general 
public to discuss emergency preparedness for the region.  

272



Jurisdiction  Project Name   Framework Goal(s)  Project Summary 

Intergenerational 
Horticulture Program 

Education, 
Economic 
Development 

The City of Temecula is utilizing a portion of its BEYOND Core funding to support the 
public-private partnership between the City and Our Nicholas Foundation which 
offers specialized vocational skill training for teens, adults, and seniors with special 
needs.  Modeled after the RI BEYOND Funded Global Citizens Special Needs project, 
the Horticulture Program would be designed to teach basic skills that encompass 
cultivation of plants, vegetable gardening, landscaping, irrigation, and basic business 
practices for all ages with special needs from several communities in Western 
Riverside County. 

Bicycle Sharrows 
Transportation, 
Health, Energy & 
Environment 

The City of Temecula is utilizing a portion of its BEYOND Core funding to install 70 
sharrows (or shared lane markings) divided between five areas surrounding schools 
in Temecula providing critical connections between local neighborhoods and schools 
as identified by the Trails and Bikeways Master Plan.  

Industry Sector 
Promotions/Site Visits 
& Surveys 

Economic 
Development 

The City of Temecula is utilizing a portion of its BEYOND Core funding to create 
marketing pieces/strategies specific to industry sectors that are growing in Temecula: 
craft brewing, high tech, advanced manufacturing, and specialty retail.  Additionally, 
the City's Economic Development team will conduct in-depth site visits with existing 
businesses to better understand their operations and needs. 

Government 
Leadership Program 
for Youth (GLPY) 

Education 

The City of Temecula is utilizing a portion of its BEYOND Core funding to purchase 
equipment that will support the City's Government Leadership Program for Youth 
which facilitates interaction and communication between school districts, high school 
students and City staff in order to foster engagement. 

Sixth Street Sidewalk 
Improvements 

Transportation, 
Health 

The City of Temecula is utilizing a portion of its BEYOND Core funding to design and 
construct sidewalk improvements on the north side of Sixth Street, between 
Mercedes Street and the entrance to the Mary Philips Senior Center. 

City of 
Wildomar 

Signage Enhancement 
Program 

Economic 
Development 

The City of Wildomar will use a portion of its BEYOND Core funding to place new 
signage along roadways to be visible at city entry points and from freeways. 

Website Enhancement 
Part 2 

Economic 
Development 

The City of Wildomar will enhance the City website, funded through BEYOND Round 
I, by purchasing a business registration module. 

County of 
Riverside 
Round I & II 

District 1 Homeless 
Intervention and 
Mitigation Program 

 Health, Economy 

District One will enter into a partnership with Path of Life to administer a homeless 
intervention program, providing support services that fill traditional funding gaps in 
rehousing individuals, including rental deposits, utility payments, and household 
supplies. 

273



Jurisdiction  Project Name   Framework Goal(s)  Project Summary 

District 2 TBD  

The County of Riverside will be dividing Round I and Round II BEYOND allocations, 
less a total of $50,000 which has been directed to Public Health, to projects at the 
supervisorial district level.  Each is allocated $72,164.08.  The Third District has 
$52,164 remaining, after allocating $20,000 to the Cancer Taskforce. 

District 3 TBD  

The County of Riverside will be dividing Round I and Round II BEYOND allocations, 
less a total of $50,000 which has been directed to Public Health, to projects at the 
supervisorial district level.  Each is allocated $72,164.08.  The Third District has 
already allocated $20,000 of BEYOND to the Regional Cancer Services Task Force. 

District 5 TBD  
The County of Riverside will be dividing Round I and Round II BEYOND allocations, 
less a total of $50,000 which has been directed to Public Health, to projects at the 
supervisorial district level.  Each is allocated $72,164.08. 

Riverside 
University 
Health Systems 
- Public Health 

 Healthy Community 
Strategies  

 Economic 
Development, 
Health  

RUHS-PH is using $25,000 from the Round II County BEYOND Core allocation to 
expand upon and support implementation of the Bi-County Healthy Development 
Checklist.  The County will use additional funding through the BEYOND Health set 
aside to support the annual Healthy Living Extravaganza.  

Eastern MWD 
 EMWD Sustainability 
Center Feasibility 
Study  

 Water, Energy & 
Environment, 
Health, Economic 
Development, 
Education  

EMWD is utilizing BEYOND Core funding to perform a feasibility analysis of siting a 
Sustainability Center near its Perris office campus. 

Western MWD 

 Water Use Efficiency 
Master Plan & 
Conservation Outreach 
Plan  

  WMWD is utilizing BEYOND funds to update the Water Use Efficiency Master Plan 
(Plan) that will guide new customer programs and outreach over the next five years.  

Superintendent 
of Schools  Meta THINK   Education  

The Riverside County Office of Education is utilizing BEYOND funding to partner with 
Meta THINK and local school districts to address chronic absenteeism by working 
with parents, communities, and school administrators.  The Program's aim is to 
improve student success as chronic absence is a strong indicator of poor 
performance.  

Morongo Band 
of Mission 
Indians 

 Morongo Dial-A-Ride 
Program   Transportation  

The Morongo Band of Mission Indians is utilizing BEYOND Round II funding to support 
continued operation of the Dial-A-Ride program which was initiated with BEYOND 
Round I funding.  The Program provides access within and from the Reservation to 
such destinations as employment, educational centers, and health care facilities. 

274



Jurisdiction  Project Name   Framework Goal(s)  Project Summary 
Multiple: Cities 
of Lake 
Elsinore, 
Menifee, 
Murrieta, 
Temecula, and 
the County 

Regional Cancer 
Services Task Force  
 
 
 
Status: Completed 

Education, 
Economic 
Development 

Several jurisdictions applied funding from their BEYOND Core allocations or applied 
competitively through BEYOND Health, to support development of a Regional Cancer 
Services Task Force. The Task Force hired a facilitator and perform a study to identify 
trends and regional needs in the area of Cancer services.  Results of the assessment 
are intended to be used in planning for and attracting in-demand services to the 
region both to support health outcomes and economic development.  BEYOND 
funding comes from Core and Health allocations.  Status: Completed 

BEYOND Team: 
City of Perris, 
Eastern 
Municipal 
Water District 

Healthy Community 
50/Perris Green City 
Farm 

Health, Energy & 
Environment 

The City of Perris was one of 50 awardees for the national HealthyCommunity50 
Challenge, competing to develop practical, evidence-based strategies to improve 
measurable health outcomes and promote health, wellness, equity, and social 
interaction.  Perris' strategy focuses on healthy food access and is seeking funding to 
expand its network of community gardens.  Team funds would support development 
of 10+ new gardens; the total goal is 31 gardens. 

BEYOND Team: 
Cities of Lake 
Elsinore, 
Menifee,  
Murrieta,  
Wildomar,  
and Temecula 

Regional Homeless 
Alliance (Southwest 
Cities) 

Economic 
Development, 
Education, Health, 
Transportation, 
Energy & 
Environment 

The goal of the Regional Homeless Alliance is to achieve functional zero homeless.  
BEYOND Team funds would support development of a more comprehensive regional 
program by building on the existing foundation with a focus on immediate needs: 
beds, outreach, housing options and coordination of services.  Specific activities will 
include (1) development of a Community Asset Assessment and Roadmap to address 
future needs, (2) development of formal housing navigation process, and (3) 
development of a replicable, coordinated entry system through outreach, housing 
navigation and low barrier supportive services.  Specific tasks include hiring a part-
time homeless outreach coordinator and part-time housing navigator, management 
of five full-time units for rapid rehousing, and provision of emergency shelter for an 
average of three individuals/families per night. 

BEYOND Team: 
Cities of 
Corona,  
Jurupa Valley 
and 
Lake Elsinore, 
and  
the County of 
Riverside 

Western Riverside 
Homeless Alliance 

Economic 
Development, 
Health, and 
Education 

Western Riverside Homeless Collaborative’ s (WRHC) main objective is to stabilize 
homeless people through the use of shelters, permanent housing, and assistance 
programs to reduce homelessness in the subregion. The WRHC aims to achieve this 
objective by adopting a comprehensive regional approach to programming, 
performing asset mapping, strategic capacity building, and coordinated placement 
and case management.  Specific tasks to be completed include: (1) hiring Homeless 
Facilitators, (2) creating a subregional Leadership Committee, (3) performing Asset 
Mapping, (4) assembling a Law Enforcement Case Conferencing Team, (5) identifying 
faith-based and other access points for a Coordinated Entry System, (6) Responsible 
Compassion and love Your Neighbor Campaign, and (7) Performance Measurement. 

 

275



 

 

 

276



 

Item 7.E 
BEYOND Program Update and 

Project Spotlight – Cancer Treatment 
Task Force 

Attachment 3 
Cancer Care Needs Assessment 

Infographic 

277



 

 

 

278



Cancer is the second leading cause of death in the United States. Cancer screening,
prevention, treatment, and recovery can be a lengthy and dif cult process for both
patients and their support system.  
 
In an effort to reduce the burden on people suffering from cancer, communities in
Southwest Riverside County joined together to form a Regional Cancer Treatment Task
force to address the issue.

  
HARC, Inc., a nonpro t research organization, was hired in 2017 to assist with this work.

  
This infographic summarizes the results of a community health needs assessment that
HARC conducted in summer/fall of 2017. The needs assessment targeted cancer patients,
survivors, caregivers, and healthcare providers in Southwest Riverside County.

 

Community Health Needs Assessment
 Southwest

 Riverside County
 

Identify and  promote existing cancer care resources within the region
 
Identify and address any barriers to accessing those existing resources
 
Identify and address any gaps in resources, including: the pipeline of care facilities and
providers, prevention, diagnosis, treatment, and post-treatment.
 
Create a plan to promote, foster, and maintain desired cancer care resources within
the region

Background
 

Mission
 

Funders
 

City of
Temecula

County of
Riverside IEHP

 

City of Lake
Elsinore

City of
Menifee

City of
Murrieta

Cancer Care

279



Articles about the Task Force and the study were
featured in Valley News. Newspaper advertisements
recruiting participants were featured in the Riverside
Press Enterprise and in the Valley News.  

 
  

Task Force members helped to recruit participants by
sending the online survey to their clients/patients, and by
providing paper copies on location.

  
 
 
HARC also recruited participants via social media,
including a Facebook ad campaign and many Twitter
posts.

 

cancer
 patients/survivors

 
caregivers

 
healthcare
providers

 

Participants
 

Method
 HARC worked with the task force to develop two surveys:

 

These sampling techniques resulted in 689 participants for the community survey and 93
for the provider survey. Those who were ineligible were removed. This resulted in 533
valid participants for the community survey and 44 participants for the provider survey.

 

Survey for cancer patients/survivors
and their caregivers

 

Survey for healthcare
professionals

 

385
 

148
 

44
 

280



Results
 Cancer Patients/Survivors

 

Caregivers
 

Healthcare Professionals
 

25%
 

The most common cancer diagnoses
were...

 
Breast

 
45%

 
Skin

 
14%

 
Prostate

 
9%

 

Over a third of
patients/survivors

delayed seeking care
 

36%
 

Most caregivers cared for a
signi cant other (35%) or their

parent (33%)
 

Most participating caregivers
were either the only caregiver
for the patient (24%) 
or the main caregiver (35%).

 

The most common type of responsibilities for caregivers included...
 

Emotional support
 

93%
 

Going to doctor
 

84%
 

Half of providers
 50%

 

On average,
 providers see
 

A quarter of
patients/survivors were

misdiagnosed at rst
 

Household chores
 

Transportation
 

77%
 

75%
 

587
 cancer patients

per year
 

were nurses
 

On the continuum of care,
providers are engaged in...

 
34% screening

  
55% diagnosis

  
68% treatment

  
59% post-cancer care

 

281



Key Findings
 

This infographic presents only a few ndings
from the full report. To access the full report,
please contact the City of Temecula. If you
have any questions about this study, or the
content of this report, please contact HARC
at staff@HARCdata.org

Cancer patients/survivors would most like assistance with...
 

traveled 50 miles or more to
get their treatment

 

26%
 

Both patient/survivors and caregivers believe that the most critical cancer care issues in the
region are lack of accredited cancer centers and a lack of specialized care.

 
Cancer patients/survivors

 
Caregivers

 

Lack of accredited
cancer centers

 

Lack of
specialized care

 

Lack of accredited
cancer centers

 

Lack of
specialized care

 

42%
 

33%
 

54%
 

52%
 

Availability of
 clinical trials

 

Finding community
resources

 

Applying for bene ts
 

Paying for treatment
 

32%
 

24%
 

24%
 

69%
 

47%
 

87%
 

Rare type
 of cancer

 47%
 

About a quarter of cancer
patients/survivors

 

More therapeutic
options available

 

of providers refer patients outside of the area, usually due to...
 

282



 

Item 7.E 
BEYOND Program Update and 

Project Spotlight – Cancer Treatment 
Task Force 

Attachment 4 
Task Force Next Steps 

283



 

 

 

284



 

Problem 1: People are unaware of the existing resources 
Solution 1: Raise awareness of local cancer resources
•Create a local resource guide and host on ACS website
•Create a resource map and host on ACS website
•Publish an annual magazine-style comprehensive cancer guide  

Problem 2: There are not enough "prestigious" cancer care 
facilities in the region
Solution 2: Change perceptions
•Utilize the annual magazine-style comprehensive cancer guide to feature 
local providers' qualifications and the high-quality care available locally
•Hospitals pursue accreditation by the Commission on Cancer 

Problem 3: There are not enough healthcare providers 
Solution 3: Attract new providers
•Ensure local pay and benefits are competitive with competing regions
•Join Riverside County Medical Association (RCMA) and attend socials
•Hospitals pursue creating residency programs to "grow our own"
•Create an ad campaign (featuring billboards and/or short videos) to attract 
providers to the region by emphasizing high quality of life

Problem 4: Low-income patients require financial assistance
Solution 4: Create a funding program
•Design a treatment assistance program (TAP) to provide financial 
assistance for low-income cancer patients
•Fundraise the $50,000 needed to launch the program
•Hire and train new staff, administer the program, and refer clients
•Serve on TAP Advisory Board and solicit funds to support TAP

Problem 5: There are environmental factors that increase 
the risk of cancer
Solution 5: Reduce environmental risks
•Be an active member of Riverside County's Healthy Cities Network
•Adopt a Health Element in General Plan; adopt a H.E.A.L. Resolution
•Encourage active transportation
•Create a skin cancer awareness campaign

285


	Thursday, March 15, 2018
	Meeting are Available for Consideration.

	tac 031518 6A.pdf
	Item 6.A
	Western Riverside Council of Governments
	Technical Advisory Committee
	Staff Report

	tac 031518 6B.pdf
	Item 6.B
	Western Riverside Council of Governments
	Technical Advisory Committee
	Staff Report
	Date:  March 15, 2018
	6.B.1 Committees presentations.pdf
	Sheet1


	tac 031518 6C.pdf
	Item 6.C
	Western Riverside Council of Governments
	Technical Advisory Committee
	Staff Report
	Date:  March 15, 2018

	tac 031518 6D.pdf
	Item 6.D
	Western Riverside Council of Governments
	Technical Advisory Committee
	Staff Report
	ADPA123.tmp
	City Managers Department


	tac 031518 6E.pdf
	Item 6.E
	Western Riverside Council of Governments
	Technical Advisory Committee
	Staff Report
	Date:  March 15, 2018
	6.E.1 WRCOG Experience Meeting 1 Summary.pdf
	5.B.1 WRCOG Experience Meeting 1 Summary
	SteeringCommMtg1Slides

	6.E.2 WRCOG Experience_Meeting2 Summary-and Slides2.pdf
	WRCOG Experience_Meeting2 Summary_Formatted
	5.B.2 WRCOG Experience_Meeting2 Summary-and Slides
	6.D.3 SteeringCommMtg2PPT



	tac 031518 6F.pdf
	Item 6.F
	Western Riverside Council of Governments
	Technical Advisory Committee
	Staff Report

	tac 031518 6G.pdf
	Item 6.G
	Western Riverside Council of Governments
	Technical Advisory Committee
	Staff Report
	Date:  March 15, 2018

	tac 031518 6H.pdf
	Item 6.H
	Western Riverside Council of Governments
	Technical Advisory Committee
	Staff Report

	tac 031518 7A.pdf
	Item 7.A
	Western Riverside Council of Governments
	Technical Advisory Committee
	Staff Report
	Contact: 36TChristopher Tzeng, Program Manager, 36T27TUctzeng@wrcog.usU27T36T, 36T(951) 405-6710

	tac 031518 7B.pdf
	Item 7.B
	Western Riverside Council of Governments
	Technical Advisory Committee
	Staff Report

	tac 031518 7C.pdf
	Item 7.C
	Western Riverside Council of Governments
	Technical Advisory Committee
	Staff Report

	tac 031518 7D.pdf
	Item 7.D
	Western Riverside Council of Governments
	Technical Advisory Committee
	Staff Report
	Contact: 40TCynthia Mejia, Staff Analyst, 40T31TUcmejia@wrcog.usU31T40T, 40T(951) 405-6752

	tac 031518 7E.pdf
	Item 7.E
	Western Riverside Council of Governments
	Technical Advisory Committee
	Staff Report
	6.K.4 Task Force Next Steps.pdf
	5.E.2 Cancer Task Force Packet 011818
	3 Transition plan 11-15-17






